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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report
and audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”).

Business Review

The Group is an EMS provider offering comprehensive
assembling and production services of Printed Circuit Board
Assembly (the “PCBASs”) in the PRC that integrate research and
design, selection and procurement of raw materials, assembling
of PCBAs, quality control, testing, logistics and aftersales
services.

The outbreak and the spread of the coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) at the beginning of 2020 has made the operating
environment difficult and has created challenges to various
industries in China. The negative impact brought by the Novel
Coronavirus Outbreak had caused an adverse effect on the
Group’s business in 2020, which caused a drop in revenue
and profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Although some of the restrictions have eased in 2021, logistics
and supply chain bottlenecks, recent energy crisis in China,
scarcity of raw materials, shortage of migrant workers and the
inability to deliver goods in a cost effective or timely manner
continues to affect not only the Company but the manufacturing
sector.

During the Reporting Period, the revenue of the Group increased
by approximately RMB107.4 million from RMB246.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB353.9 million for the
Reporting Period, which was attributed to the recovery of the
China economic after the COVID-19 disease was under control
in China since the second half year of 2020 and the business
expansion of the new factory in ChongQing City.

The Group’s profit for the year for the Reporting Period
decreased by approximately 12.7% to approximately RMB10.1
million as compared with the Group’s profit of approximately
RMB11.5 million for the corresponding period in 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE (@)

Prospects

COVID-19 disease has had a severe and negative impact on the
Chinese and the global economy so far. Whether this will lead
to a prolonged downturn in the economy is still unknown. The
growth rate of the Chinese economy had already been slowing
down, and the impact of COVID-19 disease on the Chinese
economy may continue into 2022 and beyond. The Group is
taking proactive measures and making active responses in an
effort to sustain the business and actively diversify or expand
our customer base and product base to broaden the sources of
revenue and diversify business risk. Also, the Group will continue
to invest in our development of in-house capabilities and keep
ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in our industries to secure more business
opportunities. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and our staff for
their tenacious efforts and outstanding contributions to the
development of the Group. | would also like to extend my
heartfelt thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers and
business partners for their continuous trust and support to the
Group.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEE R E IS &

Operating Results

Revenue by Customers’ Geographical Location
The Group’s revenue by customers’ geographical location, which
is determined by the location of customers, is as follows:

REXER

REFHEMNEE SRS
ARBRESBEIMNE (RRESEER)
5 I T

Revenue for the year ended
31 December
BE+t-—A=+—8L

FEMKE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®TT
The PRC s 353,615 246,036
The United States of America (the “USA”) EMBERE ([EE]) 281 183
Others H A, - 312
Total FEE 353,896 246,531
Based on the usage of the electronic products which ERFHA#BREKFIPCBAME TE M HIFIH

incorporated with our PCBAs, our PCBAs can be broadly applied
to electronic end products for three principal industries, namely,
telecommunication devices, industrial-use devices and loT
products. The table below summarises the amount of revenue
generated and as a percentage of total revenue from each
product category for the Reporting Period and for the year ended
31 December 2020 respectively:

PCBAR]EZEMMN=AT ETENE TR
Em NEARE ITXRAEEKENYBEE
me TREBANBEHRBMRBE_ZT_TF
T A=+t—BLFESBEMELNKE
TRREREEA DL

Revenue for % of total revenue for
the year ended 31 December the year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=t-AHL BEt+t-A=t-AHL
FEHKE FERARZADL
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
—Z--% ZZC-TF By —T--F —T-TF =)
RMB’000  RMB'000 %
ARBTR ARETT %
PCBAS for PR LA m B PCBA
Telecommunication devices ~ EiEE 183,485 132,475 38.5 51.8 53.7 1.9
Industrial-use devices TXR%EE 15,741 14,218 10.7 45 58 (1.3)
loT products MERER 142,253 96,515 47.4 40.2 39.1 11
Others Hit 12,417 3,323 273.7 3.5 1.4 2.1
Total Fabs 353,896 246,531 43.6 100.0 100.0 -

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2021 7



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Qur revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for
telecommunication devices increased by approximately 38.5%
from approximately RMB132.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB183.5 million for the
Reporting Period, primarily due to the new orders received by the
new factory in ChongQing City.

Our revenue generated from sales of PCBAs for industrial-use
devices increased by approximately 10.7% from approximately
RMB14.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB15.7 million for the Reporting Period, primarily
due to the increased orders from the customers of industrial use
devices.

Our Group recorded an increase in revenue derived from sales of
PCBAs for loT products from approximately RMB96.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB142.3
million for the Reporting Period, which was mainly attributable to
that more orders were received from the main customer in line
with the rapid development of the loT industry.

Other revenue mainly includes () PCBAs for automotive related
devices; and (i) the revenue generated from the sale of auxiliary
and other materials. Other revenue increased significantly from
approximately RMB3.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB12.4 million for the Reporting
Period mainly due to the increased orders form the automotive
related devices with the maturity of production technology of the
automotive related devices.

8  EmmimmARAT £ 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the Reporting Period was
approximately RMB54.0 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB3.6 million or approximately 7.1% as
compared with approximately RMB50.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Overall gross profit margin decreased
from approximately 20.4% for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately 15.3% for the Reporting Period.

Gross profit for
the year ended 31 December

EFREF=E
AEERFEHENEFNNOABARKES4.08
BT REE_ZT-_ZEF+_A=+—HL
FENHOARE04BETEMHARE36
BELTHNT71% BEEFNEAFE_T =
EF+_A=+—HILEFENL204% B =
WEHAMAIA15.3% ©

Gross profit margin for
the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-AL BE+-A=+—-AL
EEMNER EEMERZ
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
“E--§ —ZT-F 2%y —T--F —ZT-FF 29
RMB'000  RMB'000 (%) (%) (%) (%)
ARETT ARETL (%) (%) (%) (%)
PCBAs for FERA DA T EE mH PCBA

Telecommunication devices EHAEE 34,580 29,951 15.5 18.8 22.6 (3.8)
Industrial-use devices TXRBEE 2,279 2,612 12.7) 145 18.4 (3.9
loT products W A8 EE 15,532 17,354 (10.5) 10.9 18.0 (7.1)
Others Hi 1,589 491 223.6 12.8 14.8 (2.0)
Total it 53,980 50,408 7.1 15.3 20.4 (5.1)

PCBAs PCBA

The gross profit for PCBAs for telecommunication devices
increased by approximately 15.5% to approximately RMB34.6
million for the Reporting Period (2020: approximately RMB30.0
million). The gross profit margin decreased to approximately
18.8% for the Reporting Period (2020: approximately 22.6%),
which was primarily due to that (i) the Group offered a lower
unit selling price to the major customers in the Reporting Period
for the fierce competition; (i) increased subcontracting charges
and staff cost as a result of the labor shortage in Shenzhen; and
(i) more fixed costs were absorbed as a result of the unstable
orders from the major customer of telecommunication devices.

The gross profit for PCBAs for industrial-use devices decreased
by approximately 12.7% to approximately RMB2.3 million for
the Reporting Period (2020: approximately RMB2.6 million). The
gross profit margin decreased to approximately 14.5% for the
Reporting Period (2020: approximately 18.4%), which was mainly
due to the increased staff cost caused by the labour shortage.

AR EAMEERNPCBAMEFIE INK15.5% =
REHENHNAREM6HEETL (T _TF:
HARMBI00EET) - EFERRE R
DEX188% (T T -TF : f1226%) T B
2ER ()EHEFEZ  REBRFESHBR
FERFRHERENEEEE: (1 DREAK
BITRAREZRIE TREBMEMN: Kii)EE
EFPEMREIETEBEERBRARZETE
B o

ARIXRABREENPCBAMEF R 4
127% =R EHEMNARB23BE T (=
E_ZFHARB26BE L) cEFER
REBHARBB O EN145% (T -_FF : 4
184%) ' TEZHNY TEHREFHE THA
0 e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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The gross profit for PCBAs for 10T products decreased by
approximately 10.5% to approximately RMB15.5 million for the
Reporting Period (2020: approximately RMB17.4 million). The
gross profit margin decreased to approximately 10.9% for the
Reporting Period (2020: approximately 18.0%), which primarily
due to that () the Group offered a more competitive price to one
of the major customers to achieve more orders; (i) increased
price of raw materials caused by the global shortage of electronic
components; (iii) we offered a lower gross profit margin for
the products from new customers to achieve more business
opportunities; and (iv) increased staff cost caused by the labor
shortage.

Other Income

Other income of the Group for the Reporting Period of
approximately RMB5.8 million (2020: approximately RMB4.5
million) mainly represented government grants.

Other Losses, Net

Other losses, net mainly represented (i) net gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and (ii) exchange
difference. For the Reporting Period, other losses decrease from
approximately RMB2.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMBO0.9 million for the Reporting Period,
which was mainly due to that the Group has disposed more idle
and outdated equipment for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised (i) relevant
employee benefit expenses; (ii) transportation costs; (iii)
depreciation; (iv) entertainment expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately RMB3.4 million (2020: approximately
RMB2.5 million), representing an increase of approximately
35.9% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2020.
Selling and distribution expense ratio remained stable at
approximately 1.0% against revenue for both the Reporting
Period and the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses mainly represented (i) employment
benefit expenses, (ii) depreciation, (iii) professional fee, (iv)
rental expenses, (v) travelling expenses, (vi) utilities, (vii)
telecommunication; (viii) office expenses and other expenses.
For the Reporting Period, administrative expenses amounted to
approximately RMB42.3 million (2020: approximately RMB36.2
million), representing an increase of approximately 16.8% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase
was mainly due to (i) increased professional fees for the
government grant received in the Reporting Period; (ii) increased
bonus to the senior management; and (jii) increased depreciation
for the office and staff dormitory newly decorated in 2020.

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets and
Contract Assets

For the Reporting Period, impairment losses of approximately
RMBO0.2 million (2020: approximately RMBO0.2 million) was
made against the financial asset at amortised cost and the trade
receivables for customers who probably have credit risk.

Finance Costs, Net

Our finance costs mainly comprised interest expenses on bank
and other borrowings and leases, while our finance income
mainly represented interest income on our cash and cash
equivalents. For the Reporting Period, the net finance costs of the
Group were approximately RMBO0.6 million (2020: approximately
RMBO0.1 million). The increase in net finance costs was mainly
due to the increased average borrowing balances from
approximately RMB11.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB13.3 million for the Reporting Period.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately 5.1% from
approximately RMB2.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB2.3 million for the Reporting
Period, primarily due to the net effect of (i) decrease in profit
before income tax of the Group’s major subsidiary, Shenzhen
Confidence Intelligence Electronic Co, Ltd* (the “Shenzhen
Confidence”) (FYIERE §EE T A R A 7]), which has qualified
for new/high-tech technology enterprises status and is therefore
subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15%; and (i) increase
in profit before income tax of the Group’s new subsidiary in
ChongQing City. Our effective tax rate, which is calculated
based on income tax expenses divided by profit before income
tax, was approximately 18.3% for the Reporting Period (2020:
approximately 15.7%). The increased effective tax rate for the
Reporting Period was manly attributed by the subsidiary in
ChongQing City, which is subject to an income tax rate of 25%.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the facts discussed above, profit for the year
decreased by approximately 12.7% from approximately RMB11.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB10.1 million for the Reporting Period.

Profit/(loss) for the Year Attributable to
Non-controlling Interest

Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interest increased
to approximately RMB2.8 million for the Reporting Period, which
was due to that the new factory in ChongQing City, which is not
wholly owned by the Company, came on stream since the end of
2020.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net Current Assets

The Group had net current assets of approximately RMB138.2
million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB
RMB153.9). The current ratio of the Group decreased from
approximately 3.1 as at 31 December 2020 to 3.0 as at 31
December 2021.

Borrowing and the Pledge of Assets

The bank and other borrowings of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB12.6 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
approximately RMB13.9 million). As at 31 December 2021,
the above bank borrowings were secured by bank deposits of
approximately RMB1.7 million; property, plant and equipment
with carrying amounts of approximately RMB25.0 million and
a corporate guarantee provided by the Company. As at 31
December 2020, the above bank borrowings were secured by
bank deposits of approximately RMB14.6 million; property, plant
and equipment with carrying amounts approximately RMB26.1
million and a corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

Gearing Ratio

Our gearing ratio, which is calculated by total borrowings and
lease liabilities divided by total equity, was approximately 8.5%
and 7.0% as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, our bank borrowings
and lease liabilities increased by approximately RMB4.9
million. The gearing remained low due to our low level of bank
borrowings and lease liabilities as well as the increase in our
equity contributed by our profitable operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Capital Structure

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 October
2019. There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company since then. As at 31 December 2021, the number of
issued shares of the Company was 250,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each.

Foreign Exchange Exposure and Exchange Rate
Risk

The Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”),
and there are no significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. Management considers that the Group is
not exposed to any significant foreign exchange risk as at 31
December 2021 as there are no significant financial assets or
liabilities of the Group denominated in the currencies other than
the respective functional currencies of the Group’s entities.

Capital Expenditure

For the Reporting Period, the Group had capital expenditure of
approximately RMB67.7 million (2020: approximately RMB63.7
million). The capital expenditure was mainly related to the
additions of office equipment, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

Dividend
The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Employees, Emoluments Policy and Training

The key components of the Group’s remuneration package
include basic salary, and where appropriate, other allowances,
bonuses and the Group’s contribution to mandatory provident
funds or state-managed retirement benefits scheme. Other
benefits include share options to be granted under the
Share Option Schemes. The Group provides comprehensive
training and development opportunities to its employees on a
regular basis. The trainings are arranged according to needs
to employees, which are identified annually by individual
departments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 891 employees with
a total remuneration of approximately RMB88.8 million during
the Reporting Period (2020: approximately RMB62.8million).
The salaries of the employees were determined with reference
to individual performance, work experience, qualification and
current industry practices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Pension Scheme

Pursuant to the relevant labor laws and regulations of the PRC,
the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are required to participate in a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme (the “Defined Contribution Scheme”) operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of basic payroll costs to the Defined Contribution
Scheme.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Scheme
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly,
(i) during the Reporting Period, there was no forfeiture of
contributions under the Defined Contribution Scheme; and (ii)
there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group
to reduce its existing level of contributions to the Defined
Contribution Scheme as at 31 December 2021. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Defined Contribution Scheme.

Use of Proceeds

Our business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus of the Company date 28 September 2019
(the “Prospectus”) were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus. The actual use of proceeds was based on
the actual market development. The net proceeds from the
Share Offer received by the Company, after deducting related
underwriting fees and estimated expenses payable by the
Company in connection with the Share Offer were approximately
HK$91.9 million. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 November 2021 (the “Change of Use of Proceeds
Announcement”), having carefully considered the latest business
environment and development needs of the Group, the Board
had resolved to change the proposed use of part of the unutilised
Net Proceeds in the amount of approximately HK$7.2 million
originally allocated for (i) strengthening the Group’s product
design and enhancement capabilities in respect of the Group’s
PCBAs applicable to telecommunication devices and loT devices
PCBA; (i) upgrading the Group’s MES system and enhancing the
Group’s capabilities in information technology; and (jii) upgrading
the Group’s existing intelligent warehouse, to working capital.
The following table sets forth the status of the use of revised
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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allocation of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2021 and the

date of the change of Use of Proceeds Announcement:

HRZAEBREETDEMNMSHIRER
RIS -

Actual use of

proceeds from
the Listing Date
to the date of Amount
change of use utilized
Actual net of proceeds after Remaining
Business objectives as stated in the Prospectus proceeds  announcement Reallocation reallocation balance
BEFRBEES
FrERERE
ER AERENER BN E#
ARERMIEHAR FERERE  FERERE Efi7E  CBRNEE 4]
HKS milion HKS million HKS milion
BERT BEETL BEAT
Enhance our production capacty and efficiency R 7 8 R E 499 499 = = =
Enhance the level of automation inour qually R B &R RELZANED
conirol and packaging system {LkE 76 76 = = =
Strengthen our product design and RABRMEENSALERDE
enhancement capabilties in respect of our BEEMEEPCBANER
PCBAS appiicable to telecommunication Rarhigskan
devices and loT devices 59 08 (6.1 - -
Further strengthen our research and E-SMERMANREE
development capabiliies 31 31 - - -
Strengthen our product testing capabilties for ~ BBEVARENERT A
loT products by setting up a cloud-based BRMENERERNED
simulation platform b EE) 21 21 = = =
Upgrade our MES system and enhance our 4 EIMES R 28 7 369
capabilties in information technology [EERITEN 31 20 (1.1) = =
Upgrade our existing intellgent warehouse ARAMBENBHEE 25 15 (1.0 = =
Repayment of bank loan and other borrowings & RITE R EMEF 86 86 = = =
Working capital LEES 9.1 9.1 72 12 6.0
919 847 - ) 60

The unutilised net proceeds are expected to be used during

the six months ending 30 June 2022. The expected timeline
for utilising the unutilised net proceeds is based on the best
estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group.
It will be subject to change based on the current and future
development of market conditions. The unutilised net proceeds
have been placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong and PRC as
interest-bearing deposits in accordance with the intention of the
Board as disclosed in the Prospectus.
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Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital commitment
amounted to approximately RMB3.2 million (2020: approximately
RMB16.7 million). The capital commitment was mainly related
to the acquisition of machinery and equipment to expand our
production capacity and enhance our production efficiency.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
and Significant Investment

During the Reporting Period, there were no material acquisition,
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired certain equity
securities listed in Hong Kong which the Group has irrevocably
elected to recognise as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The listed equity securities
were classified as level 1 which the fair value measurements of
the listed equity securities were based on observable inputs that
reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets in active
markets. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of
the financial assets at FVOCI of the Group were approximately
RMB8,369,000 (31 December 2020: nil).

The Group also acquired an unlisted corporate bond
with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (approximately
RMB16,352,000) for 1 year maturity at fixed interest rate of 12%
per annum and it was classified as financial asset at amortised
cost. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
unlisted corporate bond was approximately RMB16,080,000 (31
December 2020: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

Event after Reporting Period

Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus, a number of
provinces and municipalities in the PRC have taken emergency
public health measures and various actions to prevent the spread
of the novel coronavirus.

The operation of the Group’s production plant in Shenzhen
(the “Shenzhen Production Plant”) was temporarily suspended
in March 2022 as part of the Chinese government’s
countermeasures in containing outbreak of the novel coronavirus.
Although the Shenzhen Production Plant resumed its operation
and production after the temporary suspension, the Group
will continue to assess the impact of the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus on the operation and financial performance of
the Group. The Group will also take appropriate measures as
necessary.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Z%) (“Mr. Li”), aged 50, is an executive Director,
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of our Group
and the cousin of Mr. Xu Shizhen. Mr. Li joined our Group
in March 2000 and has over 22 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development and overseeing the daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Li obtained his diploma in industrial electrical automation
from Wuhan University of Science and Technology (formerly
known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993. He
further completed a top-up degree in electronic and information
technology from University of Electronic Science and Technology
of China in January 2019 through online studies. From July 1993
to March 1996, Mr. Li worked as a sales manager in Shenzhen
International Business Data Co., Ltd* (R BB £ B A R
7~ A]). From April 1996 to July 1998, Mr. Li Hao worked as a
sales manager in Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co.,
Ltd.* ORINF IR EFEZE BB A F]), an electronic products
manufacturer. He then worked in Shenzhen Bolinshijia Modern
Households Co., Ltd.* (RIITIHEMERBRRERARBRAA)
(formerly known as Shenzhen Xinwei Industry Co., Ltd.* (FIIITH
ZHEE AR A A)), a household products trader, as a deputy
general manager from August 1998 to February 2000. He has
been the director and general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
and Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic co., Ltd.* (I & (FJ)E FH
fR A A]) (the “Xinzhi Shenzhen”) since March 2000 and March
2019, respectively. From April 2017 to September 2021, he has
been the director of Confidence Intelligence, Inc. He also been
the director of New Trive Limited and New Trive (HK) Limited (T
5 (FB)B R A 7)) since January 2019 and January 2019,
respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Zhang Bizhong (5& £ #&) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 56, is an
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Zhang joined our Group
in February 2002 and has over 27 years of experience in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing sales and operations of our Group.

Mr. Zhang obtained his diploma in physics from Zhejiang Normal
University in July 1988. From February 1990 to August 1992, Mr.
Zhang worked as a production engineer in Lianguang Electronics
and Plastics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (B¢ & F8B R CEID &
fR 2 A]), an electronic products manufacturer. He then joined
Shenzhen Dinghan Electronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (F 5%
T T H T AR A 7)), an electronic technology service provider,
as a production manager from September 1992 to October 1995.
He then worked in Shenzhen Bao’an Tongbang Electronics Co.,
Ltd.* (RYITHE =R FHEFHRAQA), a PCBA manufacturer,
as a factory head from November 1995 to February 2002. He
has been the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Confidence
since February 2002 and has been appointed as a director since
December 2015. He also has been the manager of Chongqging
Xinken Technology Company Limited* (£ E {Z BB AR A
A]), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October
2020.

Mr. Xu Shizhen (& tt &) (“Mr. Xu”), aged 48, is an executive
Director and the chief financial officer of our Company and the
cousin of Mr. Li. Mr. Xu joined our Group in March 2000 and
is primarily responsible for the overall financial, accounting and
secretarial affairs of our Group.

Mr. Xu obtained his diploma in finance and accounting from
Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan
Automotive Polytechnic University) in July 1996. From September
1996 to December 1998, Mr. Xu worked as a sales manager in
Shenzhen Tefa Songli Electronic Industry Co., Ltd* (&3 7 45 2%
MY EFEEABR A A, an electronic products manufacturer.
He then joined Shenzhen Suzhu Co., Ltd.* (EIITBEBRR A F])
as a purchasing manager from January 1999 to January 2000.
He has been the chief financial officer of Shenzhen Confidence
since March 2000 and has been appointed as a director, financial
controller and secretary of the board since December 2015. He
also been the supervisor of Xinzhi Shenzhen since March 2019.
He also has been the executive director of Chongging Xinken
Technology Company Limited* (£ E {528 B H R A 7)), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, since October 2020.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Li Bigiong (Z £ IR) (“Ms. Li”), aged 49, is an executive
director of the Company and the human resource director of
the Group. She jointed our Group since November 2009 and
has above 20 years of experience in the electronic engineering
and manufacturing industry. She is mainly responsible for the
administration and human resources affairs of the Group.

Ms. Li graduated from Sichuan Xichong Yixing High School* (4
JIIPEFE %2 B E2) in 1991, From February 1991 to September
2003, Ms. Li had worked at Huagao Wangshi Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* (& £ K EHE ORI) BBR A ) as the
supervisor of the Quality Control Department, mainly responsible
for overall quality control management. From October 20083 to
June 2004, Ms. Li had worked at Shenzhen Yudafu Electronics
Co., Ltd.* (XY T #HZE T E T H R A 7)) as the supervisor
of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible for the
overall management and planning of production activities.
From July 2004 to May 2007, she had worked at Shenzhen
Jinyuantong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (XYl € RBEF B R
‘A A]) as the supervisor of the Quality Control Department,
mainly responsible for overall quality control management. She
subsequently joined Shenzhen Juji Electronics Co., Ltd.* (7%
I EEEFAERADAF) from June 2007 to May 2008 as a
manager of the Manufacturing Department, mainly responsible
for the overall management and planning of production activities.
After that, from June 2008 to October 2009, Ms. Li had worked
at Dongguan Ruiping Electronics Co., Ltd.* (R i F &

B R~ A]) as the supervisor of the Sales Department, mainly
responsible for handling customer orders and sales matters.
Since November 2009, Ms. Li has joined our Group and served
in various positions, including as manager of the Administration
Department, mainly responsible for administration and human
resources affairs. She is also the chairman of the board of
supervisors of Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence Electronic
Co., Ltd.* OFIIMEREREE T HER 2 7)) and the supervisor of
Chonggin Xinken Technology Limited* (& & 2R EHE B R A A)),
our subsidiaries.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. Hao Xiangjun (# 48 &) (“Mr. Hao”), aged 62, is an
executive director of the Company. He joined our Group since
April 2022 and has more than 26 years of experience in the fields
of economics and finance. He is mainly responsible for business
development strategy and operations of our Group.

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor’s Degree from the Northeastern
School of Heavy Machinery* (5 1t & A # 4% £ f) majoring
in mechanical engineering in 1982 and a Master’s Degree of
Mechanical Engineering from the Harbin Institute of Technology*
("5 BB T % K ) in 2001. He also obtained a Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from the United Business
Institutes in 2016 in the United States of America and Executive
Doctor of Business Administration Degree from Lincoln University
in the United States of America in the same year. From March
1987 to August 1989, he was a deputy director of the Information
Center Editorial Office at the Harbin Economic Commission* (*&
BT 4% &£ 8 €). He subsequently joined Harbin Planning
Commission* (M EE ™ 5 812 B €) as a director of the
Dispatch Office in the same month and left in October 1991.
From October 1991 to December 1994, he was a deputy director
of the General Affairs Department at the Harbin Economic
Committee of the Communist Party of China* (1 £ B & ™
&% & 8 9). He then joined the Communist Party of China’s
Policy Research Office of the Harbin Municipal Committee*
(RHEMBBBETEZ WK EZE) as a director of the second
division in December 1994 and was promoted as an assistant
inspector and subsequently as deputy director, before he left in
December 2000. In January 2001, he joined Shanghai Shenyin
Wanguo Securities Research Institute Limited* (£ /8 B R &
FEM T AR A 7)) as a director of the General Office and
left in November 2004. From December 2004 to April 2009, he
joined Shanghai Financial Working Committee of the Communist
Party of China* (¥ E/8 T &R T{FZ 8 ) and his last held
position was deputy director of the office of the committee, after
which he joined the Shanghai Financial Industry Federation* (_t
BRI ER A 2) as the secretary general in April 2009 until April
2019. He has also been a deputy director at Shanghai Institute of
Technology and Finance of Shanghai University* (_E /& K& i
R4 BAT 55 A7) since December 2013.

* For identification purpose only
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Yuan Shuntang (RJEE) (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 49, is a non-
executive Director of our Group. He is primarily responsible for
providing strategic advice to the business development of our
Group. Mr. Yuan obtained his diploma in industrial electrical
automation from Wuhan University of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Wuhan Institute of Metallurgy) in July 1993.
Mr. Yuan worked as a sales engineer in Shenzhen Tianyuan
Finance Electronics Co., Ltd* (FII K TE R E T B R R 7),
an electronic products wholesaler, from September 1993 to
June 1995 and joined Yantian International Container Terminals
Limited* (& M B9 B £2 S 6 5 38 B BR 2 A1), a logistic company,
as an operation manager from August 1995 to October 2002. He
then worked in Shenzhen Haoyang Logistics Co., Ltd.* (&I
YEEEIE AR A R]), alogistics company, as a sales manager
from November 2002 to August 2005. Since September 2005,
Mr. Yuan served as the general manager of Shenzhen Highway
Sender International Transport Co., Ltd.* (& JIl 1 /& & JIE 32
R EBRIEE MR A A, alogistics agency, where he was
responsible for strategic planning and overseeing the overall
operation management of the company.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Zhong (FR &) (“Mr. Chen”), aged 57, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of our Group on
20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Chen obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Radio Physics from Xiamen University in
July 1985. He further obtained a Master’s degree in Science and
a Doctorate degree in Science from Xiamen University in August
1988 and February 1993 respectively. Mr. Chen is a professor
and lecturer of the Faculty of Electronic Science in Xiamen
University. From April 1993 to July 1995, Mr. Chen worked as a
postdoctoral researcher in the Fujian Institute of Research on the
Structure of the Chinese Academy of Science. He then joined
Xiamen University in August 1995 as an assistant professor of
the Faculty of Chemistry and was promoted to a professor in
December 2000. From December 2003 to September 2017, Mr.
Chen served as the associate dean of the College of Physical
Science and Technology of Xiamen University. He became
the associate dean of the College of Electronic Science and
Technology of Xiamen University since October 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund (& & &) (“Mr. Wong”), aged
37, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of our Group on 20 September 2019. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of our Group. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to the Board. Mr. Wong obtained
his Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from Hong Kong Baptist
University in November 2007, Master of Science in Applied
Accounting and Finance from Hong Kong Baptist University in
November 2013, and Master of Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong in October 2016 and Master
of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong in August 2017. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). Mr. Wong has more
than 14 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing.
He joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an audit associate in
September 2007 and left as an audit senior in November 2011.
Mr. Wong joined Patrick Wong C.P.A. Limited as an audit
manager in February 2012 and has been its practicing director
since March 2013. From June 2017 to May 2021, Mr. Wong was
the independent non- executive director of InvesTech Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1087) which is principally engaged in the
provision of network system integration. Mr. Wong is also the
independent non- executive director of Deyun Holding Ltd., a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1440) which is principally engaged in lace manufacturing
and dyeing service since December 2020. Mr. Wong is currently
a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong.
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Ms. Mu Lingxia (F% &) (“Ms. Mu"), aged 51, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company since
18 October 2021. She is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee of the Group. She is responsible for providing
independent advice to the Board. She has above 20 years of
experience in corporate governance and management and
securities affairs. From June 1992 to April 2003, Ms. Mu had
served in different positions at Shenzhen Overglobe Development
Company Limited* (& 31l i1 1 18 3 & i {2 B BR A &), including
secretary of the board of directors and representative of
securities affairs. Starting from 2003, she had served at
Shenzhen Neptunus Bio-engineering Company Limited* (% 3|
mAETEY IR M AR QA (Shenzhen Stock Exchange:
000078) as manager of the office of the board and representative
of securities affairs, until April 2016. During the period from April
2016 to September 2021, Ms. Mu (i) joined Shenzhen Neptunus
Interlong Bio-technique Company Limited* (& 31l 1 /8 £ 25 45 &

A W H TR 1D B R A A)) (Stock Exchange: 8329) and served
in various offices, such as vice general manager, company
secretary, board secretary, financial controller and authorized
representative, and (ii) subsequently worked at the company’s
subsidiary, Fuzhou Neptunus Fuyao Pharmaceutical Company
Limited* (@M /8 ER & ® 2 F R 2~ 7l), as an executive
director and vice general manager. In October 2021, Ms. Mu
commenced her position as a partner at Shenzhen Value Online
Consulting Co., Ltd.* (R B EEEAEABEEER A A). Ms.
Mu graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong university in the PRC majoring
in Applied Economics and obtained therefrom a Master Degree
in Economics. She subsequently obtained a Master’s Degree
of Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as the Open University of Hong Kong).
Ms. Mu is an associate of the Chartered Governance Institute and
an associate of the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
She has also obtained the Certificate of Qualification of Board
Secretary” (EF @MW EEKFZE) issued by the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, the Qualification of Securities Practice* (3% 7% % #t %
A B &%) issued by the Securities Association of China, and the
Certificate of Accounting Professional issued by the Bureau of
Finance of Nanshan District, Shenzhen* (7 LU [& B/ U/B).

* For identification purpose only
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian Xuegen (f§Z R) (“Ms. Jian”), aged 36, was
appointed as the company secretary of our Group on 21
February 2019. Since February 2019, Ms. Jian has joined
Wisdom Professional Limited, a professional services provider
specialising in corporate and investor services, with her position
as a consultant and is responsible for providing professional
corporate secretarial services to companies listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Jian obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from
the South China University of Technology in July 2008. She has
been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2019. She has also been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
December 2010.

Ms. Jian joined Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP Guangzhou Branch
in November 2008 and left with her last position as manager in
the assurance department in December 2016. From December
2016 to June 2021 and from January 2020 to June 2021,
she worked as financial controller and company secretary,
respectively, in the group of Hong Kong Aerospace Technology
Group Limited (formerly known as Eternity Technology Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1725) . Since September 2019, she has been the company
secretary of Sprocomm Intelligence Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange in November 2019 (stock code: 1401).

NEIME

BMERLL (Lt 6 R_T—H
F_A-_+-—HEZTAAEERRWE-
BE-Z—hhF_AR BLLtNAESHB
REFAARAG (—HEMRELERKES
R M EXRGIRMER) F BEEER 1B
BEMBRATEMARRBEEEQRMERY -

BREIR -_ZZENFLANGEREIAS
SHBETEMU -RR_T-—NF-—AKARE
AEMAEEE -BRIAN_FT—FTF+ =
ARABTEEMEAMHEES -

HZETHRZFTEZTNFE+— AMAEmst &
Young Hua Ming LLP B 51T » IR ZF—<
FHABR SEBMLABILE -KE
RERAETMRAREESMAREEEERA
A (RMARS - 1725 AIBEEREERAER
ARDFBEEAE R=ZT—X"F+=-A=ZE
TEC—FRAEAVBEE UR=-F=
TFE-RAET_—FRAEERANE -
B-ZF— TN A % I8 EESprocomm
Inteligence Limited (—ER =F—hLF+—A
BT LR R R (RS - 1401) IR
AE o

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021 25



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EENSNEEBNEREE @)

Senior Management

Mr. Yang Zougao (#% £ &) (“Mr. Yang”), aged 45, is the
general manager of production of our Group and is responsible
for overseeing productions and quality control of our Group. He
has over 21 years of experience in the electronic engineering and
manufacturing industry.

Mr. Yang obtained his diploma in electrical engineering from
Hunan Industry Polytechnic in July 1998. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Yang worked as a technician in Dongguan Jinzheng
Digital Technology Co., Ltd.* (R 5= & I[E S B B R A 7))
from February 1998 to August 2000. He worked in Dongguan
Jinzhong Electronics Co., Ltd.* (RZEm & R EFER A
A]) as an equipment officer from August 2000 to December
2000. He then worked as a production line engineer in BBK
Educational Electronics Co., Ltd.* (¥ F# S EEFAR 2
A]), a company principally engaged in the sales and supply of
electronic products, from January 2001 to July 2001. In August
2001, he joined Shenzhen Confidence as the general manager of
production and became a director since December 2015.

* For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the trust
of shareholders and the public. The Board strives to adhere
to the principles of corporate governance and adopt sound
corporate governance codes to meet the legal and commercial
standards by focusing on areas such as internal control,
adequate disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the Reporting Period except the following deviation:

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li is the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of our
Group, which was deviated from the CG Code. However, having
considered the nature and extent of our Group’s operations,
Mr. Li's extensive experience in the industry, familiarity with the
operations of our Group since its business operation, that all
major decisions are made in consultation with members of our
Board and relevant Board committees, and that there are three
independent non-executive Directors on our Board offering
independent perspectives, our Board is therefore of the view
that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient
balance of powers and authorities between our Board and the
management of our Company and that it is in the best interest
of our Group to have Mr. Li taking up both roles. As such, the
roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group
are not being separated pursuant to the requirement under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board will also continue to
review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose
of complying with the CG Code and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices of the Company.

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

EERERER

ARARRFAZERSELRERATE  URES
TERRE BFRAELECHABEEL D
EZ FAHERDNEREARNEE EFE
BAOEINAMERE RRREARE 28
BREEZHE  UKELEERRALK
MIBRMEREETRIATEZREBFRKF -

PR E R - AR E SRR K8 ST B P
F EMARR (T ERRR) MER14FE 2 %
BasTRI([REEASTAI)) R T RIMERS
KT R BEE RS :

TEERTAGNEA2IGRE EFSE
FRETRESNABE TR TERAR—A
RE -FRE/AEBESS I FERITRAEE -
fREEdRERTR - AT - BB AEEER
MEERRE FEENEETEEREY
AEBEENREBHAL URMELTE
REEFAEFERAHESTZREENE
BEZeRA=-RBUFNTEFTREBY
R BEZERARERAREREEERES
SRANAREEEBCHENFE  BFEL
FRIEMBA & ARBARERN R - FLL - W&
RIFEEEATHERXFEA2VENRERD
AEBTFETBARNAE -EFENHE
EERTRNERARAER BRARFE
SEEERTAMERRKENDEEATR

27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

ﬁ% E“_if:? 2"'& - n\E

Model Code for Securities Transactions
of Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed
that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code. During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and
was satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance
policy of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provisions A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Li currently holds both of the chairman and chief executive
officer positions, as explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” above in the Corporate Governance
Report.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience
in the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their
skills, expertise and number in the Board ensure that strong
independent views and judgement are brought in the Board’s
deliberations and that such views and judgement carry weight
in the Board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the Board to maintain high standards
of compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting
requirements and provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.
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The Company annually assesses the independence of each
independent non-executive Director during their terms of
appointment. During the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this report, the Company received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a written confirmation of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

The Board

The Board currently comprises five executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Hao (chairman and chief executive officer), Mr. Zhang
Bizhong, Mr. Xu Shizhen, Ms. Li Bigiong and Mr. Hao Xiangjun;
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yuan Shuntang; and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Mu Lingxia. The
number of independent non-executive Directors represents one
third of the Board. The biographical details of and relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 26 of this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business development of the Group
and for effective leadership as all the executive Directors
and non-executive Director possess extensive experience in
management and professional knowledge in business, while the
three independent non-executive Directors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience in finance and business. The
Directors are of the opinion that the present structure of the
Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board
and provide a system of checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and the Company.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
page 104 to 117. The Board is responsible for leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and performance and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board shall
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees. Board meetings are structured so as to
encourage open discussion, frank debate and active participation
by Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board
with information and explanations that are necessary to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term. Each of the
Directors of the Company is under a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company for a period of one to three
years.

According to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation
shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment but as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot.
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At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
so appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Li Hao, Mr. Zhang Bizhong, Ms. Li
Bigiong, Mr. Hao Xiangjun and Ms. Mu Lingxia will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of a diverse Board with
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board appointments
will be considered against selection criteria.

The Company seeks to achieve the diversity of the Board through
the consideration of a number of factors in the Board members’
selection process, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background of the Board, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry experience, ethnicity
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and contribution that the selected candidate will
bring to the Board, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy and discusses any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration
and approval.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

The Board may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn and
otherwise regulate its meeting and proceedings as it thinks fit
and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business. An AGM and an extraordinary general meeting called
for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
21 days’ notice in writing, and a meeting of the Company other
than an AGM or an extraordinary general meeting for the passing
of a special resolution shall be called by at least 14 days’ notice
in writing. A meeting of the Board or any committee of the Board
may be held by means of such telephone, electronic or other
communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the
meeting.

When a Director and the enterprise(s) involved in a proposal of a
Board meeting have connected relations, such Director shall not
exercise his/her voting rights on such proposal, nor shall he/she
exercise any voting rights on behalf of other Directors.
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Set out below are details of the attendance record of each

ATEIEESFHREREMEABITNAR

Director at the Board, committee and general meetings of the #lEZg& &% ZE @@=z MBRRERASHH
Company during the Reporting Period: HHAC 8
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
HER/ERETREY
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Ezg ERZE8 R%Z88 ¥Hzee
Name of Directors BEHn? - =F -f 83 RRAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Hao iy e 6/6" - - - 17
Mr. Zhang Bizhong RUERE 6/6 - - - 1
Mr. Xu Shizhen FHERL 6/6 - - - 11
Ms. Li Bigiong FERLT 17 = = = =
Mr. Hao Xiangjun MRERE
(appointed on 1 April 2022) (R=%== N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
MA—REZM) TER TER TER TR TER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIBERE 6/6 - - - 1N
Independent Non-Executive Directors B F#TEE
Mr. Chen Zhong RABLE 6/6 2/2 Ik 17 1N
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund ERBAE 6/6 2/2* 1 17 1N
Mr. Wu Tai Cheung AR LA 5/5 212 1 1/1* 11
Ms. Mu Lingxia REBNTL 11 - - - -

*

representing chairman of the board, the committees or the general meeting

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”), for overseeing aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which were posted on the
Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk) and the Company website
(www.szxinken.com). All committees should report to the Board
on their decisions or recommendations made.

All committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expense.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 20 September 2019
with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code for
the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being
independent non- executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong
Chun Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Mu
Lingxia. The Group’s accounting principles and policies, financial
statements and related materials for the year had been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
has held two meetings for discussion on the audit and financial
reporting related matters. At the meetings, the Audit Committee
had reviewed the final results for the year ended 31 December
2020, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2021 and the Group’s internal controls and risk management
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Full minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Audit Committee
meetings are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee
for comments and approval and all decisions of the Audit
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor was invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings to discuss with the Audit Committee members on the
audit and financial reporting related matters. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing on the
significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting.
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The Group’s final results for the Reporting Period had been
reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this annual
report, and confirmed that this annual report is completed and
accurate, and has complied with the Listing Rules. There is no
disagreement between the Directors and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board on
the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong
and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
has held one meeting. Full minutes of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are kept by the company secretary. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policies
of the Directors and the senior management as well as the
remuneration packages for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the year ending 31 December 2021 and the performance
of the Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are circulated to all members
of the Remuneration Committee for comments and approval and
all decisions of the Remuneration Committee are reported to the
Board subject to applicable restriction. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the website of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Group has paid and accrued the amounts of approximately
RMB1.6 million, RMB 1.5 million, RMB1.0 million, RMBO. 1
million, RMBO0.3 million, RMBO0.1 million, RMB0.08 million,
RMBO0.1 million and RMBO0.02 million to Mr. Li, Mr. Zhang, Mr.
Xu, Mr. Yuan, Ms. Li, Mr. Wong, Mr. Wu, Mr. Chen and Ms. Mu,
respectively, as Directors’ remuneration, for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Directors’ remuneration is determined based on a variety of
factors such as market conditions and responsibilities assumed
by each Director. As at 31 December 2021, there was no
arrangement in which the Directors waived their remuneration.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group for the
Reporting Period and the year ended 31 December 2020 falls
within the following bands:

EEREREEETMH

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—BLtEE K
EEAZFERE  REE HRE RELE =
Zt w|AAE AL BRAEERBLIXM
MEGTEESHFHNOREI N ABARK16
BET ARE1s585ETT ARK10BET
ARBOIBETL ARBOIEBTT ARK
01EETL ARE0OSEE L ARKO1H
BTEARE0NRESETT

EEFMIEMARSEEMAEELES
BEREET RN-T-_—F+=-BA=+—8"
BMEEEHRERETTMAOLEE -

REHPEEB 2T _SF+_A=+—
BIEFE AEEINafhEEENHFMNN
TLATEE :

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EETF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR 1,000,000 2 2

Nomination Committee

The Board would follow a set of formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new directors
to the Board. The appointment of a new director has been
a collective decision of the Board, taking into consideration
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment to his/her responsibilities within the Group.
In addition, all candidates to be selected and appointed as a
director must be able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee was established on 20 September
2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, all being independent non- executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Zhong (Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and
Ms. Mu Lingxia.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee has
held one meeting. At the meeting, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, reviewed the board diversity policy and other matters
of the Company. Full minutes of the Nomination Committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of the Nomination Committee meetings
are circulated to all members of the Nomination Committee for
comments and approval and all decisions of the Nomination
Committee are reported to the Board subject to applicable
restriction. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
are available on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations
to shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.
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Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

—
—

)
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reputation for integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the business in which
the Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and educational
background and length of service;

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for

achieving diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management,
the following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify
potential candidates based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria, possibly with assistance from external
agencies and/or advisors;

(2) The Nomination Committee and/or the Company
Secretary of the Company will then provide the Board
with the biographical details and details of the relationship
between the candidate and the Company and/or Directors,
directorships held, skills and experience, other positions
which involve significant time commitment and any other
particulars required by the Listing Rules, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and other regulatory requirements for
any candidate for appointment to the Board;

8 The Nomination Committee would then make
recommendation to the Board on the proposed candidate(s)
and the terms and conditions of the appointment;

(4) The Nomination Committee should ensure that the
proposed candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the
Board, being particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Nomination Policy and report to the Board annually.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The corporate governance policy is formulated with an emphasis
on the Board’s quality, effective internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
the Group’s operations with applicable laws and regulations.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company had arranged to provide trainings
to all the Directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors participated
in the following continuous professional development:

— = —

=

e —Ft+-_A=t—HLEHFE &
E2ETIIFEEXER

Training on corporate governance,
director’s duties, environment,
social and governance, and/or

regulatory update
FHELXER EERE -
Big - #HERERR D

Name of Directors EENA EREE R IEI
Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Li Hao L E v
Mr. Zhang Bizhong o W4 68 S A 4
Mr. Xu Shizhen FFEESAE v
Ms. Li Bigiong FERRKL v
Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Yuan Shuntang RIERE L& v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKHITES

Mr. Chen Zhong BRABSEE v
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund =EELA 4
Mr. Wu Tai Cheung RIS A4 v
Ms. Mu Lingxia REBRLT v

External Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, as its external
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
external auditor. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
fee payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of its audit
services provided to the Company was approximately RMB1.7
million.
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Internal Control

The Company does not have an internal audit department and
is currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up
an internal audit department within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business and structure. The
Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system and risk management to safeguard the investments
of the shareholders and Group’s assets and reviewing the
effectiveness of such through Audit Committee on an annual
basis. The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system
and risk management of the Group, reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations. An annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group will be conducted.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also engaged an
independent internal control adviser to carry out review on the
internal control system and risk management system of the
Group. The review involves all material monitoring aspects,
including but not limited to finance, operation, compliance and
risk management. The adviser has conducted analysis and
independent assessment on the adequacy and the effectiveness
of the internal control system and risk management of the Group,
and has submitted the findings and recommendations to the
Audit Committee and the Board. The Board is of the view that
the internal control measures and risk management in place are
adequate and effective to safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Group’s assets.

Delegation by the Board

In general, the Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives, strategies and
policies of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance and sets appropriate
policies for risk management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives. The Board delegates the implementation of strategies
and day-to-day operation of the Group to the management.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Jian has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company since February 2019 and is responsible for overseeing
all the company secretarial matters of the Group. In the opinion
of the Board, Ms. Jian possesses the necessary qualification and
experience, and is capable of performing the functions of the
company secretary. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
Ms. Jian confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. The Company will provide fund for
Ms. Jian to take no less than 15 hours of appropriate professional
training in each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
AGM of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meetings
Shareholders of the Company are requested to follow article
72 of the Articles for including a resolution at an extraordinary
general meeting. The requirements and procedures are set
out above in the paragraph headed “Proceedings at general
meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by that person (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if then notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgement of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director is posted on the website of the
Company. Shareholders of the Company may refer to the above
procedures for putting forward any other proposals at general
meetings.
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Investors Relations

The Company believes that effective communication with the
investors is essential for enhancing investors’ knowledge and
understanding of the Company. Information of the Company is
disseminated to the shareholders in the following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all
shareholders;

e  Publication of announcements on the annual and interim
results on the website of the Company and Stock
Exchange, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

e  The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and
shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principle place
of business in Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
the guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends
are to be declared and paid to the Shareholders and the level
of dividend to be paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend
amount, the Board shall take into account, among others,

—
—

) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4) the Group’s liquidity position;
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(5) interest of shareholder;
(6) taxation consideration;
(7) potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong
and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The
Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be
used as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends
that may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and
the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Constitutional Documents

On 20 September 2019, the Company has adopted an amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association which
had been uploaded to the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, there had been
no significant changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Scope and Reporting Period

The Board is pleased to present its first Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) report, which highlights its ESG
performance from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period”).

This ESG report was prepared with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by the Stock Exchange.

The Group is engaged in provision of electronic manufacturing
service and over 90% of its revenue derived from the PRC
market. The scope of this ESG report covers the Group’s
business in the PRC, where the Group’s principal operations and
manufacturing plant are located (the “Factory”), and its major
revenue is derived. The Group’s operations outside the PRC
are not included in the scope as they do not have significant
environmental and social impacts.

Reporting Principles

The reporting principles of this ESG report emphasise the
following areas:

° Materiality: The threshold at which environmental, social
and governance issues become sufficiently important to
investors and other stakeholders is the core content of this
ESG report.

e  Measurability: The key performance indicators used to
assess the effectiveness of ESG policies.

e Consistency: Information in this ESG report is consistently
presented. If there are any changes in methods or key
performance indicators used or other factors affecting a
meaningful comparison, these changes will be disclosed in
this ESG report.

° Balance: The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of
manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.
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The Group applied the principle of materiality to determine the
scope of this ESG report. The scope of this ESG report covers
the Group’s business and all entities in the PRC. The Group’s
operations outside the PRC were not included in the scope as
they do not have significant environmental and social impacts.

ESG Governance

The Group strictly follows its established ESG policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives in order to ensure
a sustainable business development. The structure of ESG
governance mainly comprised of two components, namely the
board of directors (the “Board”) and the management team.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting by overseeing the overall governance and
progress of the Group’s ESG management system, policies,
commitments, strategies and objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for the collection and
analysis of ESG data, implementation of appropriate strategies
to improve the Group’s ESG performance, assessment of
whether current ESG policies and improvement measures are
effective, compliance with relevant ESG laws and regulations
and the reporting of major issues to the Board. To assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s ESG policies, management sets
key performance indicators and compares the indicators of
current year with those of prior year. Based on the results of this
comparison, ESG reports and the feedback from stakeholders,
the Board reviews the progress made by the Group against its
ESG-related goals and targets. The relevance of ESG-related
goals and targets to the Group’s business operations are
determined by regular communications with stakeholders.

The data and information in this ESG report are sourced from
the relevant documents, reports, statistical data, management
and operation information collected by the Group. The Board has
reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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ESG Strategies
Key ESG strategies adopted by the Group are set out below:

e |dentify material and relevant ESG issues through regular
communications with stakeholders

° Perform materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues
by considering their potential impact on the environment,
society as well as the business operations, financial
performance and stakeholders of the Group

e Prioritise the identified ESG issues and design effective
strategies to mitigate these issues

e Review the effectiveness of ESG strategies on an annual
basis

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group fully understands that balancing the expectations
and needs of different stakeholders is the focus of corporate
sustainable development. Through listening to the interests of our
stakeholders, we understand the sustainable development risks
and opportunities confronting the Group from different aspects,
and develop corresponding policies and implement various
environmental, social and governance measures. The Group
maintains an open and transparent dialogue with its stakeholders
through various channels including meetings, trade exhibitions,
surveys, seminars and workshops and reflect their opinions
in the report. The data and information in this ESG report are
sourced from the relevant documents, reports, statistical data,
management and operation information collected by the Group.
The Board has reviewed the contents of this ESG report.
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The following table summarises the main expectations and

concerns of the key stakeholders identified by the Group, and the

corresponding management responses.

TREVAARE BT AR EERN S
ERENAEAEINZEARERNEEE
[l f& °

SHERE

Stakeholders Communication Channel Management responses/Key Concerns
Mz EEE BERE ERELE TERE
Governments and e Compliance with laws and regulations e Tax compliance
regulatory bodies [EAS D7 NE Drrgs) BMEEH
BT R EEE WM e Corresponding government policies e Regulatory compliance
AP U SR EEAR
e Business ethics
HESE 53
Shareholders e Financial results e Financial performance
AR LB i Mg R
e Corporate report and announcement e  Corporate governance
TERERAE TEER
e (General meeting e Risk management and internal control
N [ ez B 2R J% A B ES
Employees e Career development platform e Promotion mechanism
B8 BEERTA BT
e Salary and benefits e Competitive salary and employee
e mEf benefits
e Safe working environment BRFNNG S REERA
ZR2TIFRIR e To provide trainings for employees and
strengthen their safety awareness
REBRBFIREALZZEH
Customers e Customer compliant mechanism e Product liability
N P 1% o e EmAME
e (Customer rights and interests e Customer privacy protection
protection EPRBALIRE
BEFEmRE
Suppliers e Integrity cooperation e To build a responsible supply chain
HrEry BEHEE BEuBEFHERE
e Business ethics and credibility e To perform the contract according to
EERTRESR law

Community and the public e
@ EAR
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Environmental protection
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Materiality Assessment

With reference to the scopes as required under the ESG
Reporting Guide and taking into consideration of the Group’s
business operations, the Group identified the following
environmental, social and operating issues that are material
and relevant to the Group’s business operations during the year
ended 31 December 2021. If the Group does not implement
effective strategies to monitor and solve these issues, these
issues may affect the Group’s financial condition or operating

BEEMFE

KRB2ERR HEREMEESIMREN
HE AREERAKERBEER #HEZ
T_—F+-A=1t—HLFE A£EBCD
WA TS AR E R L ERBENE AR
HEREERE - MAKERE RS DRE
ERELBRAMEE AEERENEER
BAKENTBARNKEEEE - I AR
BiEBEN SRR EETHAYBEARE

performance. Further, the Group made a materiality assessment

on these environmental, social and operating issues by

conducting interviews with its stakeholders.

Environmental issues

Social issues

8 R (T E B AT -

Operating issues

RIGHE HEME EEME
1. Greenhouse gas emissions 8. Local community engagement  15. Economic value generated
2. Energy consumption 9.  Community investment 16. Corporate governance
3. Water consumption 10. Occupational health and safety 17. Anti-corruption
4. Waste 11. Labour standards in supply 18. Supply chain management
5.  Saving energy measures chain 19. Customer satisfaction
6. Use of raw materials and 12. Training and development 20. Customer privacy
packaging materials 13. Employee welfare
7. Compliance with laws 14. Inclusion and equal
and regulations relating to opportunities
environmental protection
1. REREBEIEN 8. EiitELE 15. PIEAKEEE
2. BEIREFE 9. HEEKE 16. REES
3. FK 10. BEREEZE 17. RE)S
4. EEEY 1. HEES TIRE 18. e E IR
5. ENREIEHE 12. FBillk#ER 19. EFEWMEE
6. EARMEREEDE 13. EEREH 20. BFMLE
7. BTRBREEBEEEER 14, H@ERTERS
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The Group prioritised the above-mentioned environmental, social AEBEZELREE FiliiRE L@ N EERN
and operating issues in terms of their importance to the Group’s EH AEEFZFABEE M ESESNEEM -
stakeholders and business operations.

Importance to the Group’s stakeholders

and business operations ESG risks
HEAEEFNZHEEREBELENEENS BiE HERERAR

High = 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,14,15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20
Medium s 10, 11,12, 18

Low 1K 8,9

Based on the results of the Group’s materiality assessment, the REAEBMNEZHTHER  AEEEER
Group would formulate and implement appropriate strategies to & M B s {8 & 5 B LA BS B N R OR B 2 IR A9 R
monitor and solve the identified issues and to achieve sustainable B BIR Al B £ 5 HE -

business development.

Contact us Bék 4% 3% 1P

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and AEEEDFHEEIZEHESEEEZ - BT A5
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of this ZANiFE sk AREB A IFEEXRERNRIE  FARQ
Report or the Group’s performances in sustainable development  F]F B& £ BiZHEBEES R -

to our principal place of business.
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Environment

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to protect
the environment and it has implemented policies to
reduce emissions and improve the efficiency in the use of
resources. In addition, we regularly hold training activities to
raise employees’ awareness of environmental protection.
The contents of training include environmental pollution and
management conditions of the company, environmental
policies and guidelines, environmental laws and regulations
and other requirements, the company’s environmental
factors and management systems, and energy conservation
and emission reduction.

The Group’s operations are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC, such as the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF 2 A R0
IRIBIREE), the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact
Assessment (FF 2 A R HEFB IR I% & £ 51L& %), the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(P AR EMBE KIS HEPT A ), the Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (# 2
AR FEFEKRESEFH45%), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise (# #E A R MBI IR TR E )5 2 0778)%) and the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste (H 2 A R 20 B & 88 B& ¥))5 23R
BHRE).

These laws and regulations govern a broad range of
environmental matters, including air pollution, noise
emissions and water and waste discharge. The Group’s
business operations in the PRC should comply with laws
and regulations concerning the environment protection.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group did not record any non-compliance with applicable
environmental requirements that resulted in prosecution,
penalty, administrative fine or sanction being imposed
against the Group.
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A.1 Emissions
In order to comply with the applicable environmental
protection laws, the Group has implemented
environmental protection policies, reducing air and
water pollution, paper consumption, and electricity
consumption. During the year ended 31 December
2021, sources of the Group’s emissions mainly
included consumption of petrol and electricity
consumption.

(i)  Air pollutant emissions

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
air pollutant emissions were mainly related to
petrol consumption for the use of the Group’s
self-owned vehicles, which contributed to the
emission of 296.73 kg (2020: 240.50 kg) of
nitrogen oxides (NOx), 0.39 kg (2020: 0.32 kg) of
sulphur oxides (SOx) and 28.45 kg (2020: 23.06
kg) of respiratory suspended particles (PM).

(i)  Greenhouse gas emissions

A HER

AETEABRER ALEEE
TR B A 2 AR5 R
BEEEUREEE -BE_T
——fF+-A=+—BLEFE &
£ 8 P 0 ) OB £ B e 5 Y
BREN N -

() Z=RIFEUEERHR
HE_T-_—F+_A=+—
BIEFE =852
BREZHFEAAEEEEAE
FTBFEM A mA R BEHN
REILP(NOx) 296.73 T 52 (=
T -FF :24050T %) B
1E¥(SOx) 0.39FH (ZE=F
F:032F7R) RAIRABZE
H(PM)28.45 F 2 (ZZE=FF :
23.06F%) °

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—BLFE

2021 2020
—E-_—F —ZE-F
Emission (in tCOe)
Scope of greenhouse gas HEHE

emissions BERBEREE (H-—FtREE)
Scope 1 Direct emission EE1HEEER
Combustion of petrol for mobile VUE M R

vehicles 64.9 52.6
Scope 2 Indirect emission EIE2EEHEN
Purchased electricity SNEEE N 5225 431.8
Total F 587.4 484.4
Note: B 5E -

(1) Emission factors were made by reference to Appendix
27 of the Main Board Listing Rules and their referred
documentation as set out by the Stock Exchange, unless
stated otherwise.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group’s activities contributed to 587.4 tonnes (2020:
484.4 tonnes) (0.01 tCO2/m2) of carbon dioxide
equivalent (carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide and
hydrofluorocarbons) emission. Details of the Group’s
measures to reduce the consumption of resources and
the related emissions are set out below. As a result
of these measures, the employees’ awareness of
reducing the consumption of resources and the related
emissions has been increased. Same as the previous
years, the Group did not receive any complaints or
warnings on greenhouse gas emissions during the year
ended 31 December 2021, and targets to achieve the
same performance in 2022.

Petrol consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
motor vehicles travelled approximately 184,583 km
(2020: 136,344 km), which consumed 28,099 litres
(2020: 22,775 litres) of petrol and contributed to
64.7 tonnes (2020: 52.6 tonnes) of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions. To reduce the emissions arising
from petrol consumption, the Group encourages its
employees to use public transport when they attend
business activities. For business activities that take
place within walking distance, the Group encourages
its employees to walk or cycle to the destination. The
Group targets that its petrol consumption in 2022 will
not exceed the level consumed during the year ended
31 December 2021.

Electricity consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
consumed 649,636 kWh (2020: 536,889 kWh) of
electricity (1,003 kWh (2020: 795 kWh) per employee)
in connection with its daily business operations, which
contributed to 522.6 tonnes (2020: 431.9 tonnes)
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce
the emissions arising from electricity consumption,
the Group encourages its employees to switch off
the lights and other electricity appliances when they
leave the office and production premises. The Group
targets that its electricity consumption in 2022 will not
exceed the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group generated nil hazardous waste. The Group
has engaged a qualified waste collector to control
the generation of hazardous waste. The Group
will strive to maintain generation of hazardous
waste through upgrading technologies whenever
possible. Same as the previous years, the Group
did not receive any complaints or warnings on
disposal of its hazardous waste during the year
ended 31 December 2021, and targets to achieve
the same performance in 2022.

Non-hazardous waste

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group generated a total of 10.1 tonnes (2020:
9.6 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste (0.01
tonnes (2020: 0.01 tonnes) per employee). The
major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group were packaging materials, metal scraps,
paper waste, and sawdust, will be collected
and weighed before being recycled or sold to
recycling company. The Group regularly reminds
its employees to use resources efficiently and try
to avoid the generation of waste. As a result, the
employees’ awareness of waste management
has been increased. Same as the previous two
years, the Group did not receive any complaints
or warnings on disposal of its non-hazardous
waste during the year ended 31 December 2021,
and targets to achieve the same performance in
2022.
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(v) Water consumption

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group consumed 58,973 m3 (2020: 42,400 m3)
of water (91.0 m3 (2020: 62.8 m3) per employee)
in connection with its daily business operations.
To reduce the emissions arising from water
usage, the Group encourages its employees to
conserve water and remember to turn off the
water tap after use. As a result, the employees
has increased their awareness to consume water
usage. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group did not encounter any problems
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Further,
the Group did not consume a significant amount
of water that was and disproportional to the scale
of its business operations. The Group targets that
its water consumption in 2022 will not exceed
the level consumed during the year ended 31
December 2020.

A.2 Use of resources

Reducing consumption of resources and enhancing
utilisation efficiency are the Group’s principles in
minimising adverse impact on the environment and
natural resources that may be caused by its business
operations. The Group has adopted a set of guidelines
to achieve efficient use of energy, water and
other resources for long-term sustainability.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group’s business activities did not cause significant
adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group’s total consumption of electricity,
water and packaging materials during the year
ended 31 December 2021 together with the relevant
conservation measures adopted by the Group are
detailed in the section headed “A.1 Emissions” above.
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To further improve the use of resources, the Group BE—ISHEERER AEESHE
takes the following actions on an ongoing basis: HEUATITE) ¢

Item Measures

1HE e

Electricity saving (1) Minimize use of air conditioners by maintaining a minimum air

BT

Water saving

EEESNEERN

Vehicle management

BHEE

Office supplies management
MAAmER

conditioning temperature of 26° C in the office area
BARAEBRHRFREZEARE26 EUKRAERERDEHEH
(2) Reduce the lighting time by turning off all lighting equipment before
leaving office
BEFA S N ERIRABI PTG RAARAME - DUR D REAR
(8) Turn off the power of all devices before leaving office to reduce the
standby time of such devices
BEFA M N ERIBRFIPAI A RGO EIR - AR D % 5 328 1) 15 B e

(1) Turn off the faucet immediately after washing hands
BEF 1 TRV K BESE

(2) Improve daily maintenance of water and heating pipelines to prevent
leakage of water
HEFRKMEREENHBEE - AR IERK

(8) Use recycled water for the spray-work painting booth located within
the Factory
TR A HY R 2R 5 £ A 3 A K

(1) Turn off air-conditioning and engine of vehicles when parked for a
long period to reduce oil consumption
= I 1 45 B2 e A B 2 4 ) 22 S AN B2 B LAURL A R

(2) Formulate maintenance plans and regularly inspect vehicles
Hl A IS 5T 8N TE B iR S E

(1)  Use recycled paper
150 FA [ W 4% 5

(2) Use double-sided paper
R EmE T E

(8) Promote paperless office by using electronic communications to
reduce paper
BATTBERIAKRERE  REBKEHEA

(4) Encourage personal use of drinking cups for less use of disposable
cups
SRRV A R A KR R A — IR M KRBy

(5) Improve the purchase and distribution policies of office supplies by
prioritizing use of energy-saving and environmental products.

BRESEANERREDRNENAAMNBE RO RBEK

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of I AEBEREETHRAESIFAER
the importance of using resources efficiently. MEZME -
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ASERERBAER

A.3 The environment and natural resources

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
business activities did not cause significant adverse
impact on the environment and natural resources. To
further improve the use of resources, the Group takes
the following actions on an ongoing basis:

e keep track of its consumption level of resources;

° review the effectiveness of its conservation
measures; and

e design improvement measures

As a result, the Group’s employees are more aware of
the importance of using resources efficiently.

A.4 Climate change

The Group manages the climate change risk with
reference to the recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), which
are structured around four core elements: Governance,
Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and Targets.
The Board overseas the governance and reporting of
the Group’s climate change risk. Management of the
Group regularly monitors and identifies climate change
risk that is relevant to the Group’s business operations.
Strategies will be implemented on a timely manner to
mitigate such risk.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
identified the following climate-related risks that
may have material impacts on the Group’s business
operations:

BE-_FT-_—Ft+-A=+—AL
FEAEENEBRDHURER
BRERERERBERTHEE -
RE-—FSHELRNER ~5H
SEREUA TATE :

O Em%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ )

o BERERENERIL R

s RAthERIE

At AEENESENEHEA
MHAEROBEN

Rz
AEBEERGELRRE 2%
R 1% 48 B8 B 7% 4% 58 T 1B /) 4B (TCFD)
MNEZ EZBEENEAZLEE:
E3E - BBS - AR EIE A KIEER
B EEEBALEENGREE
{ERBIERTMRE - NEBEIE
BEMERMSR AR EEERE
BHENREZLCRR T &
FITREE  RE L ERRE -

EEE-_TE-_—F+=_A=+—H
EFER AEEYWENA T A s H
AEENEBEEELETEATEN
RIZHEERR :
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Physical risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme
weather such as typhoons, storms and heavy rains can
disrupt the Group’s operations by damaging the power
grid, and communication infrastructures, and injuring
its employees during their work, leading to reduced
capacity and decreased in productivity, or expose
the Group to risks associated with non-performance
and delayed performance. To minimise the potential
risks and hazards, the Group has flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad
or extreme weather conditions.

Transition risks

The Group anticipates that there will be more stringent
climate legislations and regulations to support the
global vision of carbon neutrality. We acknowledge
the requirements to enhance the climate-related
information disclosures as a result of the recent update
of the ESG Reporting Guide in respect to significant
climate-related impact disclosures of an issuer. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose
enterprises to higher risks of claims and lawsuits.
Corporate reputation may also be adversely affected
by the failure to meet the compliance requirements for
climate change. The Group’s related capital investment
and compliance costs may increase. In response to
the policy and legal risks as well as the reputation risks,
the Group regularly monitors existing and emerging
trends, policies and regulations relevant to climate and
be prepared to alert the Board where necessary to
avoid cost increments, penalties for non-compliance
and/or reputational risks due to delayed response.
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B. Social B. 1t

B.1 Employment and labour practices
()  Employment

Total employees and turnover

The Group had a total number of 648 (2020: 675)
full-time employees mainly located in China as at
31 December 2021. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group closely monitored the
number of employees that were required to run
its business operations.

Set forth below are the distribution of the Group’s

employees as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by
gender and age group:

As at 31 December 2021:

=r

U

B ERKRSE ITER

2=

/EE%?%?&///L% K
R_B-_—F+=-A=+—8 "
REBEHLEBIS(ZE_TF:
675) B2 BEE FTEFRE
FH - BEZZT=-—F+= A
=+ —HIEFE AEEZEY)
EREBBEBMTENREREAL -

AEEEER-_TE-_—FK=
E-_TFE+_A=+—HEKMHE
B FREESHDMIBERH
T

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8:

Distribution of employees by gender

BURE D NES D MHER

Female Z!t @ Male

B

Distribution of employees by age group

BEERBRESNESSHIER

41-50
41-508%
16%

AU

31-40
31-40%%
29%

@ 30 or below
30BREA T

® 31-40
31-40%%

41-50
41-50%%

Above 50

o 503k

3%

30 or below
305%EIA T
52%

Above 50
505% A =
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As at 31 December 2020: RZEZZF+-_A=+—H:

Distribution of employees by gender

BEMRB S HNES D ftER

Female
2%
34%

.

Female Z1f @ Male B%

Distribution of employees by age group

BERRASNWEESHIER

41-50
41-505% Above 50
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31-40 30 or below
31-405% 30BR AT
27% 59%
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According to the “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
of the Factory, the expertise of job applicants
will determine their employment status. The
remuneration, bonus, allowances and other
forms of subsidies payable by the Factory to our
employees are subject to their work performance,
expertise, and competence, regardless of their
sex, race, religious beliefs, age, disability, sexual
orientation, nationality, political views, social
status, social and racial backgrounds, and
other factors. The “Anti-Discrimination Policy”
also protects the rights and interests of female
employees, under which, marriage or pregnancy
discrimination is not permitted for employment
of women, and therefore no pregnancy test
shall be performed on any female job applicant.
The Factory shall make proper arrangements
to prevent the well-being of pregnant women
from being affected by work. In case that the
management or external service providers
are in violation of the “Anti-Discrimination
Policy”, they shall be subject to penalties. Our
employees may lodge complaints with our
administrative department via a complaint hotline
or the suggestion box, and the administrative
department will conduct a regular review each
week, launch investigation, and address any
violation if identified. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any complaint case
from our employees.

Set forth below is the Group’s employee turnover
rate by gender and age group:
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Category 2021 2020
%5l —B-—F  C—EC-TFE
By gender &1 BI85

Male 5 133% 126%
Female Z 118% 126%
By age group RERARE D

30 or below 30BR AT 191% 173%
31-40 31-40 8% 79% 7%
41-50 41-50 % 27% 26%
51 or above 51pR KA k= 36% 27%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group
understood that the turnover rate remained high.
In the future, we will step up the implementation
of measures to lower the employee turnover rate,
including reviewing the remuneration packages
within the industry, improving the respective
treatment and talent development mechanism,
and providing more training and assisting our
employees in preparing their career plan. In
addition, we will commit ourselves to improving
the management mechanism of the Group, while
cultivating the teamwork culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
employment.

Employee benefits and welfare

The Group enters into employment contracts
with its employees and the employment contract
terms were stipulated under the principles of
fairness, voluntarism, mutual consent, integrity
and credibility. The remuneration package offered
to employees includes salary, bonuses and other
subsidies. In general, the remuneration package
is based on each employee’s qualifications,
position, seniority and work performance. The
Group carries out an annual review system to
assess the performance of its employees, which
forms the basis of decisions with respect to salary
raises, bonuses and promotions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group maintains social insurance for its
employees pursuant to the applicable PRC laws
and regulations by making contributions to the
mandatory social insurance and housing provident
funds which provide basic retirement, medical,
work-related injury, maternity and unemployment
benefits.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group complies with the Labour Law of the PRC
and did not experience any significant disputes
with its employees or any disruption to business
operations due to labour disputes. In addition,
the Group did not experience any difficulties in
the recruitment and retention of experienced core
staff or skilled personnel.

Labour standards

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no child labour nor forced labour working
in the Group. The job application requirement
specifies that job applicants must be at least 18
years old. To ensure that job applicants can meet
the age requirement, identities of job applicants
are verified against their valid identity documents,
relevant permits and certificates.

The human resources department is required
to carry out background checks to authenticate
information provided by job applicants and
is required to fill in forms that confirm hired
employees have met the age requirement. If
child labour or forced labour is discovered, such
matter will be reported to the human resources
department and senior management. The
Group will enhance the relevant internal controls
to eliminate such matter. No material non-
compliance in relation to laws and regulations
regarding prevention of child and forced
labour was recorded during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Equal opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, job
advancement, training and development, etc.
Employees are not discriminated against or
deprived of such opportunities on the basis of
race, nationality, religion, physical condition,
disability, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation,
political status, age and any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. Employees shall
not act in discriminatory manner or they can be
subject to disciplinary actions.
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Employee relations

The Directors consider that it is important to
maintain good relationship with employees.
The Group maintains regular communications
with its employees by arranging gatherings,
celebration activities and trainings. Through these
activities, the Group would collect feedback
from its employees on job satisfactions and
their expectations on the Group and would
implement appropriate strategies to improve the
work environment and its relationship with the
employees.

Employee health and safety

The Group places emphasis on occupational
health and work safety. It provides a safe
working environment and training sessions for its
employees to ensure that they can work safely. It
has also implemented a system of recording and
handling accidents. Further, the Group also has
dedicated personnel responsible for administering
the internal worker safety policies, providing
relevant training and education, and conducting
regular inspections. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group had not experienced
any material safety accidents or been penalised
for any non-compliance relating to work safety
laws and regulations.

(i)

& B B %

EXZRA BEBEBRITH
BTOEZ AKEBERH
e EBEOAERIEIE A
BEEBB EMREEY K
SERRENEEETHEREE
REAREENHETERER
RER VYEREERKNLE
TERRENERBMEE -

BERFERELZE
AEEITEREREN TR
2 REERHZEHNITIER
FEMBINRE  BREEATLR
2T NERLEKREES
BERG - W NEBEITER
ERABRREEEANEER
2R - R HAERE A5 P A 2
B rETESRE-#HE—
E_—F+-A=+—HIF
B AEEYEZEFEFMEKR
REFWR MERNNET T
RERRIOERMZ BB

For the years ended
31 December
2021 and 2020

BE-_Z—-—%

R=2=%fF

Occupational health and safety data BEREEZZHE +ZBA=1t—HLEEFE
Work related fatality THERTE -
Work injury cases >3 days RN EMTESKR -
Work injury cases <=3 days = RENAAHITESEH -
Lost days due to work injury TEEIRE =
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(iv) Development and Training

The Group’s various types of employee training
not only help employees improve their skills
sets and operational efficiency, but also provide
an opportunity for their personal development.
According to the “Human Resources
Management Procedure” for the Factory, the
administrative department shall formulate
training programs, under which, each employee
is required to receive position-related training,
including in-house and external training. Training
effectiveness will be assessed by written or oral
tests, hand-on operations, spot check and other
measures. Employees whose specific work has
significant impacts on the environmental and
occupational safety and health will be assessed
by the administrative department for their
qualifications, and the assessment scope will
cover their academic background, competence,
training, and/or qualifications. Such employees,
only if determined as eligible, will be permitted to
take up the position.

During the Reporting Period, the Factory focused
on training related to production safety, hygienic
practices and personal health, medical treatment
and first aid, and environmental protection.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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(iv) 3R KIEd
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MARENEABREHES
REIBNIANEREER
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Set forth below is the number and percentage LT AREEREE (RMR RE
of training hours completed by the Group’s BEEREID) TREIIRERE
employees by gender and employee category: saNs AN

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E-_-F+-A=t—-BLFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

ZES

Rl &n

S prgid B

EEER S BN  AEIREY MBI

Senior management BRERE 3% 1% 52 4%

Middle Management HRERE 7% 2% 120 9%

Other employees HtES 54% 33% 1,130 87%

Total st 64% 36% 1,302 100%
% of training hours by RIERIE D5

gender REME L 840 462 100%
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z-TF+_A=+—HBIEFE

% of training

Male Female Total hours by

training training training employee

Employee category hours hours hours category

REE

BhIED

S pegid b lis3:

BB 5 5 HIR £8 B E AR R BB D

Senior management BRERE 3% 1% 52 4%

Middle Management HRERE 6% 1% 106 7%

Other employees HES 57% 32% 1,198 89%

Total st 66% 34% 1,356 100%
% of training hours by ZIERIE S5

gender BENA L 900 456 100%
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Training Focuses During the Reporting Period

& B A5 E

Trainees Training Program Description

FIE R BFIRE

Entry-level employees Various systems related to working hours, remuneration calculation, and
FriEB T remuneration package and fringe benefits

All-level employees
FERET

First-line managers
EEEBET

Employees who have access to
chemicals and warehousing staff
FERCERNEIRAREES

Employees who have access dangerous
equipment
RLZBEREZE

Security personnel and emergency staff

ERERRENET

Manufacturing department
B3 3

TEREfE - TEFHE IR - ZEF 8 &M e F &l =

Employee Manual, and factory-wide rules and regulations

BT FM - BRmA

Occupational health and safety, and environmental awareness

BERRLZE BRREH

Knowledge related to fire safety and counter-terrorism

EEE - RBL 2

Hygienic practices and personal health, and medical treatment and
first aid

BB EMEARERERESK

Pre-employment skills, on-the-job operations, product quality control

HATRAL - BRI - ERE RS

Workplace hygienic practices and personal health and safety
EEET

Fire safety knowledge and emergency escape drills

HBT 2% & F SO R SOR AR

Counter-terrorism knowledge

R R % 2 m

Medical treatment and first aid

BRSN

ISO 9001 certification knowledge and product quality control
ISO 9001 &A=&k &% E o & E 4% )

Know-how on quality control

oo 1 A0

On-site management practices and 5S management system
RS ERBENRSSERER

Standards for Safe Access to Chemicals and Personal Protective
Equipment

t2m - BARERBELDERIRIERS

Safe Use of Dangerous Equipment

EY SR E B RS

Emergency Know-how for Firefighters and Emergency Staff

fERRELEER

On-site management practices and 5S management system
WS ERBENRSSERER

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021

69



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

70

B.2 Operating practices

U)

Supply chain management

The Group purchases raw materials and
equipment based on its own needs,
specifications, quality and safety performance of
equipment, reputation, after-sales service and
delivery time of the supplier. The Group compares
different suppliers to select qualified suppliers
(based on their product specifications, product
compliances, production management, quality
management, environmental friendliness and
also corporate social responsibility performances)
before the Group enters into contract with the
qualified suppliers.

When selecting equipment, the Group would
also consider whether the equipment is energy
efficient and environmental friendly. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has
around 359 suppliers and majority were situated
in the PRC.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the
ESG principles that the Group has adopted into
the management of its business operations.
In order to ensure that the components and
raw materials meet the requisite safety and
quality standards, the Group adopts stringent
criteria in supplier selection (including but not
limited to whether they provide high quality raw
materials, whether they maintain a high standard
on environmental protection and comply with
relevant laws on environmental issues, whether
price is comparable to market rate and location of
their factories) and continuously monitors existing
suppliers on an annual basis, based on criteria
such as product quality, product defect ratio,
delivery punctuality ratio and responsiveness.

Whether the supplier will continue to be included
in the Group’s list of approved suppliers depends
on the marks it achieved under annual evaluation.
The awareness of environmental protection is one
of the key criteria for the Group to evaluate the
suppliers.

EREERBRARF FiR 2021
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KERBRMH KM - AEE
HEEREEERI LA WA
AEEeH TRERARER
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(i)

Product responsibility

Attaching great importance to product quality and
safety, the Group continues to monitor quality
and implement safety standards. The Group
strictly monitors the entire production process
from receipt of materials, production to product
shipment.

Materials required by the Factory for production
purposes include, accessories, steel, etc., 95%
of which are raw materials that have received
the ISO 9001 quality management system
certification. To manage materials, the Factory has
formulated the “Materials Inspection Instruction”
to regulate the quality inspection standards for
materials so as to ensure that no non-compliant
materials will enter the production processes.
According to purchase contracts, the inspectors
will verify whether the orders, subject matters,
specifications, quality compliance, and others as
set forth in purchase contracts are consistent.
If identified as compliant, such materials may
be warehoused. Any material identified as non-
compliant is required to be separated with a
label, which will not be warehoused or used for
production processes.

EmEE

rEESEREREERELE
RHEEREENEHRLT RIRE -
NEEE R R BRI B E A EE AR AR
BIEEN LEEEERDE -

TRAEEFROME e ERG -
& - H AP 05% K R AL E
13180 9001 B = E BB ZRE ©
BEBME  TEHIE ERR
BRIEXEESE | REM B RER
BRIZE REETERBRMEE

AEEIF - RBEHESR -

RBEBSZEEE RESR
EFTIZIEE B - mEEX
ERE B ERRBRAEKA
AAE -BRBENTEEDA
PREEIrBh E1E 4 T8 AR
BREELRF -
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Upon completion of products, the manufacturing
department is required to carry out inspection
work in accordance with the “PQC Operation
Instruction” and “Inspection and Test
Management Procedures”. The inspection scope
shall cover parts pending production, semi-
finished products, finished products not yet
stored and production samples.

EmEkg RELARIER
[PQCIEEEEE ] K [t
EREERRFIETRR - Em
MR E e RARRALEEN
TEMF M HARAED
Ram R AEERm e

Treatment upon Inspection

BEBENEE

Preparation Before Inspection In-progress Inspection

BB AT AR TE WER TEEST

Ensure documents and inspection  Verify whether products are
instruments related to products consistent with those set
are all in place forth in orders

BREMMEBBAXHERRIAE ZRYERELH

B ®

Arrange inspection orders based Check items required for
inspection under the

on the production processes,
delivery schedule, and production  standards

progress

BIF RNFRRIREEER

R BRI

2 IR AT AR TE A 24 TR B

Use proper equipment to
conduct various inspections
EREEESETSERR

The Factory emphasizes the disposal of non-
compliant products, in which case, products
identified as non-compliant will be disposed in
accordance with the “Non-compliant Product
Control Procedures”. The Factory has also
developed the “Product Recall Procedures”.
In case of any product sold to the market but
identified as having safety hazards, the Factory
will recall and deal with the same according to the
established procedures, ensuring product quality
and public safety. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any case related to
product recall.

EREERBRARF FiR 2021

Separate and isolate compliant
products and non-compliant
products

HaRmMTetmo ik

B B

Box finished products and
complete the warehousing
procedures with labels and
QC marks attached

KEKm TRAERF - I
RANZRE AN QCIREL

Prepare quality inspection
reports and arrange disposal
of non-compliant products

REEERBBENTHR
BAEEm

THREATARMMNEE &
BRTIERNERERITEER
ZHIREF I BRE - TRRINHIE [ E
mAmEEF]  —BEHBREAR
EREMNEMRATS T
SRBEEFARKEIE
REMEERABRLE - ®E
HfE - AREEEBRITAE
mA EEZE -



The Factory has prepared the “Procedures to
Use, Manage, and Control Product Certification
Labels”, under which, all certified products
must be attached with the certification labels
prior to their shipments. Use of compulsory
certification marks shall be in compliance with the
requirements under the Management Measures
on Compulsory Product Certification Mark. Use
of compulsory certification marks is not permitted
for uncertified products, non-compliant products,
and certified products that are modified without
certification by any certification body, none of
which therefore is permitted for shipment.

The Group places a high value on smooth
communications channels with our customers to
fulfil customer demands. Our complaint channel
enables our customers to submit complaints
and suggestions regarding service or commaodity
quality. According to our “Customer Complaint
Handling Procedures”, upon receiving customer
complaints, our sales department will e-mail
the relevant complaints to the quality control
department, while the quality control manager
will review such customer complaints before
appointing our quality engineers to launch
investigation into the said customer complaints.
The quality engineers will analyze the causes
and determine which department shall be held
accountable before the follow-up procedures
take place. The sales department will respond to
the customers in connection with the merits of
the complaint and corrective actions to be taken
or precautions to be implemented. In addition,
customer satisfaction in settlement results will
be surveyed until the relevant complaint is fully
resolved. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any customer complaint.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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As part of good corporate governance maintained
by the Group, security of customer data is also
the key to cultivating a long standing trusted
relationship with our customers. To avert
information risk, effectively secure information,
and enhance the responsiveness of processing
information, the Factory has formulated the
“Corporate Information Management Measures”,
pursuant to which, in-house information regarding
our operations will be managed under various
security levels. In addition, publication guidelines
and directories for confidential information will be
established to ensure information is published
and communicated in a correct and controllable
manner.

In connection with advertising, the Group has
appointed legal advisors to provide legal opinions
and perform their duty of oversight. In case that
any advertisement is found false or exaggerating,
we will immediately cease to circulate such
false advertisement and eliminate the negative
effects by issuing a clarification announcement
accordingly. In the future, the Group will establish
advertisement management policies to enhance
our management of product responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
identify any non-compliance case related to
product responsibility.

Intellectual Property Rights and Information
Security

The Group registered various trademarks for the
Group itself and its products in the PRC, to foster
its corporate image. The Group relies on the
relevant laws and regulations to protect its brand
names, trademarks and other intellectual property
rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group was not aware of any material infringement
by the Group of any intellectual property rights
owned by any third parties. Further, there were
no pending or threatened material claims made
against the Group with respect to the infringement
of intellectual property rights owned by the Group.

EREERBRARF FiR 2021
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s 3

B /A

WwE oA

(iiy  Anti-corruption

(i) RES

Anti-corruption is already one of the basic
principles for the international community to
define corporate social responsibility. The Chinese
government has been playing an active role in
carrying out anti-corruption campaigns in recent
years. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance policy
on acts of corruption in any form, including bribery
and extortion, fraud and money laundering, by
undertaking that it conducts its business in an
honest, ethical and good faith manner. The “Anti-
corruption and Anti-bribery Control Procedures”
of the Group clearly stipulates that our employees
are prohibited from providing special treatments
and seeking any form of benefits from our
customers, suppliers or any business associates.
The Factory encourages our employees and
external stakeholders to report corruption
incidents, in which case, whistle-blowers will
be properly rewarded with their identities kept
confidential, and they will be provided with
personal protection and job security.

The Factory has specified the code of conduct
for our employees in its “Business Ethics and
Integrity Control Procedures” to demonstrate
the Group’s determination against employees
seeking personal gains by abusing their powers
or by taking advantage of their positions. All
employees at the Factory shall be required to
enter into the “Employee Undertaking”, and our
employee training also emphasizes the business
integrity policy and anti-corruption contents.
Any employee in violation of the business ethics
and integrity control procedures will be subject
to corporate penalties. To enhance cooperation
with suppliers on integrity, the Factory and our
suppliers have entered into the “Business Integrity
Cooperation Agreement” to clarify the rules to
prevent either side from committing bribery, as
well as establishing whistle-blowing procedures
for corruptive actions. Directors and employees
received training from time to time to ensure that
they comply and familiar with the anti-corruption
guides, policies and procedures of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group complied with all applicable laws on
prohibiting corruption and bribery of the PRC
and there was no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

(iv) Data protection and privacy policy

The Group is committed to protecting the
privacy of its customers, employees, business
partners and suppliers by maintaining a safe
and secure data environment. The Group has
implemented appropriate policies to ensure that
all personal and business data collected during
the Group’s business activities are organised and
secured properly. Computers and servers are
protected from access passwords, Employees
are instructed of their responsibility to follow the
confidentiality code on the access to information
and to ensure the safekeeping of all personal,
customer and business data, trade secrets and
proprietary information. Employees are prohibited
from disclosing the information to unauthorised
parties

B.3 Community investment

The Group acknowledges corporate social
responsibility and allocates resources to satisfy the
needs of the community. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group focused on environmental
protection as well as cultural and sport promotion.
The Group encouraged its employees to participate
charitable events. Going forward, the Group will
continue to focus on community needs and increase
its investment in community.
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The Esg Reporting Guide Content Index of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

TEEHE - E® - Description
—REBRBRENES fut

B
ERE

EXZMERRARE
AHREESIARRG

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
RIE - #HERERKREERA
B8 B8

© 4t

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements
BAHIEERE

Governance Structure
A AjJD T%

A statement from the board containing

the following elements:

HEFSHLNER  EHhEF T

R

() adisclosure of the board’s
oversight of ESG issues;
KEEFSHRE HekeEn
EHNEE

(i)  the board’s ESG management
approach and strategy, including
the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material

ESG-related issues (including risks

to the issuer’s businesses); and
EFTENRR HERECER
7 RS - BRI B
JIREBBENRE HERE
BB EE (BEEEITAER
R BiBE - K&

(i)  how the board reviews progress
made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

EESNAEKRERER HERER
1R B IR e EE - WERET M
W] BB 1T A TS B &
Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on,
e R SR Al
in the preparation of the ESG Report.

RS MEBEERHRE HgRER

¥ I a0 4R FE A BE 3R R B -

the application of the reporting principles

ESG GOVERNANCE

ESG STRATEGIES
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
RE - HERER

R 48 REIARE
EBENE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
BEE 7 JR B
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@ - Description RE - HERERREEE
—REBRBRENES i = 4-0 3l

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD
I R &6 boundaries of the ESG report and &1 1% I [ 3 25

Aspect A1: Emissions
A1FETH : BER
General Disclosure
—R R

KPIA1.1
RABE B IR AT

78

describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included
in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the
difference and reason for the change.
REIRIE - e NEIRMENE R

C R PR L B BB E A
BE e RERARSHIBERE - BE
HREEFANE  BITAREETR
ZEREHRRA -

Information on:

BRABERIOAEREBHR - MKk L

WEEES AEREEEYMNELSN

(@ the policies; and
126 33

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and
nonhazardous waste.
BFHETAREATENHEHA
FERPIERNER -

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BEm s M AARE BRI -
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A.1 Emissions

HE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RIR - HERERE

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

RE (&)

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEZE - EM@ - Description RE - HEREARREEE
—REERBERENES it —3:0 -1

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in A.1 Emissions — (i) Greenhouse gas
FAREBIEEAL2 tonnes) and intensity. emissions

KPIA1.3
RAREMIERALS

Aspect Al: Emissions
A1FEE : B

KPI A1.4
BRERIERA14

KPI A1.5
FAS A MIEIRALS

KPIA1.6
RS A ISR AL.6

BEpE 2R M ARRR R N EUR -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FREEBEEYRAE (LAETE) IR
& o

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEAXEEEYESE (UEAE) RE
fE o

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.
i UR R b SR PSR ©

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEEAERESEDMN L B
BEEV R b SR PG RCR ©

PER— (i) B = R BB HE

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
(Not applicable — Explained)
PEm— (i) B EREEY (T EB -
8)

A.1 Emissions — (iv) Non-hazardous
waste

PE—(v) EEEEY

A.1 Emissions

HE

A.1 Emissions — (i) Hazardous waste
R — (i) B EREE Y

A.1 Emissions — (iv) Non-hazardous
waste

BER— (v BREEEY
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EBH-

—BREBERBRENER

WwE oA

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2EH : EREH
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI A2.1
FAR A B IR A2.1

KPI A2.2
RS A M IEIRA2.2

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2fBH : BREMR
KPIA2.3
RS AR M IEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
MR ENIERA2.4

KPI A2.5
FARIEIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRFEAER(BIEER  KEEMRER
MR BIBGR

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENESNEER IHEEREIRR

Water consumption in total and intensity

BIEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

A BE IR A a5 5T B AT IS AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
HSKEGER KR FESEMEE -
AR RKE TS RAEXR -

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
XA BEMEREE (UBEETHE)
REBEEEGHAE -
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A.2 Use of resources

BIREM

A.1 Emissions

HER

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR—(v) K H#E

A.1 Emissions

B

A.1 Emissions — (v) Water consumption

HERR —(v) X #E

A.1 Emissions — (iv) Non-hazardous
waste

PR — (V) B EREEY)

Our activities do not create packaging
material in significant quantities
BANEBEHTEELERENEE
R
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES i

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEMH:  RERBRER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s
— B H R significant impact on the environment

and natural resources.

BEBRTABRERBARBEREKE

R BHBUR o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of
B AR B 1R AB.1 activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBEDHEHRRERABAERNE
ARENREBRBEETEMENRNITE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

AdfEE : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation

— AR R of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
BRIREHE RN HEITAE

TENEARGEEBEENBR -

KPI A4 Description of significant climate-related
AR BB E A4 issues which have impacted and/or may
impact the issuer and the actions taken
to manage them.
HIER RIS HBETAELTE
MERRGHEBEERELHTTE -

A.3 The environment and natural
resources

BREMARER

A.3 The environment and natural
resources
RERBARER

A.4 Climate change
IR

A.4 Climate change
IR
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration

TEHE - EM@ - Description RE - HERERREEE
—REBRBRENES i = 4-0 3l
Aspect B1: Employment
B1EE : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: B.1 Employment and labour practices
—RRBEE BRAHINE R BERET I BRERRBITER
BH - TERE 2l REKMN
NEMFS KB
(@ the policies; and
B R
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BFHBETARERZENEA
FERDERONER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by and gender, B.1 Employment and labour practices

A B 45 WUIE IR B1.1

KPI B1.2
RS A M IE1RB1.2

82

employment type age group and
geographical region.

RIER - EBEER - FRARN KR
EINHES A -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region.
RIER - Fiedn MR E| 5 ES

EREERBRARF FiR 2021

— (i) Employment — Total employees

and turnover

BERMSEIER-()ERE-EE
B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment — Total employees
and turnover
BELEIER-(VER—ES
BELREX
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - E@E -
—REBRBRENES

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2EH : REEZ2
General Disclosure

—RERE

KPI B2.1
MR AR R B2.1

KPI B2.2
AR A IEIEB2.2

KPIB2.3
FAREMIE1RB2.3

Information on:

AL TIHEREIREREE R

RBEBEN

(@) the policies; and
126 33

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
BFHETAREAZENEHA
FERPIERNER -

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.
TERT ABKREE-

Lost days due to work injury.
IEEIRE-

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

AP ERA R R 2
ARAEEHITRERTTE -
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B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
B8 55 TH A — (i) 8 B iR

ZE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
BB NS THMR—(i)ESRERE
fogea

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
ERARSETER—(i)ESRRER
z5

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employee health and safety
BEMSTER—()EERRESR

=
ZFE
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Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE EE -
—REBRBRENES

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3EME : B&RERIEI
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B3.1
PRS2 45 M 515 B3

KPI B3.2
FASAE M 515 B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BAEME : B T1E%E
General Disclosure

—MRIXER

KPI B4.1
FASEAE M FE15 B4

KPI B4.2
FASAE M 515 B4.2

84 =

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
FBRRAEERTIEBRENME KL
RREERBUR - i BDIES -

Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.
RUERINEEREFNEONXIEER
PG

Average training hours completed by
gender and employee category.
BURINESERE D - BT
bl

Information on:

BRABTIEE T oo %% Ta

(@) the policies; and
BR R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to

preventing child and forced labour.

ETHBETABEARTENER
ERPERER -

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

it EREBOINERAREET
Neglgs T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
HAERREZHRABAREREETR
PRERER B 25 5% ©

BEIERBMR AR F3k 2021

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

EfR NS TER—(v) & REII

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training
BIRKRSE TER—(v) &R IKE

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (iv) Development and training

RN S THER—(v) & REII

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment

BEESETER—-(ER

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment

EBRESIER-()VER

B.1 Employment and labour practices
— (i) Employment

BELSTER—()ERE
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
FEHE E@H- Description

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
RiE - HEREARKREEER

—REBRBRENES i = 4-i 3l

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

B5fEME : ftESEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and ~ B.2 Operating practices — (i) Supply
— M= social risks of the supply chain. chain management

ERHEENRE R ERABREK -

KPI B5.1 Geographical locations of major
A NIE1E BS.1 suppliers
TEHERMIBLE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to
AR A MIEIEBS.2 engaging suppliers
Tt 75 A 8 B it P B8 B EIR ER Y IR IR
EtgRBEER  ARBERITR

ERTE
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
FR A IETEB5.3 environmental and social risks along

the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

T PR E R R e (2 2 IRIRE
o R ARG EE B - LA R ABRE AT R E

=Tk
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote
A WIEIEB5.4 environmentally preferable products

and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

i E RS A e A 1E Rl -

B.2

B.2

B.2

B.2

RETHR-(HERER

Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBER-—(HEEEE

Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REBH—()HEEERE

Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
REFH—()HEEER

Operating practices — (i) Supply
chain management
KEBH—()HEEER
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FTEHE E@H- Description
—REBRBRENES i

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6EH: EmEME
General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B6.1
MR 1R BB 1

KPI B6.2
RS AR M 515 B6.2

KPI B6.3
FASAE M I515B6.3

KPI B6.4
PR AE M 1515 B6.4

KPI B6.5
FAR A 515 B6.5

86 =

Information on:

BAFMREERNRBENRREL S -

BE BB NLEEE AR ER

(@) the policies; and
BK K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
BTHBETABEAZENEH
FERPIERONER -

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EERCEXEMBRETEAREHEE
RIEBMARKNEDLL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BREBNERMRBHRFEHE AR
eI 7% -

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

it EEF AR BB ERBENER -

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.

it E R Bz & 2 om0 AR Fr o

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored
MUHEEERRERILEBE - A
NMEBBHRITRERTTE -

BEIERBMR AR F3k 2021

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

EEER—(\EREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KREBR—(NEmBE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

RERHR—(EREE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility
KEBR—(ERBE

B.2 Operating practices — (i) Product
responsibility

BEER—(EmEE

B.2 Operating practices — (iv) protection
and privacy policy

R IR — (V) RIS R LB BUR
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RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject areas, aspects,
general disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - E@E -
—REBRBRENES

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7EE: RES

General Disclosure
—RERE

KPI B7.1
RAR A M5 1R BT A

KPI B7.2

BB A8 IR BY .2

KPI B7.3
AR B UIEIEBT.3

Information on:

BEM ILEER PR CHGFROEREN

(@ the policies; and
BE K

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BFHBETARERZENEHA
ERRERNER -

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

R ESHEHETAIEERLLE
BRENESFDRRITHBE LRFAER -

Description of preventive measures
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HORFh B E i RABERIT RER A

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HmEERE ITRHENREFE

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption
KEBR—(VRET

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption

BB — (i) R &S

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption

& ER — (i) R BT

B.2 Operating practices — (jii) Anti-
corruption

RE TR — (i) R &S
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RE-HERER

Subject areas, aspects,

general disclosures and KPIs

FEHE - EBH-
—REERBRERIER

WwE oA

Description

it

Relevant section in the
ESG report/Declaration
B #HERERBEEE
—3:0 -1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8EMH :  HERE
General Disclosure
— M=

KPI B8.1

A B 45 IR 15 B8.1

KPI B8.2
RARAMIERB8.2

Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

Bt RS T BEIT AT E
SR e R 35750 Eh R M At (& R &R Y
K -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
FEFEHBMEAER (AR
F'EEJ) °

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
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B.3 Community investment
rREKRE

B.3 Community investment

HERE

B.3 Community investment

HERE



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EETHE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders of
the Company the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in the business of offering
comprehensive assembling and production services of PCBA
in the PRC integrating research and design, selection and
procurement of raw materials, assembling of PCBAs, quality
control, testing, logistics and aftersales services. Details of the
principal activities of the Company and it's subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year is set out in the
sections of Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Environmental, Social and Governance Report and the
paragraphs below. The Group complies with the requirements
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) for the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
also complies with the requirements of Employment Ordinance
and ordinances relating to occupational safety for the interest of
employees of the Group. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Concentration of customers

The Group has a concentration of customers and any decrease
or loss of business from these major customers could adversely
and substantially affect our operations and financial conditions.

Fluctuations in the price of raw materials
Fluctuations in the price of raw materials may affect our cost
of sales and adversely affect our business operations and
profitability.

EEZEMARAARARRREZBEE_T—_—F
T_A=1T - BLFENFREEERRA
K

FER®
AEBEERTEEEREEEATE  &RF
R KR E N IREE - PCBAKE - BE1%H] -
A IR R E R RS M 2 EPCBAKE M A
ERG - ARAREMBERATNEIZXKH
BER &R E MR M EE 1 RFFE13 -

E3 e
AEERFENEBEOEHIENIFERS &
EBEEMmEON RE  HERERARENR
TXHE - AEBEBTEERFGE - LR
Al &5 R EIE G (5 RAEERA) B
AREERREEERNRE AEETE
TGO RBELZZRBGRINEE A
REAEEREENEZEDZ AAFERERE
BAEHAKEAEZENERSH -

FREBEE
TXERAREAGN EERR R TREAE -

L
AEENEFET KEXZIZEFPHNE
fa] SR 0R A 3l 2K AT 3 P A0 AR & B B S IR
RER TN REBATE -

R # BHE S K B
RMBERRBDREZERMINHEERAS &
MHARPIEHE L RBFENEETFZE -
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Fail to anticipate and respond to technology
changes

If our Group does not quickly respond to the rapidly changing
and rigorous needs of our customers or enhance the scope
of our existing EMS that can respond to advanced technology
changes or our customers’ needs, our competitive position,
profitability and business prospects may be adversely affected.

Trade protection measures and trade disputes
between the United States and the PRC

The uncertainties on the trade restriction policies resulting from
the trade disputes between the United States and the PRC may
cause difficulties for our customers to project their purchasing
plans and may cause them to reduce their orders from our
Group.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of
business intelligence to understand customer trends and needs
and regular analyse on customer feedback. The Group also
keep ourselves abreast of the development of latest technology
advancement in the industries.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 118 to 121.

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

90 mmiEBRERAT F17 2021
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TXE SN EHE SR HIBRRNTHEE
AIREB BB M T P UATE AR S RE S -
WAREBHBEFRDRAKE AT E -

AEEBETRAEGELRREFEMARTPL,H
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Closure of the Register of Members

For the purposes of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 27 May 2022 (Friday), the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 24 May 2022 (Tuesday) to 27
May 2022 (Friday), both days inclusive. The latest time to lodge
transfer documents for registration will be at 4:30 p.m. on 23 May
2022 (Monday). During the above closure period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2022.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s article of association or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in the note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Management Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company or its subsidiaries were
entered into or existed during the year.

EEnERMBFEREFE
ABREEBREFAEREBEARABEN -Z
——FRAZTEH(EHA) BITHERR
HBEFRGIRE LRI AARER=2F
T FRAtWMBE(EHO)EE_—F
FA-+tB(EHRH) (2EaEmA)H
HEERERMAFERFE BEXBAFX
HUAREBEELNREREA S -__F8A
—+=ZRA(EH ) TTFER=+5 R i
EERERATEETRODERZE - BFAE
BEREEREAFAGIREG ERRER AT
BRPXHERBERERBFRELAR
—E-—FERA-+=B(BH ) THEE
=+ RRIEREARNBNBEEROHBEERLS
BREEEAERRARAR W AEBER
RNBR18IIRAEFIR D541 o

BERBERE
ARABHERAEN NSRS ERHES
MELHEENOE  BEAARERER
OB R IR 2 SR -

BE BOxUHEALQR LHmES

BEXHBBES  BEDEARTRIE
AW SRR EBE  HEREEARAE
7 ETES -

&
ARAREASERFEFANHBEBFED 5
NGRS HRRIM T8 A EREE K

BEEEY
R TR E SN - AR FRE R T

VEFEABEEREEARARALENBL
AZRREMERBLIEBHEL -

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021 91



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the Reporting Period, sales to single largest customer
of the Group and the five largest customers of the Group in
aggregate accounted for approximately 41.7% and 86.7% (2020:
approximately 29.4% and 88.8%) of the total revenue of the year,
respectively. During the Reporting Period, purchases from the
single largest supplier of the Group and the five largest suppliers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 20.2%
and 38.5% (2020: approximately 16.6% and 48.7%) of the total
purchases of the year, respectively. None of the Directors of the
Company or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Hao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bizhong

Mr. Xu Shizhen

Ms. Li Bigiong (appointed on 18 October 2021)
Mr. Hao Xiangjun (appointed on 1 April 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Yuan Shuntang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund

Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Wu Tai Cheung (resigned on 18 October 2021)
Ms. Mu Lingxia (appointed on 18 October 2021)
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Mr. Li Hao and Mr. Zhang Bizhong will retire in accordance with
article 108(a) of the Articles at the Company’s forthcoming AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Hao Xiangjun, Ms. Li Bigiong and Ms. Mu Lingxia will retire
in accordance with article 112 of the Articles at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Articles of the Company,
every Director shall retire from office once every three years and
for this purpose, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest one-third but not less than one-third
shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors to retire in every
year will be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise
agree between themselves) be determined by lot. Subject to the
Articles, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at the
meeting at which he or she retires. For avoidance of doubt, each
Director shall retire at least once every three years.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of the Company, at
any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the members in general meeting. Any Director
S0 appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be eligible for re-election at such meeting.
Any Director so appointed by the Board shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 26
of this annual report.

RIFADRIZE108() 6k » FIEXERRLBRE
BRARBERERRBEFRG LRE XA
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for an
initial term of one year or three years. All the service agreements
may be terminated by either party by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s or three months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term one
year. All the appointment may be terminated by either party by
giving to the order party not less than one month or three months
prior notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
or compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

Directors’ Interests In Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the company or his or her connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company (“Director” or “Directors”)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the
Reporting Period.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions In Shares, Underlying
Shares And Debentures

As at 31 December 2021, interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) held by the Directors and chief executive of the
Company which have been notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been
entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for are as follows:

EERESTHRAERKG - HE
ROKEEINEERAR

RZTE-—FE+-_A=+—H ARFESE
MESITERABRARR RETAEEERE (F
EREBHFRBEEGEXVE) ARG - HEIK
DREEETHBCREZESFBEKRGE
XVEBE 7 R 8D EMEG AN DA KR Ay
AR (BIERIEZSLPEEGEBIEH
BERGIERERENEZ AR HERLALR
AIIRIE 3B 5 M HR B 1601 26 352 k17 & My = s it
RERBIZETASITANE AR R LB AT
mRERSAR T ¢

(i) Interests in our Company (i) RZAERQ RN ERS

Number of Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares" shareholding (%)
EEnH EHRMEE BRoOHEO BRE DL (%)
Mr. Li Interest in a controlled corporation® 99,881,250 (L) 39.95
3 REEEBEREZR
Mr. Yuan Interest in a controlled corporation® 46,950,000 (L) 18.78
RAE&E NEE LB REZRO
Mr. Zhang Interest in a controlled corporation® 27,543,750 (L) 11.02
SRS R EE SR
Notes: B

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  These Shares are held by Skyflying Company Limited (the “Skyflying”).
Skyflying is wholly owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is also the sole director of
Skyflying. Therefore, Mr. Li is deemed or taken to be interested in the
Shares held by Skyflying under the SFO.

(8)  These Shares are held by Central Wealth Limited (the “Central
Wealth”). Central Wealth is wholly owned by Mr. Yuan. Mr. Yuan is also
the sole director of Central Wealth. Therefore, Mr. Yuan is deemed or
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Central Wealth under the
SFO.

(4)  These Shares are held by Realtime Limited (the “Realtime”). Realtime
is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang. Mr. Zhang is also the sole director of
Realtime. Therefore, Mr. Zhang is deemed or taken to be interested in
the Shares held by Realtime under the SFO.

() FEILKEZALRBOOEE «

(2  #ZZE R e Skyflying Company Limited ([ Skyflying 1)
BB -Skyflyingi ZERE2BERB - FTRENA
Skyflying ¥ —Z 5 - F it - BIRFFH R AEEK -
2= AR B S E 1B B Skyflying BT AR 15 RO RE2S ©

(3)  #ZZEMAP i Central Wealth Limited ([ Central Wealth |)
A o Central Wealth R R A £ 2 EHH - RELLEN
A Central Wealth®) i —Z F - FH It - IRIEFFH L H
BB - =5 A AR R sk E YEHE A Central Wealth BT
RO E R -

@) %% %15 B Realtime Limited ([ Realtime |) # 74 °
Realtime 3 5 5 &£ 2 B # A © 5K 5t & 7T /4 Realtime £
W—EE - FY REZESRBEED - RAEWE
530 E {EE B Realtime FT#5 AR 7 B9 #E 25 -
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(ii) Interests in the ordinary shares of associated
corporation

(i) RIS S B 0 25 B

Name of

associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests shares™  shareholding (%)
EEsE HEEE SR EEMtE RGBEO BHRE DL (%)
Mr. Li Skyflying Beneficial owner ( 100
oA ERnBBEA
Mr. Yuan Central Wealth Beneficial owner 1L 100
RiEHE EmEEA
Mr. Zhang Realtime Beneficial owner L 100
SRAEA BB A
Note: B

1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
relevant associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates had
registered any interests or short positions in any shares and
underlying shares in, and debentures of, the Company or any
associated corporations as at the date of this report, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debenture

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the Reporting
Period and to the date of this report was the Group a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, and including
debentures, of the Group or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Others’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this report,
the following corporations/persons (other than our Directors
and chief executives of the Company) had interests of 5% or
more in the issued Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

FTERREHEMATRARS RE
EROHERR AR

BERRM RAREEH  UTEE AL
(RRREEFRZSTTHRABRIN RE#ETT
By ERIRIEE S LB IRAIEXVERE2
Ko 37 BREV R SCZR A AN A A B B SR BT 0 B Bk
AR RBRIERE 7 M B IRPIF 336 1R BEFE
BB RL M A H) 5% 3 IA EHESS ¢

Number of
Shares held/

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest interested Percentage (%)
BE RERE

MRER & ERME W5 EE B2 (%)

Skyflying Beneficial owner 99,881,250 39.95
BEm#EE A ordinary Shares
99,881,250 A% & i@ A%

Central Wealth Beneficial owner 46,950,000 18.78
BB A ordinary Shares
46,950,000 f% 3% @ A%

Ms. Zhang Juan Interest of spouse 46,950,000 18.78
SR A0+ B {8 4 2 ordinary Shares
46,950,000 A% & i8R

Realtime Beneficial owner 27,543,750 11.02
BEmfEE A ordinary Shares
27,543,750 & E A

Ms. Chen Juan Interest of spouse 27,543,750 11.02
FR 48 20 & B (8 4 2 ordinary Shares
27,543,750 IR E @Ak

Regan International Growth Fund SPC  Beneficial owner 16,286,000 6.51
(the “IGF”) EREEA ordinary Shares
(MGF 16,286,000 % & i i%

Regan Fund Management Company Beneficial owner 22,162,000 8.86

Limited (the “Regan Fund”)
(TRegan Fund )

Note :

EmEAA

ordinary Shares
22,162,000 % & 3@ A%

MeE

(1) These Shares are held by IGF and Regan Global All Weather Strategy Fund
SPC (“AWS”) with 16,286,000 shares and 5,876,000 shares, respectively.
Regan Fund is the Investment Manager for IGF and AWS. Therefore, Regan
Fund is deemed or taken to be interested in the Shares held by IGF and
AWS.

()

Z E W 15 o Bl i IGF & Regan Global All Weather
Strategy Fund SPC ([ AWS |) #5 % 16,286,000 & &
5,876,000 f% ° Regan Fund % IGF 2 AWS 18 & 4838 o
& It © Regan Fund# 1% & 3t & fE R IGF R AWS 5 &

BB 1 i A AR
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Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company, as at the date of this report which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

Arrangement for Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Saved as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above and in the section “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were such rights
exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates has
engaged in or has any interest in any business that competes or
may compete with the business of the Group, or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the Reporting Period
and up to the date of this report.

Mr. Li and Skyflying (together the “Controlling Shareholders”),
had entered into a non-competition deed dated 20 September
2019 (the “Non-competition Deed”) in favour of the Company
(for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant
to which, each of the Controlling Shareholders would not, and
would procure his/its associates not to (other than through the
Group or in respect of each covenanter (together with his/its
associates), as a holder of not more than 5% of the issued shares
or stock of any class or debentures of any company listed on any
recognized stock exchange) directly or indirectly carry on, engage
or otherwise be interested (in each case whether as shareholder,
partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or
otherwise) in any business which may be in competition with
the business carried on by the Group from time to time, except
where the Company’s approval is obtained.

98 mmammARAT £ 2021

BEXFHBESN  RARE B HEAL
N EREDTHA B AL AR AAT -
HEBTRARAETEMARESS RS
£ 1 S XV BB 2 ]2 3.5 BB A I X AR AL A 8
BERBESRARREALAAREES
% 505 4151 3 336 14/B 17 B K0 B R 0 48
R -

EERERONIEEIZNZH

BREXTEERERTRABRED - HEK
R ERENERIAR] B R TXBR
BEtE —EMEEEIN RER > ARAE
MEFHAREFSBNRBIRKF T RLHE
EREMNAEBALRRRRD R EREES
METEZSEN  ARF - EERARNE
fA] B B8 & B IR BT SLAEAA 22 8F - BUE AR X )
EFAEBAKRR B SAEMHEMEBEBNKD
REBES (BEREEE) -

EERBEHERRNER

RBEBHREEARE DS EEREM
WEEANBRAMBREEMRAEEE
BRFATLBFOEBREARSERY
fEfaigss - TR A EE A EAE TR -

ZF 55 4 K Skyfying (AL 78 [#EBRRR]) R =&
—NENAAZTHEUARE (REARH RARK
AEEAAKERR]) /Xt AT AFHFR
BEIMHFRED Bt SERERTS
TS RELHEATE FRIFBEAKENH
BUREAFAEBREBEAME - BF
THEAREARAESRS A EMHEARQ
B2 BITAO ST A B A {0 SRR AERE HY 5% )
EESRAZERAR CETMAHAERAKER
HRRNEEBEFNEBIAEMTARE
THBEREES (BERSSIERER B A
REFEMTN - T IAwEERR T Fa - 2E
FEMERE) - HERSARRBRIEERI



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

In order to ensure the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling
Shareholders has provided to the Company a written confirmation
(i) in respect of his/its compliance with the Non-competition Deed
for the Reporting Period : (ii) no personal interests were ever
declared by any Controlling Shareholders who are also Directors
at the Directors’ meetings : and (iii) stating that they have not
entered into any business which may be in competition with the
business carried on by the Group from time to time. As there
was no change in terms of the undertaking since the Company’s
listing on the Stock Exchange, the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are of the view that the Controlling
Shareholders have complied with the Non-competition Deed and
no matters are required to bring to the attention of the public.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme was conditionally adopted on 20
September 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”), which became
effective on the Listing Date. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
motivate the contributions that the eligible participants had or
may have made to the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to any
employee (full-time or part-time), consultant or adviser of our
Group, Directors, shareholder of our Group, or any supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of our Group
(together, the “Eligible Participants” or each “Eligible Participant”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Share Option
Scheme, the maximum numbers of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 25,000,000 shares)
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company. The 10%
limited may be renewed by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting from time to time provided always that the 10%
limited so renewed must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of approval of such renewal by the shareholders of
the Company.
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No option shall be granted to any Eligible Participants which, if
exercised in full would result in the total number of the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled, and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant exceeding 10% in aggregate of
the shares in issue as at the date of such grant.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Directors, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption and
the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 7
years and 6 months.

No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme up to the date of this report.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements. For the year ended
31 December 2021, none of these related party transactions
are connected transaction which are subject to the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
such transactions.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold
certain machinery to Shenzhen Puneda Electronic Co., Ltd.*(}%
P gEEE T A R 2 al), which is connected person at the
subsidiary level under the Listing Rules, at a consideration of
RMB4,268,000. This transaction was exempted from reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. Details were disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

* For identification purpose only
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Future Prospect and Development

With reference to the Prospects section of the Chairman’s
Statement, the Group will continue to diversify or expand our
customer base and keep pace with the latest technologies to
deliver PCBAs that can be applied to our customers’ innovative
electronic products and provide engineering solutions to our
customers. We will continue to strive a balance among the
interests of shareholders, employees and customers, and pursue
long-term and sustainable development for the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the
purpose of to making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of the external auditor, to review the
financial statements and related materials and provide advice
in respect of the financial reporting process, and to oversee the
internal control procedures and risk management of our Group.
The Audit Committee now comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun
Sek Edmund (Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, will retire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company
and be eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution will be submitted to the AGM to be held on 27 May
2022 to seek shareholders’ approval on the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor until the
conclusion of the next AGM and to authorize the Board to fix
their remuneration.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to the
Directors and senior management of our Group, to review and
evaluate their performance in order to make recommendations
on the remuneration package of each of the Directors and
senior management personnel as well as other employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Mu Lingxia
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Zhong and Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 20
September 2019 with terms of reference in compliance with the
Code for the purpose of making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and the management of the
Board succession. The Nomination Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Zhong
(Chairman), Mr. Wong Chun Sek Edmund and Ms. Mu Lingxia.

Corporate Governance Practices

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The percentage of public float of the Company has fallen below
25% (i.e. the prescribed public float applicable to the Company
under the Listing Rules) during the period from 20 August 2021
to 27 September 2021.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 24 August 2021, Regan
Fund had increased its shareholding interests in the Company
and was interested in an aggregate of 25,188,000 Shares,
representing 10.08% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company. Regan Fund then became a substantial shareholder
and a core connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules, and the shares held by Regan Fund will not be counted
towards the public float of the Company. Therefore, the public
float of the Company was approximately 20.17%, which had
fallen below 25% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company to be held by the public as prescribed by Rule 8.08(1)(a)
of the Listing Rules.

102 emesmRrERAT £ 2021

FMEES

ARAMR—FB-NFNLAZTHERIFME
Bg HBESENSTANMRT 5HEE
AEEEERSREEBHENERTIR
RERBRAEESREEBER T k¥
HEEENSREEABNRAUNRBEEN
FHESAREMEE RN HEREER
RoFMEZESM =B IFAITESMMK -
BIRABE R L (XF) RESEREERBELL -

REEES

ARRR—F-NFLAZTHRIERE
Eg HRESKECSATRMNMRE SHNE
FEAEREFQUIERNEZTSRHEER
BR -REZEEH=-RBUIFRTEFTAN
BIRRAEFLLE (XE) HERBEAERFEELL -

ERERER
ARALEERERAERRNAERDEE

EHABRERE

RZBE-_—FNA=-+HE-_ZTE=-—F1A
“+EEHBE ARRNAREFEREE S L
BERR25% (BIRE ERERAR AR A

= N\ oo

MRERRTFRE)

BB AE T —FNA-THHEORS
Fr#% % » Regan Fund & 38 il H A AR A 7 69
BeiEss - WA 25,188,000 B AL 17 7 % A 4
wmoEAREE BTGB E10.08% © BRI
Al Regan FundBE 2K AR AR EE
A% R M 4z 0 B3 A £ Regan Fund#5 & B %
DETFALRRTNARFTRE - Btk - AR
AN ARBRENH20.17% KN LT 8
E8.08NQEEEMARBTENARAALE 2
TR0 #E B8 26% ©



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
EEERE @)

As also disclosed in the announcement dated 28 September
2021, Regan Fund had decreased its shareholding interests in
the Company and was interested in an aggregate of 24,994,000
Shares, representing approximately 9.99% of the total number
of issued Shares of the Company. Regan Fund had ceased to
be a substantial shareholder or a core connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules, and the Shares that Regan
Fund is deemed to be interested in may be counted towards
the public float of the Company. Accordingly, the public float of
the Company has been restored from approximately 20.17% to
approximately 30.25%, which exceeds the Minimum Prescribed
Percentage as prescribed by Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company
had maintained sufficient public float of not less than 25% of its
total issued shares as required under the Listing Rules as at 31
December 2021 and the date of this report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All Directors of the Company have
confirmed that, following specific enquiry by the Company, they
have compiled with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period and to the date of the report.

By order of the Board
Li Hao
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_
pwec

To the Shareholders of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

i
=
=
(e

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 118 to 215, comprising:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition for the provision of manufacturing services

e Impairment provision for inventories

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Revenue recognition for the provision
of manufacturing services

Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December
2021, revenue from the provision
of manufacturing services of
approximately RMB353,896,000 (2020:
RMB246,531,000) was recognised in the
Group’s consolidated income statement.

Revenue from the provision of
manufacturing services is recognised over
the period of the contract using the input
method with reference to the total costs
incurred for the services.

We focused on this area due to the
magnitude of revenue transactions of the
Group and the amount of significant audit
efforts incurred.

106 emesmRERAT 15 2021

Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition for the
provision of manufacturing services included:

e  We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
respect of revenue recognition for the provision of manufacturing
services and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatements
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and other
inherent risk factors;

e We performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by
comparing previous estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated
the outcome of prior period assessment of revenue recognition to
assess the effectiveness of management estimation process;

° We examined, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with
customers and identified the terms and conditions relating to the
timing of transfer of controls of services, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards;

e We checked, on a sample basis, the transaction price of the
revenue recognised during the year from the provision of
manufacturing services to the underlying sales invoices and sales
contracts;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

e We tested, on a sample basis, the actual costs incurred for the
provision of manufacturing services during the year by checking
to underlying supporting documents in relation to direct material
costs, direct labour costs and overhead costs incurred;

° We compared, on a sample basis, the estimated costs of selected
sales contracts to the actual costs of similar sales contracts
completed and enquired management about any significant
variances identified; and

e We recalculated, on a sample basis, revenue recognised from
the provision of manufacturing services during the year based on
transaction prices, the total actual costs incurred and the total
estimated costs on completion.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that the
recognition of revenue from the provision of manufacturing services was
supported by available evidence.

108 ememsmrERAT F135 2021



B
/l,
¥

HENERE @)

MEEITER RANENAEERARETSE
s BMBEBREEEMBNA EEMERS TRARBERKAR
M RBEE A AT AT F AR EBUE IR AT E £/
B

o RFAIUHMENNMEENHES OGS AAEE ST R B L
ERHNELENERKRANETHR  IRBERNIMNBEEEZERR
EEEEH &

o BMIERXSZER EENERBKA LM TTRAFEHNAKRA
AR T X B EF AR IR SUE R AR r Y 2 o

ER L prETREF AR SRHUEERG N W R ERERE R
IRSH

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2021 1 09



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment provision for inventories

Refer to Notes 2.13 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
net inventories of RMB30,460,000 (2020:
RMB25,145,000) which was after the
impairment provision for inventories of
RMB2,724,000 (2020: RMB3,988,000).
During the year ended 31 December
2021, reverse of impairment provision
for inventories of RMB1,264,000 (2020:
impairment provision for inventory of
RMB1,176,000) was recognised.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group operates in a market where
new product releases are regular.
There is a risk that inventories held will
become obsolete in light of technological
advancement and changing market
conditions. Management identifies
obsolete inventories as a result of
technology change, and then applied
allowances on those obsolete inventories
by considering the recoverable amount.

The Group’s management also reviews
the inventory age listing to identify slow
moving and obsolete inventories and
then estimates the amount of allowance
based on the projected excessive quantity
of those inventories considering the
production plan and expected future
market demand as a result of changes in
current market conditions and technology,
and the latest transaction prices.

We focus on this area due to the
significance of inventories balance, and
the judgment involved in estimating
recoverable amount of the obsolete
inventories in management’s impairment
assessment.
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Our audit procedures performed on assessing the impairment provision
for inventories included:

e We understood, evaluated and validated relevant controls over
management’s periodic reviews of impairment provision for
inventories and assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and other
inherent risk factors;

e We performed retrospective review, on a sample basis, by
comparing previous estimates to actual outcome. We evaluated,
on a sample basis, the outcome of prior period assessment of
impairment provision for inventories to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

e We tested, on sample basis, the accuracy of the aging analysis of
inventories;

e We tested, on sample basis, the accuracy of the net realisable
value by reference to the latest transaction price; and

e We discussed with management and assessed the reasonableness
of the impairment provision by challenging management’s
projections on current trends and demands for the remaining
inventories, with reference to historical usage experience.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that the
impairment provision for inventories determined by management was
supportable by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concermn
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

114 gmegmraRAz £ 2021



BRBE M EFT RS M BRRAENEM

BANER RHSAMERREEBRS T FEARAGFRERMEBNBEANBREGANGSERE  LHA
EBREERMABERNZHBERE - RAEABT ELSER) BERMNER - Rt 2 A mEREEME 7Y - M
TERABENATATARMALR ESARIAET AERERFSKINRE  BEFERIRR(ER
BAEADETOE  EX - EXRERBRAGFER B EEA - SRBRA A AR RFFHERSE - MREIETR
HEMEBERLERAEEEFREVBHRREAERBSAMBERRMELNEERTE - BIEBHHERERL
AR EERX -

ERB(ERBAERDETEFHBREY  RAERTEXRHE  RiETEXREREE - BT

o BEBIMFFEANRIFRERMEBGRAMBREGFEEAHREBVAN AR - Rt RATRA BT UEEE
LR - ARERFERMEENBERE  (EARMERMER - ANKGFAI s R BR - RE EF2ER
E R - SR BN AEMESZ £ - FEtREE IR R EEF M S B E AR B R0 E 2 S 7 R e33R E 8
RGN EAHREAA R o

o  THEZRHEBOANES  URFFEENFAEF EENAYFHESEEANNEHNERERRER

s HEEEMRASHBENREEREL S A TERRENS B -

s HERRMAFKBLLSHERNBEEELES - BREMERNETRE BREIRAFEEFRLBENE
BAMEATEEN M AEERH ERENFELLENELETARE - WRR MR /FEEATEEE -
AEVBECBMBRETRBEREIZRGAMBRRTHOEMBEE -BEAHENKEST  MRMARE
BRFBERBER - RANEREERNZBERSE B LAMERGHERE - A - RAFELIFTRAATES
HESBTREFELE -

o HEHRAMBHERNERIBIN SBENAR  BREE URGEEVBBRRESTERBRIZHMENA -

s HESENEBIXBEIBNUBESERTR  @ENBTERE UWEHRAPHERRERER - 1M
BEESEENIR BENRT HAREFERAERIEE-

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021 11 5



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be commmunicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Ka Keung, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —F - —F+_-HA=+—HIF&F

2021 2020
=B —-F —T_EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R ARBT T
Revenue W= B 353,896 246,531
Cost of sales 5 & A AR 6 (299,916) (196,123)
Gross profit EF 53,980 50,408
Other income H b ug A 7 5,757 4,497
Other losses, net H b B8 F58 8 (928) (2,210)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R HAX 6 (3,366) (2,477)
Administrative expenses THRX 6 (42,311) (36,223)
Impairment losses on financial assets & @& E & & REE
and contract assets VEREN R 6 (240) (235)
Operating profit R A 12,892 13,760
Finance income BE WA 10 649 925
Finance costs BhE A AR 10 (1,216) (1,002)
Finance costs, net A R AR R (567) (77)
Profit before income tax B B 18 Bt A g A 12,325 13,683
Income tax expense FrIB A 11 (2,252) (2,143)
Profit for the year FRER 10,073 11,540
Profit/(loss) for the year THERELFER
attributable to: = (EE)
Equity holders of the Company RARIEZFEA 7,241 11,736
Non-controlling interest FEIE R = 2,832 (196)
10,073 11,540
Earnings per share for profit RAEAREBEREFTA
attributable to the ordinary ELEINzEREF
equity holders of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) AERREE(ARES) 12 2.90 4.69
The above consolidated income statement should be read in b ili4z & W2k 2% FE B RE B I 5T — HF RO FE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
n‘IT\ %ELI& %

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF&F

2021 2020
—E-—-fF —T_EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E ARBT R AR T T

Profit for the year FRER 10,073 11,540
Other comprehensive (loss)/ Hitt 2w (FE) WS

income:
Items that will not be reclassified to T2 E# 72 HEas 8978 H

profit or loss
Currency translation differences B E =g (1,711) (4,290)
Equity investments at fair value BAFERT AR MR E

through other comprehensive R ARIZE -

income:
— Fair value losses taken to reserves — &t AREERI A FEEE (5,173) -
- Disposal gains taken to reserves  — & AR H & WS 18 1,116 =
Items that may be reclassified to AJBEEF 7 A2 1B 9 H H

profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation #2585 ) 2 15 H [ 3 = 58

of foreign operations 168 8
Exchange reserve released upon BUH M — BB AR %

deregistration of a subsidiary FR BR NP 5 5 (43) -
Total comprehensive income for FRZE KA

the year 4,430 7,258
Total comprehensive income/(loss) T 5 & F B EREE

for the year attributable to: Wik (E518) 4% -
Equity holders of the Company AREERTFEA 1,598 7,454
Non-controlling interest E 2,832 (196)

4,430 7,258

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income | ili4R & 2 T UK &5 5% & EREE B 3% — GF R GE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER
As at 31 December 2021 R —ZE = —#+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - E K 14 177,744 154,221
Intangible assets mpAE 15 1,278 1,478
Investment in an associate R—EBE QAR 2&E 16 - =
Prepayments and deposits TR RERES 17 3,186 1,530
Deferred tax assets RERIBE E 27 2,403 665
Financial assets at fair value through 1% A (& 5T A fth 2 1 U s
other comprehensive income NEemBEE 18 8,369 =
192,980 157,894
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 21 30,460 25,145
Contract assets EREE 22 55,052 55,188
Trade and bills receivables B 5 e EE e 2R ik 22 52,973 15,290
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FE{HFIE ~ 24 K H b g Uk
receivables A 17 3,286 7,228
Financial assets at fair value through £ A F{EzF ABRHN S 7
profit or loss EiE 19 - 5,001
Financial asset at amortised cost HEBEKATENeREE 23 16,080 =
Pledged bank deposits BIEMIRITER 24 1,695 14,557
Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 24 48,926 104,004
208,472 226,413
Total assets EEHAE 401,452 384,307
Equity s
Equity attributable to equity AATEREEAEMALER
holders of the Company
Share capital N 26 2,250 2,250
Share premium f& 5 % B 26 98,676 98,676
Retained earnings IR &7 65,632 58,979
Reserves & 121,167 126,222
287,725 286,127
Non-controlling interest FERER 10,136 5,804
Total equity FESHAEE 297,861 291,931




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

meEBEEABR ®

As at 31 December 2021 R —ZE = —4#+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET T ARET T
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITRERK 30 7,703 8,048
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 7,553 1,766
Deferred government grants IR FE TR 4 B 31 15,999 10,001
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEAE 27 2,107 =
s S, 33,862 19,815
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables =y AN eE] 28 17,499 18,482
Other payables and accruals BB R E AT SRIE 29 35,147 36,108
Lease liabilities HEAR 25 5,140 4,725
Contract liabilities aRAE 29 1,503 1,487
Current income tax liabilities BIEfFRS R aE 1,752 2,769
Deferred government grants IR E B 4 B 31 4,277 3,101
Bank borrowings RITIENR 30 4,911 5,889
[, 70229 72,561
Total liabilites AfFEew 0 fogse1l 92,376
Total equity and liabilities BERABEE 401,452 384,307

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 215 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf.

Li Hao
o
Director

EZE

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

F118E2I5 BBV BHRERBETEN
T _E-A=+ Bl ETHERARE -

Xu Shizhen

FHE
Director

EFE

N ugoN=

BE

T
S
&t

e PR B 5 — G B -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B{Z2 —F = —F + - H=+—HIFZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAREREARE
Financial assets
atfair value
Share-based through other
Share Share Other payment Statutory Exchange  comprehensive Retained Non-controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve - income reserve eamings Total interest  Total equity
RATEFA
HRBFAfH Ef2EUEN
s ROEE AfER ffE EERE  JERE SREEGR  REEA &t FEREE  BRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR®TR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  ARMTR
(Note (a)) (Note 18)
(M3 (a) (Hz18)
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=%=-%-A-8
i) 2,250 98,676 111,285 752 19,383 (5,148) - 58,979 286,127 5,804 291,931
Profitfor the year )i - - - - - - - 7,241 7,241 2832 10073
Other comprehensive (oss)/ 27 (§%) /s
income
Curency trangation dfferences ~ EXBEEE - - - - - (1,741) - - (1,711) - (1,711)
Bxchange diferences on translation 285 $BHE S 28
of foreign operations - - - - - 168 - - 168 - 168
Exchange resene rekasedupon SRR —EHER AR
deregisiration of asubsidiay  ERSNERE - - - - - 3 - - 3 - @)
Equiy ivesiments atfarvalie. ~ RAFEH AZHZE
thiough other comprehensie  MEARARE
income
- Fair vale losses taken to —TARBHATERR
Tesanes - - - - - - 6.173) - 6:173) - 6173)
- Disposal gains taken toresenves  —F AREAHENG - - - - - - 1,116 - 1,116 - 1,116
- Disposal gains recycled to -BEERARNN
retained eamings HEhE - - - - - - (1,116) 1,116 - - -
Total comprehensive (oss) 27 (§8) /HEAE
income - - - - - (1,586) (173 8,357 159 283 4430
Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Appropriaton (Note o) B (W) - - - - 1,704 - - (1,704 - - -
Capttal contribution from JlERNTA
non-controling interest - - - - - - - - - 1,500 1,500
Total ransactions with owners ~ EEEANRZEE - - - - 1,704 - - (1,704) - 1,500 1,500
Belance at 3 December 2021~ R=%=-%
tzB=1-RiEs 2,250 98,676 11,23 75 21,087 (6734 (173) 66,632 287,75 10,13 297,861

122 emesmpaRAT £ 2021



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
mEEREHR @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #t2 —F ——F+ - H=+—HIFZF

Attributable o equity holders of the Company
ARRERIEAEL

Share-
based Non-
Share Share Other  payment  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controling Total
captal  premum  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  eamings Totd  interest equity
DN

BE RERE REtEE HRERE AEE SEEE REEN & FORES B6EE
RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBO0O  RMBOOD
ARETR ARBTT ARMTT ARBTR ARETT ARKTR ARBTL ARETT ARKTR ARETR

(Note (a))
(Mita)
Balanceat1 January 2020 R=E=FE-f-A
e 2250 98676 111,235 752 17409 (866) 49217 278673 - 218673
Profit/{loss) for the year ERigrl/ (F8) - - - - - - 117% 1173% (196) 11540
Other comprehensive (loss)/  H 2 (H18) /Wi
income
Currency translation differences % AEZ%E - - - - - 420 - [420) )
Exchange differences on BEBNFBOELER
franglation of foreign operations = = = = = 8 = 8 = 8
Total comprehensive loss)/ 27 (§5i8) / K45
income - - - - - 4282 11,736 7454 (196) 7,258

Transactions with owners ~ EHAAKNR S
Appropriation (Note (o) B (kD) - - - - 19n - (197 - - -
Capital contribution from FERERERL

non-controling intereston MK BLARMEE

setting up a new subsidiary - - = = = = = - 6000 6000

Total transactions with owners S#%5 AR 4% - - - - 191 - (1978 - 6000 6000

Balance at 31 December 2020 W=B=%f
TZA=T-BHES 2250 98676 111,23 752 19383 (5,148 58979 286,127 5804 291,93
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
mEREREHR @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 2 —

Notes:

(@)

Other reserve represents the combined share capital and capital reserve
of the companies comprising the Group, after elimination of inter-company
transactions and balances as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 in relation to
the Company’s reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”).

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in the PRC to
provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be appropriated from the
profit after income tax (after offsetting accumulated losses from prior years)
as reported in their respective statutory financial statements, before profit
distributions to equity holders. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes. A PRC company is required to appropriate an amount of not less
than 10% of statutory profits after income tax to statutory surplus reserves,
prior to distribution of its post-tax profits of the current year. A company may
discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserves shall only be used to make up losses of the company, to expand the
company'’s operations, or to increase the capital of the company. In addition,
a company may make further contribution to the discretional surplus reserve
using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the board of
directors.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\/T\ Iﬁaﬁ/)lbg%‘:{

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIF&F

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT R AR T T
Cash flows from operating RETBHHEERE
activities
Cash generated from operations KEMFRE 33(a) 18,586 53,572
Income tax paid B PTEH (2,900) (3,021)
Interest received B F & 649 925
Net cash generated from operating & & EEFT1SIR & F%8
activities 16,335 51,476
Cash flows from investing RETEHHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERZE
equipment (62,676) (71,115)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (544) (1,774)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HE MREZ
plant and equipment FIECE/ S 33(b) 2,830 480
Receipt of government grants for LR B AR WER 2 BUAT # B
purchase of equipment 31 11,738 2,770
Purchase of financial assets at BERAFEFTAEZDN
fair value through profit or loss TREE 19 - (13,952)
Proceeds from disposal of financial & A FEF AEBZERN
assets at fair value through TREEMBHIEA
profit or loss 33(c) 5,000 8,859

Purchase of financial assets at fair B EZ A FEFAHEMEME

value through other comprehensive Wz H) & gl & &

income (23,653) —
Proceeds from disposal of financial &L AFEFFAEMEE

assets at fair value through other e e ® B E EFTFIE

comprehensive income 11,084 -
Purchase of financial asset at BERBHENASRENS R

amortised cost BE 23 (16,352) =
Net cash used in investing activities 12 & /EENFT AR & F 5 (72,573) (74,732)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 82 —F ——F+ - A =+—HIFFZF

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TEETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFT
Cash flows from financing MEITBHEERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEFRPTEFIE 33(d) 19,245 13,511
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBIRITER 33(d) (20,342) (7,652)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank & IR TR D
deposits (1) 12,862 (14,557)
Payment of interests on bank SATRITEHF R
borrowings 33(d) (889) (570)
Payment of principal element of lease X E & EAR S 5
liabilities 33(d) (9,178) (4,310)
Payment of interest element of lease X & & EF 235
liabilities 33(d) (327) (432)
Capital contribution from FEERERETE
non-controlling interest 1,500 6,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) B E EEN 1S, (Fr )
financing activities Re FRE 2,871 (8,010)
Net decrease in cash and cash RekBReEEWRD
equivalents HE (53,367) (31,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at FReRREEED
beginning of the year 104,004 139,172
Currency translation differences EHRE (1,711) (3,902)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FHRIRE RIS EHEY
the year 24 48,926 104,004
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read  _Eill4R& IR M= K BB EEMHH T —HFRE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR R

General information

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 7 December
2018 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of electronic
manufacturing service (“EMS”). The ultimate holding
company of the Company is Skyflying Company Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Li Hao.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 18
October 2019.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
unit of Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

— &R

EREEERBER AR ([RARD K=
E-NE+_AtLtBRBEREFSEN
FRERNAE(—NAN—FEIFEM -
KEREe RIEFT) KA SESEMK L AE
MEBEREFAAR - At EE s
A Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O.
Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands °

KRR B —RIREZERRAA - ARAE K
EMBAR (S IAEE]) TERE
REEFRERS ([EMS]) - RAFH
BREBRARAERAEBERES (X
B Z RS ]) s Mt 5K 32 89 2 7] Skyflying
Company Limited ° 78 & B & & £ % A
TRFELE -

ARABBEOR_ZE-—NF+ATN\BE
BEMEXHMERRARERLD

BREFHBIN ZFEREHBREAA
RETARED 2% MABEHHE
EsEOTH(ARETT) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) which have been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has adopted the following amended
standards for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform - Phase 2

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards,

interpretation and accounting guideline

issued but not yet adopted by the Group
The following new and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline have
been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2021 reporting periods and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

FTESHHEHRE @

21 REE%E (@)

(b) B 185 B W\ RN
HFTE]T R AIERT 2R - 32
72 K2 5EriE 3
BE—_S-_—&F+-_A=+—
AR SREEHE  ToHFHTRE
BT £ - REREFIESE
HEHEIERFIFEN  NEBE T
RIBRITERA ©

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RT3 SR
ZEBRE
S HBELEN

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BEMBHREERE 165 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and
HKAS 37

BERMBREENFEIT  BHES
ERF 16K R BB G EREITHR
(1BETA)

Annual Improvements Project

FENHEIAR

Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

iHESIE 65 (BFTA) (KIERT)

Amendments to HKAS 1

BB EFERE 1R (BIIX)

HKFRS 17
BEMBHRERAE7H

Amendments to HKFRS 17
BEMBHMEERETH (BFTAR)

Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions
beyond 2021
— T~ —F%RCovid-19BAALH 2

1 April 2021
—E-—FWA—H

Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022

NEENEET “E-%—HF—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 to
2020

—E-N\EE_T_TERHPNEAUE
WEERFE NS

1 January 2022
—2-__%—H—H
Merger Accounting for Common Control

Combinations
HRAEGEHNEHETERE

1 January 2022
T -f—HF—H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current
RBIFERBAEN R

1 January 2023
ZTZ=f—F—H

Insurance Contracts

RBREHD

1 January 2023
—T-=%—f—H

Insurance Contracts

RBRAK

1 January 2023
ZTZ=f—F—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting 2

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline
issued but not yet adopted by the Group

(Continued)

FESTHEYME @)

2.1 RREE (@)
(b) Ei—’?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’%lﬁﬂiﬁ
R R AT AR IEET 2R -
B astiEs| (g

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
=
Z BB
SIHBEEN

Amendments to HKAS 8
BEREGTERE 8K (BFIA)

Amendments to HKAS 12
EESFERE 1295 (BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ERGERFI KR BBV B REE
A E MR B 255 (BT &)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BEREFESR(ZT-TF)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
ERMBRERNE10RREBGS
ZRIZE 2857 (185 A)

The Group will adopt the above new or revised
standards and amendments to existing standards
as and when they become effective. Management &
has performed preliminary assessment and
does not anticipate any significant impact on
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations upon adopting these standards and

amendments to existing HKFRSs.

130 emesmRERAT £ 2021

1 January 2023
—=¥—HF—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates

itiEiES =

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

KEE-XHNEERABRRBETH A

1 January 2023
—TZ=%—H—H

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

BHBREE —E-=%—-A—H

Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2023
Classification by the Borrower of a Term

Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

HBBRROZI|-BERFRET
BHEROERAD T

KGR —FT-=F—H—H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BREEHEEBENTNAECELHANE

ELEIBA

FE

AEE BN EERERA Lt
] RIS T & IR A AR
RN BEIEEDETHHAT
mEBMRAZFEANRIRA
FAEMBREEL ZBFTAE
TEHAEENY BRI R E
BEERENENEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2 FEETHEHME@

22M B A =)
221 826 ABR

B B I B 7 AN 5% B R 4 4 IR
MER(BRRABER) -EX
SEER2EZERNEEM
ESRARZEAANELDR A
BN EEEBERNENT
825 DA - B AN B
ZEE -WMBAFBESESE
BEXAEEERRES AR
I B IR I E AR AR IR AR
BARK-

CINE) =¥

AEBE KRB WIEER X
BH AR - KBHBAA
MEEKERASEESE
REE FMELRABRHE
THRAEEANRFE-
FrEEAERREIRA
BREMELERNEER
BENAFE -REHE
OF P U B8 O B 38 B B A
REAENRBRIRAR
NEREREER L
FEFE AKEREME
I EREE - AP EK
12 IF 12 RO HE 25 B A T
TABEBFEENERSE
BRI LE B - FERR R KB
J7 YRR SRR B A 2T o

WRE R AR ELR X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

132 &=

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Business combination (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKFRS 9 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries now comprising the
Group have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

BEIERBMR AR F3k 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

2 FEETHEHME@

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2/ B2 7] (&)
VARSN=WN:2E )

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in (b) RN EZELNE
subsidiaries without change of control RNEJHEEERE
Transactions with non-controlling interests N BBk AR IE
that do not result in a loss of control are TR R H AR ER#
accounted for as equity transactions — =R 5 BNEK B AR %
that is, as transactions with the owners of BANEERBEEANH
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. METHRS - EEER
The difference between fair value of any REHAFELARFBENG
consideration paid and the relevant share T BEpi B A RFEER
acquired of the carrying amount of net HEMNERETAEZ M
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in R ST HE U
equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non- BB IR AR ©
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries © MHENEBLRF

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the Consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

134 1=

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally but not
necessarily accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the investee after
the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill identified on acquisition,
net of any accumulated impairment loss. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other

2 FESTHRBEm

2.3 Bt&E N T (8)
AEBEGHEBSARKERER
RIB%NRER - ﬁ%ﬁ%%&ﬁ@
PEKENEHNE M2 EWE

comprehensive income is recognised in other TR - Hﬁlﬁ%{éﬁ’]%”ﬁ;@ﬂﬂi%}%&

comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interests in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
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recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
an associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount as
“Impairment loss of investment in an associate” in the

profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in an associate. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
A full gain or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business whereas a partial gain or loss is
recognised when a transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business, even if those assets are held
by a subsidiary. Accounting policies of an associate
have been changed where necessary to ensure
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consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate are recognised in the profit or loss. If the
ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate &n-
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
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comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss = (ER) -

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segment, has
been identified as the directors who make strategic
decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

136 ==

2.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

2.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are generally recognised in
consolidated income statement.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
on a net basis within “Other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities held at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.5.3 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

° income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated
income statement, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

138 &=

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs, net of their residual value, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 1o 5 years
Plant and machinery 3to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

Shorter of estimated
useful lives or
remaining lease terms

Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by

comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Right-of-use assets included the rights to use certain
properties, plant and machinery under leases which
are measured at cost. The initial costs of right-of-use

assets include the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability,

e any lease payments made at or before the o

commencement date,

o any initial direct costs, and

o restoration costs.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying assets
to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost
of the right-of-use assets reflect that the Group will
exercise a purchase option, the Group depreciates the
right-of-use asset from the commencement date of
the lease to the end of the useful life of the underlying
assets. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the assets’ useful lives and their

lease terms on a straight-line basis.

2.7 Intangible assets
Software

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. Computer software is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment, if any. These costs are amortised over

their estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

2.9 Financial assets

140 =

2.9.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when

and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

2 FEETHEHME@

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

29 £REE &)
202 ER N ETE

At initial recognition, the group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in consolidated
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the group
classifies its debt instruments to be:

e  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “Other losses, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the statement of profit or loss.

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within “Other losses, net” in the period in
which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

142 ¢m

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in “Other losses, net”
in the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

2.9.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and reward
of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

210 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss
model. The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2
sets out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For contract assets, trade and bills receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the contract
assets, trade and bills receivables with similar credit
risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

213

2.14

144 EmegmrEaRAz £ 2021

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For other receivables, the Group measures the
impairment as either 12-month expected credit losses
or life-time expected credit losses, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in
credit risk of the other receivables has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from
customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in interest expense
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)
2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
finance costs.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

219.1Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)
2192 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits

148 =

2.20.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2202 Other long-term employee benefit

obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

2203 Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

2204 Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Group’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

221 Revenue recognition 221 W E TR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amount for the service rendered in the ordinary course
of the Group’s activity.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the promised
services to the customers and the payment by the
customers exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability,
depending on the relationship between the Group’s
performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and presented
as assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers the promised
services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is
received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is
earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
transfer the promised services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21

2.22

150 &=

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Electronic manufacturing services
Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have
been met for the Group’s activity as described below:

Rendering of EMS is recognised when the control of
the services is transferred to the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the services
may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control
of the services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

() provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer; or

(i) creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

(i) does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the services transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.

Revenue from EMS contracts are recognised over time
using the input method with reference to the costs
incurred for the service.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

223 Leases 223 &

The Group leases various properties and plant and
machinery. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of one to five years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets
(included in properties, plant and equipment) and
the corresponding liabilities at the date of which the
respective leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
less than 12 months. Low-value assets comprise
machinery with value below RMB5,000.
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2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the years in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
equipment are included in current liabilities and non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the related assets.

2.26 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

3.1.1 Market risk
(@) Foreign exchange risk

The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, United States
dollars (“USD”) and HK$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. The Group is subject to
foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated
in a currency other than RMB, which is the
functional currency of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

At 31 December 2021, if USD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year then
ended would have been approximately
RMB212,000 higher/lower (31 December
2020: RMB416,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
the translation of USD denominated contract
assets, trade and bills receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and bank borrowings.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

154 tsmz
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Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
RMB with all other variables held constant,
profit before income tax for the year then
ended would have been approximately
RMB5,000 lower/higher (31 December
2020: RMB45,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference
on the translation of HK$ denominated cash
and cash equivalents and other payables.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash at banks and bank
borrowings with floating interest rates.
Details of the Group’s cash at banks and
bank borrowings have been disclosed
in Notes 24 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

Other than cash at banks and bank
borrowings, the Group does not have
significant interest-bearing assets or
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates
on cash at banks and bank borrowings had
been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
variables held constant, profit before income
tax for the years then ended would have
been approximately RMB380,000 higher/
lower (831 December 2020: RMB1,045,000
higher/lower).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

classified in the consolidated balance sheet
either at FVOCI or at FVTPL.

At 31 December 2021, if the fair values of
the investments classified as financial assets
at FVOCI had been 10% higher/lower,
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s other comprehensive income would
have been RMB837,000 higher/lower (31
December 2021: Nil).

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMEREREERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 1 B EREE @
3.1.1 Market risk (Continued) 311 TS E R (&)
(c) Price risk © 1BFE L
The Group’s exposure to price risk arises 7 & B AR Y (B A% 3 B 2Rk
from investments held by the Group and BEXRSEMER KRGS

BERBRIBER/RERAY
Bt AR 2 E R aRR
RFEFFABRORE -

2= —F+ = A
+—B WoBEARA
FEFAHEBZERZESN
SHMEENRENRATE
#0084 10% m A B H
thEESRFETE AEH
MEMEmKREEE M,

[ %

B AR #837,0007T (=

——#+=-A=+—8:
f\) o
At 31 December 2020, if the fair values of T -_FTF+ - A

%

the investments classified as financial assets =+—H WoBEAEA

at FVTPL had been 10% higher/lower, with FEFAEZNEHEE
all other variables held constant, the Group’s I E R FERE IR

profit before income tax would have been L10% MATE & 2R

RMB500,000 higher/lower. BAE AEEMKRAE
8 Bl A & 1 a0, R A A
R 500,0007T °

M2 EERR

$EIWETHV1;X§A
& E - &5 - WA kR
SR REFERKAGTENEM
TMEE BRAFEFAEBRR
MEREE SERRITER
RRTRE S2MEENK
ﬁﬁ%ﬁil%éﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
RERAEER

3.1.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financials
assets at FVTPL, pledged bank deposits and
cash at banks. The carrying amounts of each
financial asset represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

156 =

@)

®)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the
Group’s performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were deposited with high quality financial
institutions. Therefore, the Group does not
expect any significant losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, 87% and 89% of the Group’s revenue
was derived from its top five customers
respectively. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, 83% and 84% of the total contract
assets and 86% and 69% of the total trade
and bills receivables were due from the
Group’s top five customers respectively.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
are limited because deposits are in banks
with sound credit ratings and management
does not expect any loss from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
models:

° Contract assets, trade and bills
receivables

° Other financial assets carried at
amortised cost
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMEREREERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 E &Rk (%)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (b) ZEEERE (E)
Contract assets, trade and bills receivables AREE B RWFIE
& IR E %
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified rEBEEREEMB®RSE
approach to measure expected credit ERIBIOREL A AR
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss RS f%)éﬁ??i CHRAES
allowance for all contract assets, trade and BEE - BZEUWFKEAER
bills receivables. The Group measures the FER IR AR EFEH
expected credit losses on a combination of MEREERE ~5E
both individual and collective basis. HEEENRHEREEFE

BHERESE -

To measure the expected credit losses, REITEEHEERSE B
contract assets, trade and bills receivables BELREERBSEHK
have been grouped based on shared credit BHBAEKEREE &
risk characteristics and the days past ZFREBFIEREREED
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled H-aREBEERAMAER
services and have substantially the same risk AR BEFEASAON
characteristics as the trade receivables for B 5 EWRIEE XNBHAE
the same types of contracts. The Group has O TR S PN AN
therefore concluded that the expected loss BERBE S EWRIENTE
rates for trade receivables are a reasonable & TE 1 HEREENE
approximation of the loss rates for the BEBEBERE -

contract assets.

Measurement of expected credit loss on REREETETEHEE
individual basis E518
Contract assets, trade and bills receivables EAELZEENEGRE
with known insolvencies are assessed E B 5 EKEKIERER
individually for impairment allowances and FH Ty EITE B FE Ak LAER
are written off when there is no reasonable BRERE TREETE
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there B 4m K R O] B i 8H o & 18
is no reasonable expectation of recovery FEHEEAKRENEZEE
include, amongst others, the failure of a (e EBAREY
debtor to engage in a prepayment plan with REBIELERE - M
the Group, and a failure to make contractual KARBES A HHIE - B
payments. As at 31 December 2021, the :§:7¢+ “A=+—
balance of loss allowance in respect of & B 5 A &Y e W Fk 1B
these individually assessed receivables E’\J BEBHEESRBEAR
was RMB99,000 (31 December 2020: #099,000T (ZE =T F
RMB135,000). TZA=t—H: AR¥%¥
135,0007T) °
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% E e ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 EERk (/)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (b) TEEERE E)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature
of the customer, its geographical location
and its ageing category, and applying the
expected credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated
on the basis of historical credit losses
experienced, adjusted to reflect the effects of
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance
of loss allowance in respect of these
collectively assessed receivables was
approximately RMB136,000 (31 December
2020: RMB136,000).

Impairment losses on contract assets,
trade and bills receivables are presented
as “impairment losses on financial assets
and contract assets” in the consolidated
income statement. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

% E e ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 E &Rk (%)
(b) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (b) ZEEERE (E)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

Other financial assets carried at:amortised
cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried
at amortised cost include deposits, other
receivables and an unlisted corporate bond
in the consolidated balance sheet. The
impairment loss of other financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured based
on the 12-month expected credit loss. The
12-month expected credit loss is the portion
of lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
management considered the credit risk of
deposits and other receivables to be low
as counterparties have a strong capacity to
meet their contractual cash flow obligations
in the near term. The Group has assessed
that the expected credit losses for these
deposits and other receivables were
immaterial under 12-month expected losses
method. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these balances was close to
zero and no provision was recognised.

In assessing the expected credit loss
allowance for unlisted corporate bond at
amortised costs, management considered
the probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default and other adjustment
factors. As at 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance provision for an unlisted corporate
bond was RMB272,000.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

160 &=

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
held cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately RMB48,926,000 and
RMB104,004,000 respectively, that are expected
to be readily available to generate cash inflows for
managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of receivables
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
and lease liabilities are also considered by the
Group in its capital structuring. The Group aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient
bank balances, committed credit lines available
and interest bearing borrowings which enable the
Group to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
RMB15,000,000 undrawn banking facilities (31
December 2020: Nil) and the Group’s total drawn
banking facilities amounted to approximately
RMB12,614,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB13,937,000).

The table below analyses the non-derivative
financial liabilities of the Group into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMEREREERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREZ @)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 313 MBNE & Rk (8)
The amounts disclosed in the table were the FABENESBEREHORUR
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the ReMERAEEERERE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. NH&ERH-

Between1 Between 2

Less than and and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
PR1E 1E2F 2E5%  S5FLE st

RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB000  RMB’000
ARBTL ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

At 31 December 2021 R-B=-—-%§
+=ZR=+-H
Trade payables BHENHE 17,499 - - - 17,499
Other payables and accruals  E e 4 7078 |2
&R 12,731 - - - 12,731
Bank borrowings RITIER
~ principal portion A& EH 4,911 3,953 1,500 2,250 12,614
~ interest portion —FEHS 506 266 444 253 1,469
Lease liabilities HEERE
— principal portion K& EH 5,140 3,658 3,895 - 12,693
— interest portion —FEHS 522 304 104 - 930
41,309 8,181 5,943 2,503 57,936
Between 1 Between 2
Less than and and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
DPI1E 122F 2E5F  B5FENLE @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AR®ETL ARETrT ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZE
+ZRA=+-H
Trade payables BRI HIE 18,482 = = = 18,482
Other payables and accruals  E B FUE K
Bt &R 22,164 - - - 22,164
Bank borrowings RITIER
— principal portion . Xcaibl 5,889 8,048 = = 13,937
— interest portion —FEFD 113 55 - - 168
Lease liabilities HEAE
— principal portion X ) 4,725 1,621 145 = 6,491
~ interest portion -MEBH 223 45 12 = 280
51,596 9,769 157 - 61,522
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMERRERE @

3.2 Capital management 32 EXER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debt to total capital ratio. Total debt and total capital
represent total borrowings and total equity, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet. The total debt to
total capital ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

AEBEEREANBERRREAE
BRI S EERE 2B
LA 7% P 3R % SR [B] g+ [ iy ok B L b
MEEEREE MR - WHERRED
EARRBARBEESKA -

REFRFXNFABEARARE  AEEHL
SRBEARRIKNOBRE S [
BERREIE ARk & B EARUKETR

AEERBEABHAEAR L XE
mER - BRABERBEADFIES
REEREBERMAIITHARERERS
BE - R_F_—FR-_FT_FTF
T A=+-BNRRBEHEER
b

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Total borrowings (bank

MR (RITRER

borrowings and lease liabilities) HEAaR) 25,307 20,428
Total equity BT 297,861 291,931
Total debt to total capital ratio REEHBEERLE 8% 7%

The increase in total debt to total capital ratio from 7%
as at 31 December 2020 to 8% as at 31 December
2021 was mainly due to additional drawdown of bank
borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMEREREERE @
3.3 A {EM/F

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments carried at fair value are analysed
by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

e  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade, bills and other receivables, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at amortised
cost, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,
including trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank borrowings and lease liabilities, approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying
amounts of non-current deposits, bank borrowings
and lease liabilities approximate their fair values which
are estimated based on the discounted cash flows.

The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial
liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e B ISERRMEE @)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
consolidated balance sheet across the three levels.

B 7% [ B B X ()
3.3 A {EMEE @)

TRAOZEEBRZ2IGAEERRE
RARNFEFENESBRTANE
[ER =R

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021

R-E-Z-F+-A=+-HWAFEHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 F2H $E3K et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR®ETR
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAEME
AR ENE/EE
- Listed trading securities — TR GFHES 8,369 - - 8,369
8,369 - - 8,369
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020
RZB-EE+-A=+—BNQ TEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H F2MH FE3H HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABED
— Unlisted investment fund  —3F TR EES - - 5,000 5,000
— Listed trading securities — MR SES 1 - - 1
1 - 5,000 5,001

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year (31 December 2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

B 7% [ B B BB (@)

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020:

3.3 DV @0
TREINBE-_T_—FR_FT_ZTF
ToA=t—RIEFEFEIRLRIAN

w4
S

Unlisted

investment

fund

e ol

REES

RMB’000

ARETx

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZEF—-F—HHN&& -

Additions NE 5,000
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZEBE-EF+-A=+—-HK

and 1 January 2021 —E-—-F—-H—HW&& 5,000

Disposal s (5,000)

Balance at 31 December 2021 R-BE-Z—F+-A=+—HW#&EH -

Unlisted investment fund was stated at fair value which
is estimated using other prices observed in recent
transactions when the market price is not readily
available. If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

FLETREESRAFEIER EXH
BEEZEFIOEHEANCHARSIER
FrSHEMmERAT - MW —RANZHE
RBABURYIFERABREMSEE
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FAEEH T RERR
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

The Group’s inventories comprise solely raw materials
of which management primarily intends to utilise for
EMS contracts. These raw materials are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group utilises these raw materials for the
assembling and production of printed circuit board
assembly (“PCBA”), and their net realisable value is
the estimated service contract price less estimated
costs to completion and direct selling expenses. The
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of provision of services
using raw materials of similar nature. Write-downs of
inventories are recognised where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses
these estimates at end of each reporting period.

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement is required
in determining provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

4.2 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expense in
the periods in which such estimate is changed.

4.3 Impairment of receivables and contract

assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables and contract assets based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s historical default rates, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. The identification
of impairment of receivables and contract assets
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying
value of receivables and contract assets and loss for
the impairment of receivables and contract assets
recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.

5 Revenue and segment information

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of EMS.

The CODM has been identified as the executive directors of
the Company. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The executive directors have determined
the operating segment based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the Group’s operation from
a business perspective and determine that the Group has
one reportable operating segment being the EMS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

5 Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

The executive directors assess the performance of the
operating segment based on a measure of revenue and
gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all
of the Group’s revenues are from contracts with customers
and are recognised over time. Please refer to Note 2.21 for
details of the accounting policies on revenue recognition.

(a) Segment revenue by customers’
geographical location
The Group’s operation is domiciled in the PRC. The
Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
determined by the location of customers, is as follows:

Ko EER @)

B

&

BITE R R BRI B G
EHWHRS -

BE-_FT-_—Fk-_ZT=FF+=HA
=+—BLEFE FAEEHME KR
HERFFIVAAY - WEERRE T AR -
EHARGSERNSABRFS  BF2H
MisE2.21 o

() BEFHENLER DD IR
iy 2
AEEAETREE - NEBRWE

NEERNEFUEER)BD MK
=T

2021 2020

= St

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFT

The PRC Fh 353,615 246,036
The United States of America EFBRERE(EH])

(the “USA") 281 183

Others EAh - 312

353,896 246,531

(b) Details of contract liabilities

(b) ERAEFS

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT T ARBEFIT

Contract liabilities (Note 29) ARAEE(FMFE29) 1,503 1,487

Notes:

(@) Contract liabilities represent advance payments received from
the customers for services that have not been transferred to the
customers. The contract liabilities fluctuated during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 due to fluctuation in sales
orders with advance payments.

(b) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all
brought-forward contract liabilities at the beginning of the
financial year were fully recognised as revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

5 Revenue and segment information

5 WHERKDIHBEE @

(Continued)
(c) Major customers c) XEXF
Revenue from customers individually contributing over R B 8 Bl k72N & [ 48 1 %5 %60 10% B
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: BRI EHOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARET T
Customer A BEFA 147,481 72,533
Customer B ®FB 100,224 54,358
Customer C EPFC 35,328 59,490
Total 45 283,033 186,381
The five largest customers accounted for approximately AREFPhEBEEZE-_—F+=A
87% of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 =T —HEFENKZELET% (ZF
(31 December 2020: 89%). —EF+ZA=+—H :89%) °
(d) Unsatisfied performance obligations d HRBITZEAR®E
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all performance RZBEZ—FRZZT_TF+=HA
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from =+—HA XAEBFRERKAEITZ
contracts with original expected duration of less than BAEBEHRIRN R TEBFERE
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant DPR—FHEL - Bt - MO EE
practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction SR EERFE15HAEERER
prices allocated to these unsatisfied performance ZETFER W ABBEIETHSE
obligations were not disclosed. MARBITZROEBHNZHE -
(e) Non-current assets by geographical (e) RibIBNEEI D HIIERE

location

All of the Group’s non-current assets were located in
the PRC.

gE
REERFABIERBEEDNNFTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

BMHEET X
AAHERE  HERS BN TR
AXUREMEERAREERERA

6 Expenses by nature 6

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and impairment losses

on financial assets and contract assets are analysed as NAZSWET :
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Cost of raw materials and consumables i FB R 4 ¥ K2 5 #E & A A

used 123,314 84,889
Subcontracting charges nEEA 27,276 15,231
Employee benefit expenses and manpower & E&FIF 3 & A I ERR

service expenses, including directors’ Y BiEESMe (I

emoluments (Note 9) F9) 103,532 66,116
Rental expenses of short-term leases in UWTEEMNEHAERSRA

respect of: X :

— machineries (Note 25(c)) — 123 (MtaE25(c) 24,383 19,655

- offices, warehouses, production plant —WRE -HR

and staff quarters (Note 25(c)) YEBREMEIRS
(Mt3E25(c)) 3,467 1,770
Utilities KEE 7,649 4,094
Depreciation (Note 14) & (fisx14) 37,665 24,858
Amortisation (Note 15) By (MEE15) 744 296
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B8R0 B &

- Audit services —FET RIS 1,701 1,779
Professional fees EXEH 5,682 4,520
(Reverse of)/impairment provision for HFE(&E),/RERE

inventories (Note 21) (FE21) (1,264) 1,176
Impairment losses on financial assets CREEREREE

and contract assets A E R 240 235
Other tax and surcharges HAb B 18 R T & 1,536 1,815
Transportation RiBiEs 301 587
Travelling expenses =iRE 1,579 669
Others H A, 8,028 7,368
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution  SHERA - $HE R D HFAX -

expenses, administrative expenses and THRZURCREE

impairment losses on financial assets and & & [ & &R EE 18

contract assets B 345,833 235,058
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI IEIRRMEE @)

7 Otherincome 7 HlA
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Government grants B B 5,684 4,497
Others Hb 73 =
5,757 4,497
8 Other losses, net 8 HiBERE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYWE  BERRED
equipment (Note 33(b)) E518 (M1 33(b)) (1,580) (2,665)
Exchange differences PE H =58 610 (34)
Gain on exchange reserve released upon  BUHFE M —EIM & A 7] &
deregistration of a subsidiary FR BR SN (5 85 A Uk 2 43 =
Fair value changes in financial assets at BRAFEFABENEE
FVTPL (Note 19) EEATEZD (HiE19) (1) =
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEEATFETABERN
at FVTPL (Note 33(c)) cREEMYE (T
33(c)) - 489
(928) (2,210)
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e IEIRRMEE @)

9 Employee benefit expenses and
manpower service expenses, including
directors’ emoluments

EERAAIRANERRS
X (BEESEHE)

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREET T

Wages and salaries TENHS 82,542 60,099
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3R K & Ak 24~ — 2 E (7t 2l

(Note (a)) (B EE (a)) 3,767 1,502

Other staff welfares H8TREF 2,477 1,215

Total employee benefit expenses EERARZEE

(including directors’ remunerations) (BREESZHM) 88,786 62,816

Manpower service expenses (Note (b)) ANERIRBFEZ (M 0) 14,746 3,300

103,532 66,116

Notes:

(@) Pensions costs — defined contribution plans

The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
the subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. For the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, depending on the provinces of the employees’
registered residences and their current region of work, the subsidiary
contributed certain percentages of the basic salaries of its employees
and had no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or
postretirement benefits beyond the contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Human Resources and
Social Security Bureau of Shenzhen Municipality announced that all
micro, small and medium size enterprises in Shenzhen were exempt
from making employer contributions to pension, unemployment and
work-related injury insurance schemes from the period between
February and December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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BTSRRI (@)

9 Employee benefit expenses and
manpower service expenses, including
directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Manpower service expenses

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the
human resources provided were directly employed by the relevant
service organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group
did not have any employment relationship with the Group.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include three directors for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 39(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

9 EERAHEZIRANERRE
R (BREEEMWNE) @)

feE ()

(b)

AN ERRIEF
BE-_T-_—FR=-_ZT=-_ZTF+=-RA=+—H
ILEE  AEBEHBRPEIMNTA N ERRSE
WETLETANERRE R - BRIEAER
B R ERBRBERBESRETAEEE
FAFF R MATRER A D ERHHERE RS
WEEEED ZERAAEERERBEHOAL
S fE B & B R (] (B (B R R o

AEEERTHAL

BE-Z - —GFR-_F-TF+-A=+—H
ItEE AEBREEaFMALTRE=28
£ HB S RBRIERT 239 M DT &
2T FR-IFZFFFT-RA=+—HL
FE ENATMEATHMSET

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETF T
Wages and salaries TER¥F® 1,156 1,366
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE KA — e KRG8 27 20
1,183 1,386
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e EmT -
Number of individuals
AH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EEF
Emolument band [
Not more than HK$500,000 838 500,000 % 70 1 -
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 77T & 1,000,000 7% 7T 1 2
2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

BE-_ZT-_—FK-_ZT=-_ZTF+=-RA=+—8H
ILEE AEBRERATAESLAERE S
A L3RS EAMBEREMBEAER
B ) SRR SR fE R BE MR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

10 Finance costs, net

11

10 BE XK FH

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREETIT

Finance income BmEWA

Interestincome on cashatbanks ~ H®OAREOFBLA 649 925

Finance costs BE KA

Interest expenses on RTHEENFEMY

— Bank borrowings —RITER (889) (570)

— Leases (Note 25(b)) — & (Mi5E25(0)) (327) (432)

o h21e)  (1,002)

Finance costs, net R E KA F R (567) (77)

Income tax expense

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income
tax (“CIT”) in accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According
to the PRC CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the CIT
tax rate applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are
applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary in the PRC is subject to CIT and qualified as
High and New Technology Enterprise, the applicable CIT tax
rate is 15%.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
Shenzhen Confidence Intelligence Electronic Co., Ltd.* (7%
YIZ 8B %5 8 E T B R 2 Al), the Group’s major subsidiary
in the PRC, was qualified for High and New Technology
Enterprises status and is therefore subject to a preferential
income tax rate of 15%.

* For identification purposes only

174 EmegmrEaRAz £ 2021

11 88X

REBFECERSHE HEKERQAF
BHMERAER (REMEHR]D - R
BRBEEEMBTARMERER  KRIE
BERZEARMBRRMERD &
AERMEEMEHRNER26% -

WP EMERRAMMNECERFRILEA
BRARMEXER BERNEEMR
BHHER15%

HE-_T-_—Fk=-_ZTZ=-ZFF+=A
—+—HALFE AEBEEFBEMNEE
MBARRIEREEEFAERAAE
ERERSHEMEEMAS  AtES
BEMEREASY -

* ERES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

11 FrEFHBE X @)
BE_ZE-_—FRr-_ZE-_ZTF+ A
Z+—BLEFE BARAKETESE
ERFER MW ERERE M IERERE

11 Income tax expense (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no

assessable profit in Hong Kong. HBEBFETRME -
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Current income tax B EAFR 85
- PRC CIT —FEEFTSH 1,883 2,167
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFEBERE - 84)
1,883 2,083
Deferred income tax (Note 27) ELEFEH (ME27) 369 60
Income tax expense FrgHMEx 2,252 2,143
2021 2020
—E-—F —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Profit before income tax BR BT 15 25 AT g 7 12,325 13,683
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to  ¥Z& K& A A& F#E A 5
profits of the respective subsidiaries HEFTERNHIE 3,099 1,966
Tax effect of: M2 -
Income not taxable RHUA (56) (76)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 7~ A #1554 5 5% 1,489 1,583
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B A LRI ARTERA
tax loss s EE (163) =
Tax losses for which no deferred income I EERERIE L FT 1S5 & EHY
tax asset was recognised RIEEE - 163
Over-provision in prior year BT FEHBERE - (84)
Super deductions from research and T 82 B 2 anEt #BR (B E (a)
development expenditures (Note (a)) (2,117) (1,409)
Income tax expense FriSfifA Xz 2,252 2,143
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Income tax expense (Continued)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: 14.4%). The change is caused by a change in the
profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in the respective
countries.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxation profits is probable. As at
31 December 2021, the Group has no unrecognised tax
losses (31 December 2020: unrecognised tax losses of a
PRC subsidiary of approximately RMB651,000 to offset
against future taxable income).

Note:

(@  According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by the
State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises engaging
in research and development activities are entitled to claim 150% to
175% of their research and development expenses incurred as tax
deductible expenses when determining their assessable profits for that
year.

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

11

12

8B @)

BE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HLFE
mm%$ﬁ@%ﬁ$%%m6:§:§
FTZA=+—H:144%) - EE Ty

RAEBEHNBARNBNAENEEN
BREREFE -

BEMBREENGEE 2 HARE R

MR - LB B R B AR KERT G
) i iﬁZ*ﬁ ARBAMNGE /SR -R-F

T+ A=+—H AEBEIEX
BRHEEEE(CE_EF+t A =+—
H: —H+YBENBARRERRERE
AR 651,000 7T LA f 5 8§ < 2R FE SR R Uk
A) e

B

@ HREFEERHEELFBOBRERRZER #®
EMBFFHNCECETFEERB R
Al B ATE £ X A150% E175% 1E A
AR -

BRER
BREXRBIIEANAERTE ARA
BAHBRABE—_T - —FR-_F_FTF
T-A=+—"BLEFEHNEZETEBRR
HEFIBGETH -

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

Profit for the year attributable to equity KAaE=FE ABGEFER

holders of the Company (RMB’000) wmA(AREFT) 7,241 11,736
Weighted average number of ordinary BEBITERRINE TS

shares in issue (thousands of shares) (F5) 250,000 250,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share Bl ER R EE R

(RMB cents) (AR¥D) 2.90 4.69

There were no differences between the basic and diluted
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

BEIERBMR AR F3k 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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13 Subsidiaries
The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021

13 KB 2 A
AEBR-—T-—ER-_T-_TE+—

and 2020 are set out below. A=+—BMEXZENBRARHINOT -
Percentage of effective
interest held/controlled
by the Group
EEEE/BHH
ERERT L
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2021 2020
FMA L ER FEEHR
WEARERE EEERER Lem BRRRAFE —T--F "Z_ZTF
Direct Interests:
EfFE
New Trive Limited BVI, limited liability Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
company in BVI
New Trive Limited RBRAES F RNEBRIESH) 1% 100% 100%
Rl EREER
Hero Tag Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding USDA1 100% 100%
company in BVI
Hero Tag Limited RERZHE:F AEBEZAESL e 100% 100%
RAA] EREER
Indlirect Interests:
T
New Trive (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$10,000 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
ML (BE)ERAH B8 BRRA REBRERE 10,000 7T 100% 100%
R
Xinzhi (Shenzhen) Electronic Co.,  The PRC, limited Investment holding RMB100,000 100% 100%
Ltd* (58 (RIDEF AR liability company in the PRC
N ET)
8RN EFERAR hE ARAA RPBERERE AR#100,0007T 100% 100%
s
Shenzhen Confidence The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB115,238,710 100% 100%
Intelligence Electronic Co., liability company
Ld  (RYEREEET
BRAT)
RIEEEEEFERAA hE BRAAF RPERETTH AR 100% 100%
E R 115,238,7107C
Confidence Intelligence Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
(Hongkong) Limited liability company in Hong Kong
EREw (BE)ERRA BE BRAR REBRERE 3,000,000/ 7T
s
* For identification purposes only * (EBEE
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e IEIRRMEE @)

13 Subsidiaries (Continued)

13 {8 2 =] (@)

ﬂii

178 =

Percentage of effective
interest held/controlled
by the Group
AEEBE /BN
ERERBIL
Place of Principal activities
incorporation and and place of Particulars of
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity ~ operation paid up capital 2021 2020
TEAf A 32 3 B R IEEHR
HEAREE EEREESR LEny BRRRAFE —T--F _—T_ZTF
Confidence Intelligence, Inc. The USA, limited Dormant USD10,000 - 100%
liability company
Confidence Inteligence, Inc. XE: BROH TR 10,000% 7T - 100%
Chongaing Xinken Technology The PRC, limited EMS in the PRC RMB20,000,000 70% 70%
Company Limited* (EE R liability company
EET]YNG)
ERERMBRBRAF hE AR RPBEREEFH  ARM20,000,000 70% 70%
MR 7T
Hero Tag (HK) Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
liability company in Hong Kong
Hero Tag (HK) Limited % ARAA REBNEREE 17587T 100% 100%
R
Wanhai Big Data Technology The PRC, limited Dormant RMB6,799,905 100% 100%
(Shanghai) Limited* (% B liability company
BRI (L8) R AT)
BEABENR (L i)*ﬁ BA BB BRAR TEEB AR 6,799,905 100% 100%
Al T

(a) Material non-controlling interest

Set out below is summarised financial information for
a subsidiary that has non-controlling interest that is
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the
subsidiary before inter-company eliminations.

For identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

13 Subsidiaries (Continued) 13 B2 8 (@)
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@ EXRFERELRS (F)
(@) Summarised income statement @ WEWEIWR
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ET-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETF T
Revenue g 49,520 730
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive R Fl (E548) K
income/(loss) for the year mEUkE (Ei8)
FERE 9,439 (653)
Profit/(loss) allocated to DL E FFIEARE 2 Y
non-controlling interest wm A (Ei8) 2,832 (196)
(b) Summarised balance sheet b) MEEEAER
2021 2020
—EB=—F —EFR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARETF T
Non-current assets ERBEE 27,285 20,457
Current assets MEEE 23,879 10,228
Totalassets W& s1,064 80,685
Non-current liabilities EMENEE 2,252 190
Current liabilities MENEE 15,126 11,148
Total liabilites ~ #@®&& 17388 11,338
Net assets FEE 33,786 19,347
Accumulated non-controlling EET IR ER
interest 10,136 5,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

13 Subsidiaries (Continued) 13 B A7 @)
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@) EXRFERELRS (F)
(€) Summarised cashflows ) WMERE®
2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR T T
Cash flows from operating activities #& & EBIR R E 18,040 (4,530)
Cash flows from investing activities & &/EBIR & RE (18,001) (10,886)
Cash flows from financing activites EEEBR &R E 7,711 19,993
Net increase in cash and cash ReRBEFEWILIN
equivalents F R 7,750 4,577
14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% - BERRZRE
Right-of-use Fumiture Office Plant and Motor ~ Leasehold
assets  andfixtures  equipment  machinery vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
FREEE GARRE  HORE HERES RE  EENERE B @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMTL  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETn  ARBTRn  ARETR

At1 January 2020 R-2-%5-A-H

Cost A 16,637 1025 2775 173566 1,714 2548 = 198,265
Accumulated depreciaion 175 (8840) (#39) (1,031 (65,258) (1,049) (1,387) = (78,009
Net book amount EEFE 7797 586 1,744 108,308 666 1,161 = 120262
Year ended 31 December HZ-F-F£+-f

2020 t-BLEE

Opening nethook amount I EFE 7,797 566 1,744 108,308 666 1,161 - 120,262
Addltions AE 2170 135 1076 53,498 - 5,083 = 61,962
Depreciation g (3804 g (091) (1752 (302 (1,96 - (24,859)
Disposls i - - - 3149) = = = (3,145)
Closing net book amount K E (& 6,163 44 1829 141,139 34 498 = 154,201
At31 December 2020  W=B=-FE+=f

=t-A

Cost A 18,807 1,160 3,851 212931 1,714 7631 - 246,004
Accumulated depreciaion 2347 (12,644) (716) (2022 (11,79 (1,350) (3349 - 01873
Net book amount FESE 6,163 a4 1829 141139 364 4282 = 154201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

14 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 14 ¥ ¥ - = R & HE @)

Right-of-use Fumniture Office Plant and Motor  Leasehold
assets  andfixtures ~ equipment  machinery vehicles  improvements Buildings Total
FREEE GAREE  BORE  HERAS RE HENREE g% it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Year ended 31 December HZ-F=-£+Zf

2021 St-ALEE

Opening netbook amount I ESE 6,163 444 1,829 141,139 364 4,282 - 154,221

Addtions hE 15,380 138 1,190 371,793 200 2,484 9,951 67,136

Depreciation i 8:3%) (287) 123 (33%) (337 (3,897 (7669

Transfer Note (3 2 () (633) - - 633 - - - -

Disposels = - - - (5,948) - - - (5.949)

Closing net book amount ~ KA A 12,520 25 1,788 150,201 21 2,69 9,754 177,144

At31 December202!  R-EZ-%+127

=t+-A

Cost A 19,238 1,298 5,041 238,577 1,914 10,115 9,951 266,134

Accumuated deprecation 2:H17& 6,718 (1,009 625 (83286) (1,687 (7.246 19 (1083%)

Net book amount FHE 12,520 295 1,788 150,291 21 2,869 9,754 177,144

Note: BieE -

(a)  The Group has exercised the purchase options and transferred certain @ AEERHHAERBOTEBEEEERMS
assets from right-of-use assets to plant and machinery at the end of ETEERFTEREEEERZRE LKL -
the lease terms.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HE-ZT-_—R-ZT-_FF+=H

depreciation expenses have been charged in cost of =+ —HALFE WERIBFTAHEE

sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative R - HERDHERAY RITHRAZAT
expenses as below:

2021 2020

= it

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Cost of sales $H & P AR 33,537 21,008

Selling and distribution expenses HE R A - 23

Administrative expenses THRAX 4,128 3,827

37,665 24,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

15 Intangible assets 15 B EE
Software
B0
RMB’000
ARBFT
At 1 January 2020 RZE_EF—H—H
Cost BN =
Accumulated amortisation RETEE Y -
Net book amount BREFE -
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZT-_TFF+-_A=+—HILFE
Opening net book amount BRI AR EF{E =
Additions nE 1,774
Amortisation charge BoHR S (296)
Closing net book amount BRBRMEE 1,478
At 1 January 2021 R—_E-_—F—HF—H
Cost AR 1,774
Accumulated amortisation RET Y (296)
Net book amount BRHEFE 1,478
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount BI¥NEREFE 1,478
Additions NE 544
Amortisation charge BoHR S (744)
Closing net book amount BRAREFE 1,278
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ_—F+=ZHA=+—H
Cost B AR 2,318
Accumulated amortisation RETE Y (1,040)
Net book amount BRTEFE 1,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

16 Investment in an associate

16 R—EBEQXT 2RE

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Unlisted entity (Note a) K EMEEE (fiska) - <
Notes: ffeE -
(@)  Particulars of the associate as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as @ HBMERAR-ZE=Z—FR-T-_ZTF+=A
follows: =+ —HAZFBEET
Place of
Name incorporation % of ownership interest Principal activity
£8B = 3t B EEREER LA FTEEK
2021 2020
—T-—-F CZZT-ZTF
Renxiao Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC 8% 8% Production, research and development
Company Limited* (A BE &0 and sales of intelligent hardware and
GFIN) B R A7) (“Renxiao”) cloud platform products
ABERE ORI AR DA ([ABED FE 8% 8% 4E ERHEEHEBERETA

Renxiao is a private company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group acquired 8%
equity interest in Renxiao at a consideration of RMB1,000,000.

Management has assessed the level of influence that the Group
exercises on Renxiao during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, and determined that it has significant influence thereon through
a board representation and other arrangements made. Consequently,
this investment has been classified as an investment in an associate.

Management assessed that the investment costs of Renxiao would
not be recoverable and recognised full impairment for the balance.

For identification purposes only

EED

ABERBIARR HROIEETHHRE -

BE-Z—XR"F+-A=+—HLFE &%
B E AR 1,000,000 7T48 88 AR 8% AAE o

BE_Z-_—FR-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H
HEE ERECHEAREY ABETREO
ERE YR/ BREFGRERRKEL
Hip 2B mE It BEEAFE - B - ZIRE
ENERAR—HBERRZRE -

EREFENABNRERASEEKE - I
REHRZERE -

- Eag=9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B ISERRMEE @)

16 Investment in an associate (Continued) 16 RA—BEHE AT Z2RE @)

Notes: (Continued) BisE - (48)

(b)  Set out below is the summarised financial information of Renxiao b)) TXHEHIAEEARDZEARZBENBKE
extracted from its financial statements for the years ended 31 HOOBEEEEE T —FR-F-TF
December 2021 and 2020 which are accounted for using the equity +-A=1+—BLEFEZMEHREK) :
method:

2021 2020
—E- BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARETTT
Summarised income statements REWRZHRK

Administrative expenses G (6) (5)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year ~ EREE N 2 EEBEARE (6) (5)
2021 2020
—ET-—F ZT-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETRT ARET T

Summarised balance sheet RELEAEX
Current assets MENVE E 468 474
Shareholder’s equity M SR g 468 474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

17 Prepayments, deposits and other 17 EARE R RHEMERR
receivables 18
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®TT
Current portion B 8 &
Prepayments to suppliers TE A 4 FE P SRR 480 2,758
Rental and other deposits (Note (a)) HEREMES (HiE@) 854 1,224
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable FEHOEER ([1EER]) 414 3,240
Other receivables (Note (a) and (b)) H b e Uz 8 (BT 5E (@) & (b)) 1,538 6
3,286 7,228
Non-current portion JEBNEA I 5
Prepayments of acquisition of property, BEWME - KB M&E
plant and equipment 2 B FRIE 2,719 1,314
Rental deposits (Note (a)) HEZe (@) 467 216
3,186 1,630
Note: B o

(@) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of deposits
and other receivables approximated their fair values. These balances
were unsecured and interest free.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold certain
machinery to Shenzhen Puneda Electronic Co., Ltd, which is a related
company of the Group at a consideration of RMB4,268,000 (Note
37). The balance was not fully settled and the unsettled portion was
recognised as other receivables as at 31 December 2021.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables were denominated in the following

@ RIE-_—FR-ZF-_ZEF+-_A=+—8"
Re RAMEEFANREEREAL A FEEE
FEEHRREERRER -

b)) REBEE-ZZ=-—F+-A=+—ALFE &
SERAEEBEARFYMEREETER
ARIHEE FTHW - KER AR 4,268,000
T (f3337)  R—TE-—F+-_A=+—81"
ERR MR MAGN I D ERABE A FEU

IR ©

AEBEMNFIE - RE R EMEKFIR
MEREENR TR E -

currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
RMB AR 6,348 8,590
HK$ BT 124 168
6,472 8,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

18 Financial assets at fair value through 18 AT EFTAHMEE K =D

other comprehensive income

The Group’s financial assets at FVOCI comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading and which the
Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to
recognise in this category. These are strategic investments
and the Group considers this classification to be more
appropriate.

THMEE

AEEMNZRAFESALBE2EKEL
TREERRIUFFFEESALAEENT
A B 3 i R 0 V) R FE SR S X % FE R A
ﬁEwE’JH%EE’E% ZERBERE A
BRRUSIEENGE -

2021
—E-—F
RMB’000
ARET R
Non-current assets FREEE

Listed trading securities IR 5ES
— Baidu, Inc. —Baidu, Inc. 733
— Bilibili Inc. —Bilibili Inc. 1,067
- 3SBio Inc. —3SBio Inc. 4,943
— Yuexiu Services Group Limited - BERBEEFRAA 1,626
8,369

On disposal of these equity investments, any related
balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to retained
earnings.

Notes:

(@) Disposal of equity investments
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has sold
its shares in Bilibili Inc. as a result of a takeover offer for cash. The
shares sold had a fair value of RMB7,162,000 and the Group realised
a gain of RMB792,000, which had already been included in other
comprehensive income. This gain has been transferred to retained
earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity;

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has sold its
shares in Yuexiu Services Group Limited as a result of a takeover
offer for cash. The shares sold had a fair value of RMB3,922,000
and the group realised a gain of RMB324,000, which had already
been included in other comprehensive income. This gain has been
transferred to retained earnings in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(b) During the year, gains on disposal of FVOCI of approximately
RMB1,116,000 are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(c) All of the financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in HK$. For an
analysis of the price risk of the financial assets at FVOCI, please refer
to Note 3.1.1(c).

*

For identification purposes only
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HEZSERALER TR AEATF
Bt ARt 2 E W aFEENEBEERE
Mo BEREAN -

MaE -

@ EHERKNEE
HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLFE 4%
B E R W iE 24 TS HE R Bilibili Inc. (P12 2
BRDARDE ) HIRND - EERMDHATE
RARKET162,0007T  AEBZR K AR
¥792,0007T + I B 5t A H A 2 H S o 5% K
mEBEREEREHRZRERF

HE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLEEE K
SERBESUBEZENLEANUEREEE
BRARMRKRG - E%H%’ﬁﬁ’]’/}?@ﬁj)\ﬁﬁé‘
3,922,0007T * A5 B 1R i as A R # 324,000
TL WEFAEMEERE - B EEREER
EREZHRIRBAT -

b FARHERATEFARCEEREN S
REIARY1,116,000 7T - REM 2 EKERTER

© BRAFEFAEMCZERZNESHEENS
TLEHE - B AFEFALEMEERENS
BMEEHERRABROSREDN - SLHME
3.1.1() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

19 BRAFEHFAESNEREE

19 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL represent investment
in an unlisted investment fund and listed trading securities.
These financial assets are mandatorily measured at FVTPL
and with following details.

AREZ A FEFABSNSREER
FLETREES R ETRIBHIERE °
ZEERMEEBRMIZAFE;F ARG
& FBmT

Unlisted Listed
investment trading
fund securities Total
e Ew
REES REBH #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT AR%®TT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZEf—-F—H
k=3 - - -
Additions NE 5,000 8,952 13,952
Disposal s = (8,370) (8,370)
Exchange realignment bE 5 AR = (581) (581)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=-ZE=-Z&F+=A
and 1 January 2021 =+—HR=-ZE=-—%
—BA—BW&ER 5,000 1 5,001
Fair value changes (Note 8) NEEZED) (FIFES) - 1) (1)
Disposal LE (5,000) - (5,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R=-ZE=-—%+=#
=+ —AWEs - - -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Current asset mMENEE
Unlisted investment fund FLMIREES - 5,000
Listed trading securities IR ES - 1
- 5,001

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are
recorded in “Other losses, net” in the consolidated income

statement.

BATEFAABENSREENATE

BRI

AR ©

Wat ke [ E B iEF ]+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

20 Financial instruments by category

20 ZEHEATHEMTH

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 19) BEAFEFAERD
Rt E E (ffs19) - 5,001
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 18) BEAFEFAEMEERE
B e EE E (M5 18) 8,369 -
Financial assets at amortised cost TR AR S RVEE
Financial asset at amortised HHEHEK A RN SR
cost (Note 23) &= (fsE23) 16,080 =
Trade and bills receivables (Note 22) B 5 WA M R R &
(MtzE22) 52,973 15,290
Deposits and other receivables (Note 17) &2 & & H th fE U 5118
(HtsE17) 2,859 1,446
Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) BRI R (5E24) 1,695 14,557
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) RekREeEED
(Mt3E24) 48,926 104,004
130,902 140,298
Financial liabilities cRBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAATE 2B E
Trade payables (Note 28) 2 5 RE (i 28) 17,499 18,482
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIE N ERE A 12,731 22,164
Bank borrowings (Note 30) HRITE R (FIFE30) 12,614 13,937
Lease liabilities (Note 25) HEB & (FisEes) 12,693 6,491
55,537 61,074
21 Inventories 21 78
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Raw materials R E 33,184 29,133
Less: impairment provision for inventories & : 17 & R (B B 5 (2,724) (3,988)
30,460 25,145

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in “cost of sales” during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 amounting to approximately RMB123,314,000
and RMB84,889,000 respectively (Note 6).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

21

22

e EERRNE @

Inventories (Continued)

A reverse of impairment provision for inventories amounting
to approximately RMB1,264,000 was recognised in the
consolidated income statement and included in “cost of
sales” for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December
2020: impairment provision for inventories amounting to
approximately RMB1,176,000) (Note 6).

21 FE @

BHE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HIEFE "

#) A R ¥ 1,264,000 TT K 77 5 6 (B B 18 8
B ER4RE RS RERL A THEM A
(ZZ=TF+=-A=+—R:F&RME

BN ARBEA,176,0007T) (M1E6) °

Contract assets, trade and bills 22 SEIEE -EZRWNFHERE
receivables U& EE
2021 2020
= g — ﬂi — 7 — E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREFIT
Contract assets EREE 55,158 55,294
Less: provision for impairment of contract & = & [B& E R E B
assets (106) (106)
Contractassets,net  &aR&=F® 85,052 | 55,188
Trade receivables B 5 W FIE 51,788 15,310
Bills receivables e 1,314 145
Less: provision for impairment of trade B B S EWGRIE R E RS
______ receivables b (16
Trade and bills receivables, net 5 rWNEIE R EWEE
e ik 929718 15,290
108,025 70,478

Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but unbilled for its
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional which
generally takes one to three months. The balances of
contract assets as at 31 December 2021 represented the
amount of services that were completed but unbilled before
the year-end.

EREERASEREEZKEBERAR

B AR F R B HER - & R & E N
MRBSEGHER (—REH—Z2=EA)
EREESERERAE T —F 1=

A=t—BZAREBEEGZHERN

NERZ

FIE SR BERFAZHRE S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

22 Contract assets, trade and bills

receivables (Continued)

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of

contract assets is as follows:

WEE @)

22 EREE - EFERE

RIE N B

AEENEREERERBESHUT

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
As at 1 January n—H—H 106 =
Provision for impairment of contract BHREEFTRNEREE
assets on collective basis B R - 106
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 106 106
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts RZEZ—FRZZFFTF+ A
of contract assets, trade and bills receivables approximated Eg= EI CEREBEE - féf 2 W RIE K
their fair values. JEREEHNEREEEEE AT ERE
The Group’s sales were generally on credit terms primarily REBHEENEFEER —REENTFI0E
from 30 to 90 days. 90H -
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of RZEZ—FRZZFEZFTF+ A
trade and bills receivables, net of impairment, based on =+—HB BSRWBHREREKREE (B

invoice date, was as follows:

HBRRE) ZEZAHNKREITAOT

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBEF T

1 to 3 months 1Z2 3@ A 51,871 14,348
Over 3 months HBi@E31E A 1,231 1,107
53,102 15,455

Less: provision for impairment of trade W B REMFIERERE

receivables (129) (165)

52,973 15,290
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, trade receivables of T - —FR T _FTF+ A

approximately RMB10,417,000 and RMB187,000, were

past due respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

22 Contract assets, trade and bills 22 SEIEE -EZRWRERE
receivables (Continued) U& 2B @
Movements of the provision for impairment of trade and bills AEBENE ZEWFIBAREREERE
receivable were as follows: BEZFHNT :
2021 2020
—E-—F —EZE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
As at 1 January R—H— 165 995
Provision for impairment of trade b-Q[ClIE =S ud‘ RHE
receivables on an individual basis %Hﬁlmlﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ - 99
Reversal of provision for impairment of BRERNEEGTIRNE S
trade receivables on an individual basis FEUGIE R E R FE R R (36) -
Provision for impairment of trade and bills R RIEEIRHZ 5 EUL
receivables on a collective basis SIB R EWE IR R E RS - 30
Written-off of provision for impairment of — #ifl 5 2 5 & U 7 I8 5 (B B 1
trade receivables - (959)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 129 165
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract assets, trade AEBEEGREE -8B 5EKFIEREK
and bills receivables were denominated in the following FEMERAEN T EEE -
currencies:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
RVMB AR 107,952 69,624
usD ETT 73 854
108,025 70,478
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December RZEZ—FRZIZFE-ZZF+ A
2021 and 2020 was the carrying value of the receivables E‘i— H EI’] F%ﬂ 2 A | SCFT it pE
and contract assets mentioned above. The Group did not WHRERGREEMNREE ASEW
hold any collateral as security. BEREETMNERRIERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

23 Financial asset at amortised cost

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
acquired an unlisted bond from an independent third party
with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (approximately
RMB16,352,000) for 1 year maturity at fixed interest rate of
12% per annum.

23 RBERATTENERMEE

BE-_E-_—F+-A=+—HILEFE "
AREFER—E2BYE-HKRELASE
20,000,000 7T (%) & A R % 16,352,000
L) B —FWELETES - REEF A

E12%ET 8 -

2021
—EBE=-—F
RMB’000
AR®T

FLEMRBIES
R E R

Unlisted corporate bond
Less: provision for impairment

16,352
(272)

Unlisted corporate bonds, net

LM RRIEFEFE

16,080

The carrying amount of the unlisted corporate bond at
amortised cost approximate its fair value.

The unlisted corporate bond at amortised cost is
denominated in HK$.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of
the bond security at amortised cost. The exposure to credit
risk is set out in Note 3.1.2.

HEEKAGTENI LM ARESFNER
EEEEANFERE -

BBEKAGTENIE LM AREZTIAE
JLRHE -

RAEERRAZEBHXAFENES
EFHAREE - EERRENHES.1.2

24 Cash and cash equivalents 24 BERBREEEY

2021 2020

—E-—F —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AREET T

Cash at banks R1ITIRE 50,569 118,433
Cash on hand FHER® 52 128
Less: pledged bank deposits B BERIRRITE K (1,695) (14,557)
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 48,926 104,004
As at 31 December 2021, bank deposits amounting RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—8 R1THE
to approximately RMB1,695,000 (31 December 2020: R ANRHE1,69500T (ZE -+ =
RMB14,557,000) were pledged for bank borrowings, details A=+—8: AR%¥14,557,0007T) A {E

of which are set out in Note 30. BIRIRITIER - FEIBE I EES0 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

24 Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) 24 RBERBFAESEEY @
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the ReLkBR2EEYRE GEeHRanes
purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows: xMms)ATEE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 48,926 104,004
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash AEEREEReEEMREEMRT
equivalents and pledged bank deposits were denominated GRHERENTIEEE

in the following currencies:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR T T
RMB AR 33,359 55,083
usD ET 4,881 13,516
HK$ BT 12,381 49,962
50,621 118,561
Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on RITRESBRBEHARTERFEIZZL
daily bank deposits rate. As at 31 December 2021 and MEOMNE - RZE_—FR_T_ZF
2020, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents +ZA=+—H8 HekFASZFEDK
approximated their fair values. WAREEMEE A TEES -
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, cash and cash RZEZ—FRZZFTZFF+ A
equivalents of the Group amounting to approximately =t+—HA FTEENReEReEFEY
RMB37,654,000 and RMB62,110,000, respectively, were 2 A& &= A R 37,654,000 T B AR
deposited with the banks in the PRC where the remittance 62,110,0007T * FF A BIRARIERTT » M
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and 1% & & [& I B A B BT 28 46 80 N EE
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the BB RERRE -

Government of the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

25 Leases 25 HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REEEEABRERNSE
balance sheet £
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following BEEAEBERNEHEENSSE
amounts relating to leases: wmr
2021 2020
=B —F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Right-of-use assets* EREEE"
Properties LS 12,412 5,455
Plant and machinery R 55 K 3 108 708
12,520 6,163
* The balances were included in Note 14 “Property, plant and * HEREFT AT 14 W% - BB REEHIA -
equipment”.
2021 2020
—B=—F —T_FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTTT
Lease liabilities HESE
Non-current portion FERNEREL o 7,553 1,766
Current portion BNEAEB 7 5,140 4,725
12,693 6,491
Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to HE_ZT-_—FRk-ZZTF+=
approximately RMB15,380,000 and RMB2,170,000 A=T—BL&EE TRAEEER
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 B2 A4 A A KE15380,000
respectively. TR AR 2,170,000 7T ©
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying RZE-_—FR-_ZFE_ZTF+_H1
amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were =t+—RA - AEEHEAEZER
denominated in RMB. BAARBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

25 Leases (Continued) 25 HE @)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) AEEWERERNESHE
income statement
The consolidated income statement shows the SEWERANEEHENSBNT

following amounts relating to leases:

2021 2020
—E-—F —F=-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®TT

Depreciation charge of right-of use FRAEEEINEEH

assets
Properties LES 4173 3,721
Plant and machinery %5 K i 25 4,217 83
8,390 3,804
Finance costs on leases (Note 10) HE®E KA (7 10) 327 432
(c) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (c) RGERERERERNE
statement of cash flows £l
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, HE_ZE-_—FR_T-FF+=
the total cash outflows for leases were analysed as A=+—HBLtFE HEZHEER
below: HBREDAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Cash flows from operating activities RE K& FE 2B EHRE
Payments for short-term leases in SHRTYIER 2 RAEE

respect of:
— machineries (Note 6) — 133 (F3E6) 24,383 19,655
— offices, warehouses, production —WAE - BE - AE

plant and staff quarters (Note 6) IJﬁ:ﬁ UNETESE

(Ff3xL) 3,467 1,770

Cash flows from financing activities REBEFE 2B EHRE
Payment of principal element of lease X NHEE&E 2 AL 5D

liabilities 9,178 4,310

Payment of interest element of lease ST E&EZFEZH
liabilities (Note 10) (FFEE10) 327 432
37,355 26,167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

26 Share capital and share premium

26 RAK KR E

Number
of shares Nominal value
RO A H{E
HKS
BT

Share capital &N
Authorised: ERE ¢

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &A% EI{E0.01 BT H) &3 A

100,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

Number Nominal Share Nominal Share
of shares value premium value premium
R4 & E HfE R RE e R RE
HKS$ HK$ RMB RMB
BT BT AR AR
Issued and fully paid: BETRABR:
At 1 January 2020, R-Z_ZF—H—H-
31 December 2020, —Z-FF
1 January 2021 and 31 +-A=+—8"
December 2021 e =
ARZZ-_—F
+-A=1+—-H 250,000,000 2,500,000 109,640,162 2,250,000 98,676,145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

27 Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets
and liabilities relate to the same tax authority.

27 EIEFFEH
EEHEAEREBESTAEREH
RS A E R RIES
EEMREY DECHEEAERAER
R — 0 75 1 R A M B 5 7 AR 8 o

The analysis of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

BERBEE/ (AFE)WATMT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREET T
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBEEE 3,394 2,733
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBBAE (3,098) (2,068)
Deferred income tax assets, net RIEFTSREEFE 296 665
The gross movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BEFREEE, (AE) WERESFHMT
is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
At the beginning of year i?ﬂ 665 725
Credited to the consolidated income RirE W RFTA (FE11)
statement (Note 11) (369) (60)
At the end of year FR 296 665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

27 Deferred income tax (Continued) 27 ZELF)? S8 (&)
The movement in deferred tax (liabilities)/assets during the iR E 18 (1% &)/ BEREE-_ZT =
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, without taking FRZFZEF+A=T—HIEFE
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same BB CRET REHERMRGE AR
tax jurisdiction, is as follows: 1R UNNE

Rights-of-use  (Accelerated)/
assetsand  decelerated

Deferred tax (liabilities)/ Contracts lease tax  Govemnment

assets assets liabilities  depreciation grants Others Total
BEHE (88 / EREEE (MB)/HE

BE AEEE RHEEER RBRE BR#E At @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETR ARETT AR%ETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 e g (1,809 82 (218) 2,013 821 725
(Charged)/crediedtothe  FARER (1K) /3FA
consolidated income
statement (66) (M) 178 (48 (83) (60)

At 31 December 2020 RZBZEEF-A=1-H (1875) (153) (40) 1965 768 665
(Charged)icredited tothe  FMFAIREER (k) /3T A
consolidated income

Statement (1,031) 39 392 1,077 (769) (369)
At31December202!  R-E-—EF+-F=+-8 (2,906 (19) 35 3,002 . 206
The Group had undistributed earnings of approximately REBR-_ZE-_—F+ZA=+—HH
RMB106,849,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: *’“@E&%\JZ’WAE%% 849,0007T (=
RMB91,463,000), which, if paid out as dividends, would be T -ZF4F: AR®091,463,0007T) W0
subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An assessable ZRBERKREIRE - BB MR T &
temporary difference exists, but no deferred tax liability has WHE BREFEERAMEREE %E
been recognised as the parent entity is able to control the BHREATFRRGEIZEHZPEKBR

timing of distributions of dividends from the PRC subsidiary K A% BB B Faﬁ H?EEHEQT%H#XT\ =
and is not expected to distribute these profits in the SEZEEN WU ERREEHIEEE -

foreseeable future.

198 emesmrERAT £ 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

28 Trade payables 28 ESEMANRIE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of RZEZ—FRZZFFTF+ A
trade payables, based on invoice date, was as follows: =t+—RA - BSENRBEREZEHRDY
BRER AT T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF R ARETF T
Within 1 month 1@ AR 13,396 16,664
1 to 2 months 1Z2 2@ A 2,503 784
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 1,546 749
Over 3 months SEALAE 54 285
17,499 18,482
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were AEEEZEMNRENERABNTIE
denominated in the following currencies: BEETHE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
RVMB AR 16,803 17,862
uUsD ETT 696 620
17,499 18,482
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts RZEZ—FRZFTZZEF+ A
of trade payables approximated their fair values. —t+—H BZENRERAEHRER
FEMES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEIRRMEE @)

29 Contract liabilities, other payables and 20 ERIEE HttENARERE
accruals TEHA
2021 2020
= - —EoTR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFIT
Payable for operating expenses RS R 2 B A FE N 3R 4,997 3,094
Payable for acquisition of property, BREEME Jr‘?ﬁ/%&axﬁ
plant and equipment Z I 5RI8 961 10,476
VAT and other tax payables LB R N H A E A B I8 11,720 5,358
Other payables H BT RIE 154 170
Amount due to the non-controlling FE A IEE AR AR 3R 5RIR
shareholder (Note () (M 5E (@) 1,000 =
Accruals EETER 16,315 17,010
Contract liabilities (Note 5(b)) & R& & (K 5(b)) 1,503 1,487
36,650 37,595
Note: BEE -
(@  Amount due to the non-controlling shareholder is denominated in @ ENIEERBREREAARBE  BER-
RMB, unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable within one year. TErFEBEBR—FRERE -
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts RZEZ—FRZF_FF+ A
of other payables, accruals and contract liabilities =+—HB HthENRKRE- J*Equ%FH&
approximated their fair values. ARABENEREREAFERE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s contract liabilities, AEBEBEREE  HMENKEBERER
other payables and accruals were denominated in the BRMNBEmENA NI EEEE :
following currencies:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
RMB AR 34,258 30,585
UsD ETT 869 1,548
HK$ BT 1,523 5,462
36,650 37,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

30 Bank borrowings

30 SRITER

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
Non-current portion FEBNER IR
Bank borrowings — secured RITIER—BER 7,703 8,048
Current portion B HA &6
Bank borrowings — secured IRITER—H KT 4,911 5,889
Total bank borrowings IRITIEAETE 12,614 13,937
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the weighted average RZEBEZ—FR_ZFT_ZEF+ A
interest rate per annum of the Group’s bank borrowings was +—H ANEEIRTT {a SE AN #E 55

5.27% and 5.86% respectively.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts
of bank borrowings approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, the above bank borrowings were
secured by bank deposits of RMB1,695,000, property, plant
and equipment with carrying amounts of RMB25,038,000
and a corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the above bank borrowings
were secured by bank deposits of RMB14,557,000,
property, plant and equipment with carrying amounts of
RMB26,130,000 and a corporate guarantee provided by the
Company.

FERED RN E5.27% % 5.86% °

RZEZ—FR-_F-_ZFTF+ A
=t+—H RBTEFNEEEEREAF
BRE -

)3”:\_:;_—¢+ A=+—8" kiR
TREFARITERAR1,695,0007T
EE@{E?%}\E%QS,OSS,OOOEE’J%%
BB K&t B AR AR A AEE
RIEIEH -

RZZE_ZTF_A=+—H  LiltiR1T
fa A RITF R A R #14,557,0007T -
REE A AR 26,130,000 7T H ¥ ¥
e K& RBEARQGIRENDRE
{RIEIEH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B ISERRMEE @)

30 Bank borrowings (Continued) 30 R 1"* ()
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s bank RZEZ—FRZF_FF+ A
borrowings were repayable according to repayment E‘I— El $$@E’Jfﬁ ITIERELRER
schedule as follows: FHEIR A TR AEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREF T
Within 1 year —FR 4,911 5,889
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 3,953 8,048
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 1,500 =
Over 5 years HFUE 2,250 =
12,614 13,937
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings were AEERNRITERNDEAENUTIER
denominated in following currencies: BEETE -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBFIT
RMB AR 4,750 1,600
usD ETT 7,864 12,337
12,614 13,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

rn
=

31 Deferred government grants

32

SRR @)

31 JEFE BT B

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —EEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx AREET T

At 1 January H—HA—H 13,102 13,424
Received during the year FRE UER 11,738 2,770

Released to the consolidated income BALZE R R K

statement (4,564) (3,092)
At 31 December Wt+=—HA=+—H 20,276 13,102
Non-current portion FERNEREL & 15,999 10,001
Current portion BIEAER 2 4,277 3,101
20,276 13,102

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
government grants have been received for the purchase
of certain equipment. There are no unfulfiled conditions or

contingencies attached to these grants.

Dividend

32

No dividends had been paid or declared by the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(E_TC

=t—HIEFE-

—ER-"E-_FTFE+ R
ot g

oo 4+

B2 T AR
MRS RN RER
R RTEE -

ZIS’RTBA@ZI_;z_—ﬁ&f? ¢

Confidence Intelligence Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2021 2 03



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

33 Notes to the consolidated statementof 33 Z&8BEEHRERM=

cash flows
(a) Cash generated from operations () REEENRE
2021 2020
—E-—F TE-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREET T
Profit before income tax R BT 45 %4 A 28 7 12,325 13,683
Adjustments for: AT EIBIEH A
Finance income AE WA (649) (925)
Finance costs & A 1,216 1,002
Depreciation e 37,665 24,858
Amortisation 3! 744 296
(Reverse of)/impairment provision for 1 & @B (B El) B
inventories (1,264) 1,176
Impairment losses on financial assets ¢ R&AE N A REE
and contract assets REEE 240 235
Provision for impairment of TEfT SRIE R E RS
prepayment - 644
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HE¥E - BE &R EN
and equipment E518 1,580 2,665
Government grants BT 7 B (4,564) (3,092)
Fair value changes of financial BAFEFABEN SR
assets at FVTPL BEATEED 1 =
Gain on disposal of financial assets &R AFET ABZM
at FVTPL TRIEEN NS - (489)
47,294 40,053
Changes in working capital: EEESE
— Contract assets, trade and bills —GREE - BHEK
receivables RIE &K E R (37,511) (5,560)
— Prepayments, deposits and other ~ —FBfFUA - & M EAM
receivables JE U SR IE 5,225 (3,610)
— Inventories & (4,051) (2,082)
— Trade payables —BIEMNFKIE (983) 2,290
- Contract liabilities, other payables —A R &1& - Hith EfS
and accruals FIANERTE A 8,612 22,481
Net cash generated from operations 4% E £ RIB & F 58 18,586 53,572

204 emmaERERAT EH 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

33 Notes to the consolidated statement of

cash flows (Continued)

33 KERERERMT @

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds (b) RiZEeREeRER & W
from disposal of property, plant and equipment BE k& E 2 FAEHRIBEIE
comprised:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Net book amount disposed H &R ERTEFE 5,948 3,145
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HHE#E - BELZREZ
and equipment (Note 8) &8 (M13E8) (1,580) (2,665)
4,368 480
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEKKREZ
plant and equipment FriS 8 2,830 480
Other receivables (Note) H b e W I8 (I 3E) 1,538 =
4,368 480

(c)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
certain machineries while approximately RMB1,538,000 remain
unsettled as at 31 December 2021. The unsettled balance was
recognised as other receivables (Note 17).

s BE—Z-_—4F+-A=+—HALEE K&
BHEETFHE R_E-_—F+_A=+—
B # A R #1,5638,000 7T i#] A 45 5 o R & 1T 48
SRTERR A E th FEURIE (M 5E17) ©

g= A

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds () RFARERMEBRT  HEKRAITF

from disposal of financial assets at fair value through

B ABENEMEEZMEHRIA

profit or loss comprised: (25E
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Net book amount disposed B ERNREFE 5,000 8,370
Gain on disposal of financial assets ~ HEEAFEFAEBZERN
at fair value through profit or loss TREEWR
(Note 8) (M$7E8) - 489
Proceeds from disposal of HEZRATFEFTAERD
financial assets at fair value TREEZFSHIA
through profit or loss 5,000 8,859
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

33 Notes to the consolidated statementof 33 Z8HREHRE XM @)
cash flows (Continued)

(d) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from financing (d) mBEEHEENABEYURDOT
activities were as follows:

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITIER HESE et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZEF—H—H 8,204 8,631 16,835
Cash flows Rens
— Proceeds from bank borrowings — $R17 & X B 15 7118 13,511 = 13,511
— Repayments of bank borrowings —f{&i& $R 171 3k (7,652) - (7,652)
— Payment of principal element of —XZ (& & EH)

lease liabilities K& IH - (4,310) (4,310)
— Interest paid —B2RAE (570) (432) (1,002)
Other non-cash movements HMIER S EH)
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEAaFEEM - 2,170 2,170
— Exchange difference —[EHZER (126) - (126)
— Interest expenses — R BEHEX 570 432 1,002

As at 31 December 2020 and R-ZEB-EHF+_-AH

1 January 2021 =E+—BR=ZB=—%F

—HA—AH 13,937 6,491 20,428
Cash flows RensE
— Proceeds from bank borrowings — R 17 & 7% Fr 15 7U0E 19,245 - 19,245
— Repayments of bank borrowings — & i 8 17 f& 3« (20,342) - (20,342)
— Payment of principal element of — X ftHEBER

lease liabilities KEEBH - (9,178) (9,178)

— Interest paid —BRHE (889) (327) (1,216)
Other non-cash movements HEMIERSEH)
— Addition of lease liabilities —HEBEEMN - 15,380 15,380
— Exchange difference —[EHZER (226) - (226)
— Interest expenses — R BHEX 889 327 1,216
As at 31 December 2021 R=-BE-—F+=AH

Sr—E 12,614 12,693 25,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

34 Contingent liabilities 34 ZAEE

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have RZEZ—FR-ZF-_FTF+ A
any material contingent liabilities. =+—H FAEETEEFMEAIAERE -

35 Capital commitments 35 ERELE
REREFTNEREENERFAZAT

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Contracted but not provided for: ERTAE R B
Property, plant and equipment W - WE L& 3,158 16,742

36 EEMERERARNEE
BHBTERNEERERERRNEA

36 Assets pledged as securities

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as securities for

current bank borrowings are: ENREBEAT
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTF T
Non-current portion FEFREN I 5
Charge at floating rate 12 0F BT F YK
Property, plant and equipment (Note 30) __ #1% - BR= R (MEE30) 25038 26,130 _
Current portion BN
Charge at floating rate 12 0F BT F UK
Pledged bank deposits (Note 24) ~~ BHEMRITHFA (W24) 1695 14,557
Total assets pledged as securities for bank & & #{E &R 77 (& R E I R
borrowings MNEEBE 26,733 40,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

e EERRME @

37 Related party transactions

208 &=

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to
control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the
other party in holding power over the investee; exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or
other entities.

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were

as follows:

Related parties

37 BEAXRS

RARE T AARE N EH] - KREHE IS E R
?&?ﬁﬁ%%‘&%ﬁﬁéﬂE’Jﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁék
FEIN—TT  ER2ERREHRY
/E@Jﬁﬁﬁ% HERZERELR: AR
HBWRERBEBHRERBEINESD  UEE
REEZCDHNESHE - BROZHRIHAR
ZHI B SRS IR BT - BE
BT A AR EAREMEE -

HE_ZT_—&Frk_ZTZ-_FTF+_A
—t+t—BLFE HASEFEXRSH
FE@MEB ST

Relationship with the Company

BHS HAQTHER
Li Hao Director and shareholder
= EERRE
Yuan Shuntang Director and shareholder
RIERE BEERRE
Xu Shizhen Director
R =t ==

Shenzhen Puneda Electronic Co., Ltd

AT EETERAT

BEIEARBR AR FHk 2021

Related company controlled by the
Group’s non-controlling interest

B 7N 2 A R 4% A 2 1 6 MO B B 1 )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

37 Related party transactions (Continued)

(a

(b)

(c)

(d)

Parent entity

Details of the ultimate holding company of the
Company and the ultimate controlling party are set out
in Note 1.

Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 13.

Transaction with a related party

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following transaction
with a related party during the year:

(@

(b)

(c)

37 BE RS @)

SATER
AR SR AT REEER
T BB H 1 o

Lol N
RHIE R B R BN FE13 o

BRI NS
PR B mAREMBE D FAREE I -
FRAREEBREBTAUTRS

Related party Nature of transaction 2021 2020
BB ZRtE —E--F -T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Shenzhen Puneda Electronic Co., Ltd ~ Sales of machinery 4,268 -

RY|TE G EETARAT 5

In the opinion of the directors, this transaction was
determined at mutually agreed prices and terms.

Key management compensation

Compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

(d)

EERB RXPNEETHEN
BAS R ARFRFETE -

FTEEEE HM
HEERBENSBNEEEEE
BFMEI R T -

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt AREF T

Wages and salaries TENHS 5,914 4,659
Pension costs — defined contribution 3R IR 4 A AR — R E U ETE]

plan 81 36

5,995 4,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

38 ARFEERBREFHRED

38 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

Balance sheet of the Company as at 31

AKRARIR=—E=-—%+=A

December 2021 =+—HWEERER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEERF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MRE AR T AREEFIT
ASSETS EE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B R AR R 148,442 152,807
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFAHEMEE
R EE 8,369 =
Total non-currentassets ¥ uBmAEAE 00000 - 156,811 152,807
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRUE -~ e EA
receivables eSS 124 122
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEN
TREE - 1
Financial asset at amortised cost KA ENEE
BE 16,080
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UK BT B8 2~ B 3R IE 40,794 34,156
Cash and cash equivalents ReReEEY 11,937 55,397
Totalcurrentassets ~  #ABHE#®E 2000 68935 ¢ 89,676
Total assets BEEHAE 225,746 242,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

38 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 38 A AFREEEEXRRFEEET

the Company (Continued) (&)
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 EARR=-_TB=-—F+=A
December 2021 (Continued) =+—HHEEEER @
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFT T ARBTT
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to equity ARRERER AEML
holders of the Company s
Share capital & 2,250 2,250
Share premium f& 17 B 98,676 98,676
Reserve i (@) 101,217 118,216
Totalequity  H#=#&® 202143 219,142
LIABILITIES a8fE
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals FEETFRIE 1,521 1,234
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A B BB A R R IE 22,082 22,107
Total liabilites  &f®® 23603  : 23,341
Total equity and liabilities EnrEEAR 225,746 242 483
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the ARAEEBERER-ZZE-_F=H
Board of Directors on 31 March 2022 and was signed on its —t+—HEESeHETHUATALR
behalf. RERE
Li Hao Xu Shizhen
=8 it E
Director Director
EF EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

38 Balance sheet and reserve movementof 38 AAFREEEEXRREEET

the Company (Continued) ()
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 EARR=-_TB=-—F+=A
December 2021 (Continued) =+—HWEEAGER @
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (@ ARNAIHFEE
Capital Financial
Exchange reserve assetsat  Accumulated
reserve (Note) FVOCI losses Total
BAFETA
BAfE HzEkE
HNERE (BH=E) HeEmERE RitEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT AREETFT
At 1 January 2020 R=—2=25-A-H (940) 155,404 - (22,468) 131,996
Loss for the year FREE - - - (6,894) (6,894)
Currency transaction differences & #4848 (6,886) - - - (6,886)
Total comprehensive 2HEEBBEHE
R B T = lBEEs SRR
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-FE+=H
=+-8 (7,826) 155,404 - (29,362) 118,216
At 1 January 2021 R=—Z2=—-5-A-H (7,826) 155,404 - (29,362) 118,216
Loss for the year FREE - - - (6,865) (6,865)
Currency transaction differences & #& = 48 (6,077) - - - (6,077)

Equity investments at fair value &2 FEF AEM2E

through OCI W BB AR 1% B
— Fair value losses taken to — st ARBEOLDTE
reserves B8 - - (5,173) - (5,179)
~ Disposal Gains taken to —FARENLE
reserves Wz - - 1,116 - 1,116
— Disposal gains recycled to —EBRERBRIM
retained eamnings HE Wz - - (1,116) 1,116 -
Total comprehensive 2EEBEEE
losses (6,077) - (5,173) (5,749) (16,999)
At 31 December 2021 R-T=—-%
+=HA=+—-H (13,908) 155,404 (5,173) (35,111) 101,217
Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the aggregated sk c AN A BIME A E AR SE A A D B UKE AT
net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company BRARKMREESFHE-

pursuant to the Reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

39 Benefits and interests of directors 39 EEMRNEZRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEM<
The remuneration of each director is set out below: FREEMNFHETIAT -
Employer’s

Allowances  contribution
Discretionary  and benefits ~ to pension

Name of Director Fees Salary bonus inkind scheme Total
BER EIXHEH4E
£33 e 2 MR EVNE  GrENER @t

RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBIOOD
AREBTL  ARETRL  AREBTL  ARETRL  ARBTT  ARETR

For the year ended BE-3--5+-f

31 December 2021 =+-ALFE
Executive directors: B8
- Li Heo -F 100 743 800 - 15 1,658
- Zhang Bizhong -RUE 100 770 600 - 14 1,484
- Xu Shizhen -t E 100 503 400 - 14 1,017
- LiBigjong (Note (j) -2 (k) 2 154 67 - 11 252
Non-executive director. ke
- Yuan Shuntang -RIEE 100 - - - - 100
Independent non-executive BV IEH{TES -

directors:
-Wong Chun Sek Edmund ~ —&1£78 100 - - - - 100
~WuTai Cheung (Note (i)~ —#AH (Fit3E (i) 83 - - - - 83
- Chen Zhong -Ra 100 - - - - 100
~ Mu Lingxia (Note (i) o CLUET) 2 - - - - 2

723 2170 1,867 - 54 4814

For the year ended BE-ZS-E2E4CR

31 December 2020 =t-HLEE
Executive directors: Hi7gE:
- LiHao =3 107 1724 — — 5 836
- Zhang Bizhong —RUyE 107 562 500 - 5 1,174
- Xu Shizhen 1 107 518 240 - 5 870
Non-executive director: FHTES:
- Yuan Shuntang -RIEE 107 - - - - 107
Independent non-executve B EHTEE

directors:
-Wong Chun Sek Edmund ~ —& 1678 107 - - - - 107
- Wu Tai Cheung —HRE 107 = = = = 107
- Chen Zhong ~Fa 107 - - - - 107

749 1,804 740 - 15 3,308

Notes: B aE -
)  Appointed on 18 October 2021 [0) RZZBE=Z—F+A+N\BEZE
(i)  Resigned on 18 October 2021 i) RZZE=——F+A+N\BEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEIRRMEE @)

39 Benefits and interests of directors
(Continued)

(@

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

214 emoamRERAT EH 2021

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
none of the directors of the Company (i) received or
paid any remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii)
received or paid emoluments in respect of services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or (jii) waived
or has agreed to waive any emolument.

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the
directors; nor are any payable.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no consideration was provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no loans, quasi- loans and other
dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

39 EENANZRER @

EEME @

HE_Z-_—FRk=-_Z-TF+=
A=Z+—RLFE BEARFE
= (i) B B 49 BBk iz U BR Bk 28 {5 (T )
Bl AR RZEREWNE R A
EBEHNEERBKESESHS
(i) REXCRERETMHE -

ESRABARKLER

HE-_S-_—FR-_ZE-FF+=
A=+—RALFE TEGEKLE
EERBHOBE BIREFN R
iR A E kR e e
o INE(E R R RUE ©

MERMESEREREME@E=
FRHAE
BE_Z-_—FR-_Z-_FTF+=
A=+—BLFE $ERERE
BERBEMEE=ZFIRERE -

ERUEE HEBRESE
HHEEREEEHEENE
RASEANER  EEB8R
REMRZHER
HE_Z-_—FR_ZT_ZTF+_
B=+—BLEE WEESBUE
ZE - HABESEHMEE REH
EHENEEASEAMER %
EREREMRZLZH -

EERRS  ZHIASHH
EPN £
BRaEeMBREZBREEIN A
RAMEIUARREERETHE
BEYHEREEERBEMRF RN
FAEAERFELERNERXK
BRANEARS - ZHEREH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

40 Events after the reporting period 40 REHEZEE

Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus, a number
of provinces and municipalities in the PRC have taken
emergency public health measures and various actions to
prevent the spread of the novel coronavirus.

The operation of the Group’s production plant in Shenzhen
(the “Shenzhen Production Plant”) was temporarily
suspended in March 2022 as part of the Chinese
government’s countermeasures in containing outbreak of
the novel coronavirus. Although the Shenzhen Production
Plant resumed its operation and production after the
temporary suspension, the Group will continue to assess
the impact of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus on the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Group will also take appropriate measures as necessary.

HRHMETAREEE FEZEEN
EREHERRESARFESERZ A
B85 DAR LR R E A S B IRAL o

1E R YE B3 B R AR B R AR B 15
B—#n  ARBEEFRNNOEERE (R
YWEERE]) EFR-_ZE_—_F=R%
R RAEA - BN RYIEERE N LA
BREIMKRE ASESHRENHHEL
BRAREERE BAKELERUBR
BMEE ELER AKESXRIVE

S -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

iR

Results ¥EE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-ALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—8--% —F-Rf —F-NF —F-/\f —B+F
Revenue Yrzs 353,896 246,531 284,588 236,210 208,634
Cost of sales HEKAR (299,916)  (196,123)  (190,560)  (161,946)  (144,773)
Gross profit EF 53,980 50,408 94,028 74,264 63,861
Profit before income tax BRET{S B AR A 12,325 13,683 35,395 47,229 36,940
Profit for the year attributable to ARrEREE ARG
equity holders of the Company FERmAM 7,241 11,736 27,710 40,814 32,011
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZZ-%F —E-NF —T-N\F —T—+F
Non-current assets ERBEE 192,980 157,894 122,155 105,740 94,834
Current assets REEE 208,472 226,413 232,299 115,726 91,851
Total assets LEHLE 401,452 384,307 354,454 221,466 186,685
Total equity BERiBE 297,861 291,931 278,673 148,145 116,600
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 33,362 19,815 16,902 20,940 12,775
Current liabilities nEaE 70,229 72,561 58,879 52,381 57,310
Total liabilities BERE 103,591 92,376 75,781 73,321 70,085
Total equity and liabilities EnkaFEes 401,452 384,307 354,454 221,466 186,685

Notes:

(a) The financial figures for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021/
as at the respective year-end were extracted from the published audited

financial statements of the Group.

(b)  The financial figures for the year ended/as at 31 December 2018 and 2017
were extracted from the Prospectus.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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